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2018 highlights

Up 20bps

14.0% A

» Results ahead of market expectations
» Good growth across all Precision Engineering verticals

» Critical Engineering sales growth despite continued
New Construction Power weakness

» Hydronic Engineering margin recovery delivered

» Bimba integration progressing well

» Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12%

» Further reduction of global pension liabilities

» 3% increase in the full year dividend recommended

» Roy Twite to succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive

All figures are stated on an adiusted basis excluding the sffect of adjusting tems in the income statement. For other
statutory measures see Censolidated Income Stalement on page 64,

" On an organic basis, after adiusting for the impact of disposals and acquisitions and movemnents in exchange rates,
see Section 2,1.1 on page 93,

- Oparating Cash Flow before adjusting items as descnbed in the commentary to the cash flow statamant on page 81.
- Adjusted measures are defined in Section 2.1.1 on page 83.
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Chairman’s statement

2018 - another year of
important progress
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Continuous improvement now . Throughout the year the Board has had the

i
firmly established opportunity to spend time with our employees an
As we enter the final year of our five year planitis  * @ number of occasicns, In Aprit | participated in our
an appropriate time to reflect upon the significant . senior management conference. This is an annuaf

event aver 2-3 days invelving 300 of our business
leaders from across the Group and is  valuable
opportunity to discuss all aspects of the business
Qur cuture has been transtormed, IMIis now a with them. Later in the year we also held our October
© Business that. as a matter of course, strives for Boarg mesting at Bimba's University Park facitty
continuous improvement and recognises the near Chicago. Although Bimba joined the Group only

progress that has been made to date and the work
that remains to be done,

significant opportunities that flow from ever i Janciary. the team there has embraced our

mergasing operational effciency and productivly. | cantinuous improvement culture with great

This mindset is fundamentally important and, enthusiasm and our Lean processes are aiready

now embedded thraughout the Group, it will support becoming apparant threughout the busingss.
Lord Smith of Kelvin the uelivery of our overall strategic goat —the " The Board afso ook the opportunity to visit IMI CCI

* creation of tong-term. sustainable valug for our RSM in California. During our visit we toured the site
sharefoiders. employees and other stakenolders. and leaned about the continuous improvements ‘

During the year we improved our health and safety | 08ing made across the business as well as s plans
" performance in a number of areas. The total number | 19 expand the product offering to gain market share.
. of LTAs {lost time accidents) reduced more than 20% | e were also shown remote inspection technoiogies
and following the launch of a targsted campaign, ' Provided by IMI and increasingly accepted by

the Group delivered a reduction in hand injuries custormers as a means by which the product
" in the year of over 40%. . approval process can be made even more efficient

by reducing unnecessary site visits by engineers.

Chairman

The Chief Executive’s review on page 12 and the
+ pperational reviews on pages 28 to 33 provide more Board and Governance

details on the recent progress made in each of the During the year twe new non-executive diractors
Group's threg divisions. Whilst some of the markets joined. bringing considerable and relevant

we serve did offer some support to our performance sxperience as well as fresh perspectives to the

~ during the year, elsewhere we did face a number of M Boartd. Thamas Thune Andersen joined the
economie and trad\'ng chailenges. Strengthening our Board on 1 July 2018 and also tecame a member
business, and in particular our market competitveness, | of the Nominations and Remuneration Commitiees.

 Tomake e Group more resilient regardizss of market | Thomas has extensive knowledge and experience
congitions, continues to be a key priority. in some of the key seclors we operate in, including
In refation to geopolitical uncertainty, we have ofl, energy and critical infrastructure. Katie Jackson
developad a nurber of Brexit related contingency also joined the Board on 1 July 2018 and became
plans. including ouilding Iong lead-time inventaries a memper of the Nominaticns and Remuneration
to mitigate supply chain interruptions in the event Committees. Katie has deep knowledge of the

| of increased order conirols, of defays inobtaining . "l6rnational Oil & Gas market. and significant
clearance to and from the UK. corporate finance and business development

experience. Further informatien about Thomas

Our people and culture and Katie. ang the pther members of the Board,
Our people around the world remain key to our is set out on page 52 to 53,
success and they have contributad significantly We acknewledge the introduction of the 2018
to the progress we have made during the year. UK Corporate Governance Code and during the

: On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank ail 1 vear we took appropriate steps to prepare for

| of our employees for their continued hard work compliance with the new requirements which

and cemmitment. came intg effect from 1 January 2019,



cquipment dunng
mbly, trat and finalinspection.

In November 2018, we announced the
appointment of Birgit Nergaard as non-executive
director with respensibility for workforce
engagement, This imporiant role, which is in
line with the revised Code's recommendations,
will build on the varipus mechanisms we
already operate to ensure we continue to
engage effectively with our people.

We have also revised our corporate governance
framework and the business cycles for the Board
and its committees to reflect the 2018 Code and
appropriate training has been provided to the Roard.

Chief Executive succession

Mark Selway will be stepping down as Chief
Executive at the Annual General Meeting in May
and retiring from the Beard on 31 July 2019,
He will be succeeded by Roy Twite, currently
Divisional Managing Director of IMI Critical
Engineering.

Under Mark's leadership IMI's market position
has been significantly enhanced. The Group's
infrastructure has been modernised, its
operational performance radically improved
and its customer offering refreshed. As a result,
IMIis now 2 much mere robust and sustainable
business, On behalf of the Board | would like

to thank Mark for his leadership, drive ang
commitment. He has made a significam
coniribution to the Group, and while fully
respecting his decision to return home to retire,
we are very sorry to see him go. We wish him
well in his retirement back in Australia,

Roy was appointed following a comprehensive
glehal search process that included both internal
and external candidates. Roy joinad IMI in 1988
and has been & member of the Board since
2007, He has held senigr management roles

in &l parts of the Group including President

of IMI Bydronic Engineeting, President of IMI

Precision Engineering and. since 2011, Divisional
Managing Director of IMI Critical Engineering.
The Board is delighted to appoint Roy as IMI's
next Chief Execulive. He is a streng and
experienced successor who has been pivotal

{0 the Group's continued success. He has
extensive operational experience, deep
knowledge of our core markets and

outstanding leadership gualities.

Dividend

Reflecting the continued confidence in the
Group's prospects, the Beard is recommending
an increase in the final dividend of 3% to 26.0p
{(2017: 25.2p) making 2 total dividend for the
yaar of 40.6p, an increase of 3% over last
year's 39.4p.
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Group overview
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Revonue

£682m

IM]

Critical Engineering

Addpeded opeyateyg profib

£88.3m

M Critical Engineering is a world-{gading
provider of critical flow control solutions
that enable vital energy and process
industries to operate safeiy, cleanly,
reliably and more efficiently.

03

IMI

Precision Engineering

tMI Critical Engineering operational review
Tum to page 28

IMI Precision Engineering specialises
in developing motion and flid control
technologies for applications where
precision, speed and reliability

are essential.

U

IMI

Hydronic Engineering

IMI Precision Engineering operaticnal review
Turrio page 30

Revenue

Adjusted gperating profit

£52.0m

IMI Hydronic Engineering is a leading

globat supplier of preducts for hydronic
distribution systems which deliver optimal and
energy efficient heating and cooling systems to
the residential and commercial building sectors.

&

Number of employees

1,800

1ML Hydronic Engineering operational review
Tuni ta page 32
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Group revenue by geography

ﬁ IMi's global tootprint

kttp-Mwvawamipde . com about-mi‘our-divs ong imi-at-a-glance aspx

Key brands

M Bopp & Reuther, IMICCL

M1 Fluid Kingtics. IMI InterAtiva,
tMINH, IMI Orton, IMI Remosa,
IMISTIL IMITH Jansen, IMI Truflo
Marine, IMI Truflo Rong, IMI Truflo
Haly. IMI Z&J, IMI Zikesch

Main markets

OU & Gas, Fassil Power, Nuclear
Power, Petrochemical, Iron & Steel,
Desalination and Procass Industries

Major operational locations
Brazil, China, Czech Republic,
Germany, India, ltaly, Japan, South
Korea, Sweden, Switzerland, UK

and USA

Key brands
I Norgren, IMI Buschjost, INI FAS,
IMI Herion, IMI Maxseal, Bimba

Main markets

Commercial Vehicle, Energy, Focd
and Beverage, Industrial Automation,
Life Sclences and Rail

Major operational locations
Brazil, Ghina, Czech Repubiic,
Germany, India, Mexico, Switzerland,
UK and USA

Key brands
Il How Dasign, IMI Haimeier,
IMI Pneumatex, IM| TA

Main markets

Water based heating and cooling
systems Tor commercial buddings,
and temperature control for
residential buildings

Major operational locations
Germany, Poland, Slovenia, Sweden,
Switzerland and USA

Revenue by division
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Power

Oil & Gas

©

Petrochemical

®

Actuation

We are the world leading
supplier of engineered to
order turbine bypass valves
for critical applications in
conventignal and nuclear
power plants — helping to
provide the safest, most
reliable and efficient power
generation.

2018 revenue: £266m

Industrial Automation

We supply anti-surge valve
and actuator systems to
the world's largest LNG
compression facilities.

Our systems are capable
of ultra-fast response to
maximise LNG production
while protecting the
COMpressor,

2018 revenue: £224m

e

Commercial Vehicle

We design and manufacture
integrated fow control systems
for critical applications in Fluid
Catalytic Cracking. We also
supply bespoke valves inta the
ethylene, palypropylene and
delayed coking preguction
DIOCESSES.

2018 revenue: £117m

Oil & Gas

We focus an the design

and production of complate
actuation systems to operate
industrial valves for the most
demanding apphications and
processes in terms of forces,
speed and accuracy and
harsh envircnments.

2018 revenue: £25m

)

Life Sciences

We supply high performance
products inciuding vatves,
valve islands, proportional and
pressure menitoring controis
and air preparation products,
as well as a comprehensive
range of pneumatic actuatars.

2018 revenue; £525m

(2

Batancing & Control

We design and manufaciure
arange of cab chassis

and powertrain solutions
which geliver fuel efficiency,
emissions reduction and
faster assembly times for the
world's leading commercial
vehicle manufacturers.

2018 revenue: E196m

Thermostatic Control

We offer a comprehensive
range of products which deliver
precision control in even

the harshest environments,
including stainless sieet

valves and regulators, nuclear
class valves and emergency
shutdown controls.

2018 revenue: E77m

e

Pressurisation

We supply precision flow
control solutions used in
medical devices, diagnostic
equipment and biotech and
analytical instruments. Qur
products help 1o reduce

the size of equipment,
while enhancing accuracy,
throughput and fluid cortrol
performance.

2018 revenue: E77m

0

Water Quality

Qur hydronic balancing and
control selutions enabie
buildings 1o keep comfort at
the right level while improving
HVAC efficiency by up to 30%.
Our expertise covers constant
and variable flow and both
slatic and dynamic balancing.

2018 revenue: £151m

We design and manufacture
thermostatic conirol systems
which guarantee direct or
automatic control of radiators
and underiloar heating
systems to perfectly control

indivigual room temperatures.

2018 revenue: £98m

Reliable pressurisation is a basic

reguirement for a trouble-free
operation of heating, cooling
and solar systems. Qur robust
range of pressure maintenance
systems with compressors or
pumps and expansion vessels
maintaing 1he right pressure in
the system at all times.

2018 revenue: £32m

The single mast important
component in any hydronic
system is the water itself, When
compromised, the effects can
e felt throughout the system.
Our dirt and air separators

and pressure step degassers
protect the instailation

by kesping water free of
micrabubbles and shodge,

2018 revenue: E10m
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Goagle
vaives

Refinery

We keep the world moving
from petrol to diesel and jet
fuel, our specialist valves
refine crude oil to provide
a wide range of products,
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100DMT choke vaive [
We revelop solutions for aur |
customers in the machinery; |

food and beverage:; printing; anc
Offshore platform

factory avtomation industries.
We design and provide valves
for the most critical applications
in¢luding offshorea.

Excelon® ¢
preparati,

Control
valves

Bimba

tnrellisense
Specialist
ball valves
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Data centres Medical MICROSL MS-E
We ensure stable pressure and Pressurisation devices and

clean water for high cooling intensity instrumentation

applications, prevenling premature .

equipment failure and costly downtime. We help OEMs nerease
performance of their

systems, enabling cutting
edge devices that improve
Baiancing vaives health and the environment

Dirt separation

Cadent 3 puimp

Bimba Versagrip™
solenoid pincH valve

Hospitals

Our products help to deliver
quality, energy-efficient HVAC
systems, which ensure optimal
patient comfort.
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Family house 47 22 %

We provide a comprehensive

Cor

range af thermostatic control - . Qurra
products, ensuring optimal ‘lt.!‘. Y 11 solutic
temperaiure control and S ({ ] reduct
energy efficiency.
Underfipor WMan
xon Heating frav
- waanffolds cont
| =
Radrator valves
Triple ecoentric ) with autpmatic .
butsor iy vabves THErwostatic gy comprod Multi purpose
controls commercial building

LNG

We provide the control and
safely systems 1o ensure
safe delivery of liquefied

Our balancing and contrel solutions
combine highly precise mechanical valves precsare
and dlg@ailactua!pn allowing compltlatg independent
electronic integration and greater efficiency wpdulating

natural gas to power cities in complex heating and cooiing systems. controf
across the world.
Combined —
control &
Isolation balancing
cryogenic Auti-surge valves : ' ;
ball valyes Digital
AcTuation




nmercial Vehicle
nge of cab, chassis and powertrain
ns deliver fuel efficiency, emissions
jon and faster assembly times.
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Engineering
GREAT the
Ml Way

Combined cycle
power plant

Products designed to cope with high
pressure and lemperalure differences
in the maost critical applications ensures
power I avalable when neaded.

S aAiEin Engw!c controf Turbine bypass 1
wrols wufti-vaive block valves }
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Rail AMT compressed
air dryer

Pantograph

We offer customised solutions for
all types of rail applications.
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Chief Executi\;e’s re\Eéw

An increasingly

robust portfolio

b 208 IR

st Connnngs ind tndeging whweh conguted 1o 2007,

Mark Seiway
Chief Executive

HIATOTSS INSTRVR I TITS

. Overview

i

dooprponbanbies for tolote aro

It is pleasing to report the continuation of the
progress achieved in the first half of 2018.
Our strategic plan to drive sustainable long-term

' growth continues to make a real difference across

all parts of the Group. Our new product pipeline

! 18 developing well, cur manufacturing operations

have further improved and the new systems
and processes eing embedded throughout

! the business are delivering gains in efficiency

and competitiveness.

Integration of Bimba Manufacturing
Company {'Bimba’)

The acquisition of Bimba for & total consideration
of £138m (US$198m) was cornpleted on

31 January 2018, The ransaction has increased
our US revenues while extending IMI Pregision
Engineering’s presence in its core Industrial
Automation segment. Goed progress has been
made with the integration ¢f Bimba into Precision
Engineering’s Narth American operations. We have
also accelerated some of our plans for Bimba

to improve its operations and IT infrastructure

in readingss for the cppartunities for growth

and margin improvement,

Trading environment

Trating conditions across our three divisions
continued to be mixed throughout 2018 with
growth in IMI Precision Engineering's end
markets offsetting declings in New Construction
Fossil Power and Energy markets in (MI
Critical Engingering

For Ml Critical Engineering, the Petrachemical
market again produced some sncouraging
opportunities which reflect the division's success
at extending its reach into a broader range of
applications. The improving cutlook in seme
parts of the Ol & Gas sector again centrasted
with the challenging outiook for coal-fired

power generation.

Annual Beport and Accoqgtig(?jﬁ

recred g oralid npetating pertonnan oo vaths aroveiie i
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in IMI Precision Engineering, alt of the division's
verticals and regions showed further good
progress in the year. This was achieved despite

| tougher compasators and increased market
~ volatility, particularly in Industrial Automation,
‘ through the fatter part of 2018,

* Within IMI Hygranic Engineering whers European

: construction represents over 79% of the division,

* markets were marginally stronger than the

| previous year. Although less significant for the

division overall, the North America and China
construction markets also continued to grow.

While we have a broad international manufacturing
footprint and less than 5% of sales in the UK.

it would be remiss not 10 mention the potential
impact of Brexit on the Group's operating
performance. Despite prevailing uncertainty,

the Group has developed a number af Brexit
related contingency plans, including a programme
of building long lead-time inventories to support
customers in the event of increased barder
controls or delays in getting clearance te and
from the UK. While we hope that these increased
inventories will not be required, it is essential that
we do as much as we can to minimise potential
supply chain disruption and ensure our customsr
delivery commitments are met.

Results overview

20718 was another year ot important progress for
IMI. A now well-established culture of continucus
improvement, both within our eperations and in our

. product offering. further enfiances our compétitive

positien, irrespective of the market environment,

Adjusted Group revenues were 9% higher at
£1.907m (2017: £1,75Tm). Excluding adverse
forelgn exchange and the acquisition of Bimba,
Group revenues on an prganic hasis were 5%
higher when compared to the prior year. Adjusted
segmentai cperating profit was 11% higher at
£266m (2017: £241m). Excluding the impact of
adverse foreign exchange and Bimba, segmental



Strategic timeline

2014

1 Mark Sehway on o tour ot the
manufacturing

3
Direclor APAC.

operating profits were 9% higher on an grganic
basis. The Group’s operating margin was
14.0% against 13.8% in 2017 and adjusted
eamings per share were 12% higher at 73.2p
{(2017. 65.3p}.

Adjusted operating cash flow of £222m (2017:
£218mj followed a strong performance last year
and reflected higher working capital to support
growth in Precision Engingering and
comparatively higher advanced payments
received by Critical Engineering in 2017,

Both debtor and inventory days showed modest
improvement while creditors reflected the impact
of lower pre-payments in Critical Engineering.
Net Debt of £405m (2017: £265m) reflected

2017

ot P P AT R

payment of the consideration for Bimba and
resulted in & Net Debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio
ot 1.3x against 0.9x at the end of 2017.

We continue to be proactive in our efforts to
manrage the Group's pension liahilities and in
2018 successfully completed the transter of a
further £439m of liabiities to insurance partners.
This brings the total value of pension schemes
removed from our balance sheet over the last
two years to £838m. The UK schemes remain

in surplus and the overseas deficit remained
constant at £80m in the year.

13

Ambition:
Jouble
cperating profits

hFE S

Good strategic progress

Our strategic plan 1o drive long-term sustainable
growth is making a real difference across all
parts of the Group. Significantty improved
operational performance, new systems and
processes that are helping us operate more
efficiently and a new product pipeline ali
continue to enhance our competitive position.
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1 IMI's Board visits the Bimba Umiversily Park
site in Iinois.

2 Lamp lighting at the Precision Engmecring’s
new India manufactluring site opening.

3 The IMI Board receive a safety brieiing
ahead of @ tour of iMl CCI RSM in California,

4 Mark Setway greets employees at the Induy

site opening.
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Improwng our operattonal New product pipeline | am very proud of what the team at IM| has

performance For each division targeted New Product delivered and | would like to thank cur employees

During 2018 each of our divisions further Development initiatives remain a key focus. for their hard work, commitment and passion.

enhanced their operational performance. We launched a significant number of new They have contributed significantly 1o the

At the year-end the Group's average Lean score products during 2018 covering a range of progress we have made in recenl years,

increased to 76% compared to 71% at the same | applications. All three divisions have ambitious | am confident that the solid foundations put

point in 2017. Scrap rates. on-time-delivery and plans to continue their focused produst in place in racent years position the Group

inventory managsment all improved and the development strategies in 2019 and beyond. well for the future and | would like to wish all

benefits were evident in the Group's results ) ) - - our employees around the world much success,

in the year. Most importantly. this improved By |ncreasmgly ,‘3,0”?“‘”'”9 New Produgt . :

perfermance provides an important foundation ! Sfo\’:;gsg;ex8'nf'}gigVssnﬁgce\éaize;gg:;eszpg Outlook

forur nefeased compeiveness and ackressable markets and re competing i I the frst el of 2019 we expect organlc
segments that wera nol previously accessible, revenues ta be Jower than the same period

Positioning our businesses - in 2018 dug to the phasing of Critical

for growth Business development © Engingering’s order Dook and slowing market

In the past four years much has been done Alongside our organic growth initiatives, targeted . gemand i the Industrial Automatien sector in

to simplfy the way our busingssss operate acquisitions that meet our ciearly defined and - precision Engineering. Margins are expected

and make them more efficient. disciplined criteria continue to represent 8 core 1 g pe tyroadly similar. supported by our operational

We have nvesied heavly I new systems part Of|t0ur|?tralt‘egy‘dwe ;E:k 02&“”“:'“&{5 ﬂat ; nititives and an improved performance from

2l processes wch are essanlal 1S GO0 gotver suetaiae long-torm wrofitable qrasth, | oron Enainesring. fesuls for e ful ycar

; ‘ . liver sustainable long-term profitable growth. | il also reflect the benefits of restructuring

Is to deliver fong-term sustainable growtn. As was tha case with the acquisition of Bimba and our normal second-half hias

An increasing number of qur businesses in Jaﬂuary 2018, we aim to engage early with v

are upgrading their core IT systems to modern  aotential partners with the ambition of securing

divisional platforms that automatically manage
busingss processes to deliver consistent,
accurate data. As a result, we have better visibility
across the production process and we are able

to manage our day-to-day operations more cost
and time effectively and make our product and
service offering more competitive.

oreferred buyer status ahead of any formal
process being started.

Our people

This is my final IMI Chief Executive’s review.
Choosing to leave IMI has been & tough
decision, but the time is now right te hand
Across all of our operations we have embedded over {o a successor to continue the Group's

disciplined and efficient processes, including development. Roy will de a great job lzading
New Product Development and Value Engineering. the business through its next phase of
These censistent processes support our development and growth.

continuous improvement culiure and help
ensure that our investments ultimately deliver
an earlier and greater return.
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1 Collaboration between divisiofhg ™
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Snd openaional capabibitios
ol the Group woe contintie to
Fooe o oy the Tollowing key
strategic enablors.

Maintaining financial discipline
As we execute our strategy to deliver acceierated
growth, we continue to maintain financiai
discipline, Capital is allecated fo drive organic
growth, maintain a progressive dividend policy
in line with earnings and to fund acquisitions.
Whilst retaining flexibility 1o develop MI's full
potential, we continue to focus on maintaining
an efficient balance sheet and, in the event of
us having cash in excess of the Group’s current
needs, we will return this excess capital to
shargholders. Through the Iife of our five year
plan we will work to maintain net debt to EBITDA
of no more than two times through the cycle.

Net debt to adjusted EBITDA
2017 0.9x 2018 1.3x

Working together as one
simplified IMI

To harness the Group’s full potential we remain
delermined to maximise the oppertunily that
our scale provides us by acting as one IMI.
Establishing core processes has provided

a strong platform that underging a framework
for creating consistent Group—wide standards
and behaviours. The impact goes far beyond

manufacturing with industry best practice

now consistently adopted across back-office
functicns. The Group intranet is a catalyst for
knowledge and best practice transfer and the
conferences and Leadership Programmes help
build a strong and collaborative environment
across the whole of IMI.

Investing in Group-wide IT and
infrastructure

Since 2014 we have significantly enhanced

our IT enabled business capabilities. We are
standardising the ERP systems, business
processes and reporting in cur Divisions to
provide us with access to accurate and consistent

| data. As a result. we have better visibility across
the productien envirenment, can manage our
" day-to-day operations mare efficiently and

make our product and service offerings
more competitive.

IMI Hydrnic Engineering rofled out new systems
across Its sales and service offices in Spain, ltaly,
Switzerland Austria, Czech Republic, Australia
and the Netherlands and also installed a new
system at its plant in Fullinsdorf in Switzerland,
Today 50% of the division's plants and over
40% of its sales and service offices sharg

a commoen IT system.

Qver the past three years, the Group has also

- gstablished a solid foundation of IT security
| capahilities and canfrels across the busingss.
This investmant will continue to identify and

remediate new and emerging threats through

a 24/7 Security Operations Centre. The Group
policies include a requirement that all businesses
maintain a robust backup of all critical operating
data 50 business continuity can be maintained
gven in the gvent of a system failure.

The delivery of standardised ERP solutions in gach
of our divisions continues to be & high priority in
terms of major systems investment. In IMI Critical
Engineering, implementations have taken place in
China, Germany, Switzerland and [taly, IMI Hydronic
Engineering has rolled out new systems in its
Swiss factory and its sales offices in Switzerland,
Austria. Netherlands, Czech Republic. Spain and
Italy. IMi Precision Engineering has finalised ERP
solutions at its core US sites and will commence
ERP implementaticns in Asia during 2019,

! |7 infrastructure investment extends far beyond

rmanufacturing. In Enginsering and New Product
Development, IMI Precision Engineeting’s

. new AutoDesk capability allows engingers to

collaborate on procuct design and specification
regardless of where they are located, enhancing
our service through driving out complexity.

This globalisation of the dwision's design capability
generates several benefits including making the
design process more efficient and cost-effective.
Most importantly, it also makes it easier to develop
the optimal product far a specific market and
localise the manufacturing process accordingly.

Innovative marketing campaigns and digital
communication tools in both IMI Precision
Engineering and IM! Hydrenic Enginesring are

- improving the quality of contact we have with
+ our customers and allowing them better access to

our products and services, much more efficiently.
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Strategic growth
priorities

Our strategic plan to
accelerate growth is focuseds.
on four key growth pyg

Capitalising on Improving
significant organic operational
growth opportunities performance

Our ptrotity bs o capttalise on Qur sell-hedp Lean jouney
endd-markets where we already is underpinned by the

are, or have the potential 1o be, engaguinent of management
i a leading position. and employees at all levels,

03 0
Turn to page 20 Turn 1o page 22



Increasing investment
in New Product
Development

All three divisions are
increasingly delivering on

our promise to introduce great
new products and soclutions for
our customers, more quickly
and more effectively than

ever before.

B
Turn to page 74

Y]

Expanding our

addressable markets

through targeted
acquisitions

Beyond our existing busmess
portfolio, we have the potential
to expand through the carelui
execution of value enhancing
acquisitions.

&
Twrn to page 26
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Capitalising on
significant growth
opportunities
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New facility — Japan

Over the last four years IMI Critical Engineering has
successfully repositioned its business. In particular,
its global footprint has been realigned and today

the division has world-class manufactuning faciltes
in the heart of the industry's fastest growing
markeats. Building on the success of its new facilities
in China, India and South Korea, in 2018 the division
committed to relocating its existing factory in West
Kobe, Japan to a new purpose-built facility near
Kobe Airport, Aside from offering a much more
efficient layout, the new plant will focus on the
design and manufacture of large valves and
hydraulic actuating systems — products that the
existing facility 1s not equipped to manufacture.
This investment will enhance IMI Critical
Engineering’s offering in the attractive
Petrochemical market in Japan.

' Strengthening our position in

" production capacity to meet the growing demand
. for IMI Precision products in the Indian market.

growing markets

IMI Precision Engineenng is contimuing to
strengthen its presence in growth markets around
the world, During 2018 the division completed
the relogation of its plant in Noida near New Delhi
to a new purpose-built facility, nearby. The new
facility. which 15 three times the size of the old
plant provides & core low cost manufacturing
and engineering capahility to Pracision
Engineering's. already competitive Asian
operations. Our New Delhi operations include sales
and customer service, production, distribution and
a technical centre, and provides increased

Capitalising on growing

- market demand

The global underfioor heating market 1s expected
to grow at a compound annual growth rate of

| nearly 5% over the next five years. driven by
" a number of factors including increasing legislation

amed at reducing carbon emissions. IM) Hydronic
Engineering's product portfolic includes a range

- of products that control underfloor heating

systems. including manifolds which incorporate

I' the division's Automalic Flow Control {{AFC')

technalegy. This unigue AFC technelogy ensures
thal the correct flow rates of water are delivered
to each room thereby ensuring precise
temperature control, In the last 12 menths the

* division has wen a number of significant contracts

to supply its underfloor heating products and

_ technology to both new build and refurbishment

nrojects across Furope. In particular a number
of municipal and social housing authorifies across

- gentral Europe, including Austria & Germany,

have instalied M Hydronic Engineesing's AFC
technology solution to help save ensrgy across
their building stock.
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1 Precr<ion Engincerng's new Indian
manufaciuring facilty i Nowa, india.

2 IMI Critical Enaineering’™s news Lean factory
i iz will supp e regundgl gruowth.

3 Hydrome Engineering’s leading underfloar
heating manilold, Dynacon Eclhipse. not enly
helps 1o <ave coergy in homes, but 1s abso
easy Lo astall.

4 Cardboard engineering in aclion. with &
seabe replica of Prec 1 Enopneenng -
new Indan manuatacturing facildy.

L Hydrome Engineerng’s underfigor heasting
solutions are providing comfort 1o home
awners and lenants acrass Condral Europe.
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Improving operational
performance

A e B evie hiowe ot bosmess oo aporate ae ore bietlen ubthsing
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Better operational ' Enhancing Bimba’s Embedding the voice of the

performance enhances operational performance customer in our operational i
customer offering | . processes

Across the Group we have continued o optimise the \ We compieted the acquisition of Bimba in i MI Hydronic Engineering's facilities in Glkusz

use of Obeya, the visual tool which facilitates project ' January and shortly thereafter launched a Lean i Poland. and Brezice. Slovenia were two of the .
managerment by bringing together multiple work - implementation programme to begin the process first plants in the Group to achieve world-class :

of transforming the operaticnal perfermance
across Bimba's eight sites. The first assessment

operational benchmark performance, The division’s
stftective application of Lean within its production

streams and encouraging collaborative working
practices. The IMI Remosa team in Italy is now using

Obeya 10 manage its aftermarket business more  process slarted in March where Bimba's facilities is now being extended across its sales
effectively. In particular, current and future field . operations achieved a 19% Lean score, Al the * offices and distribution hubs fo ensure that !
service workload, together with field enginesring | end of 2018, this score had improved significantly . customer requirements are consistently deliverad,

capability and availability, is now clearly mapped 1o to 27%. In particular the business' accident Additionally. the IMI Hydronic Engineering senior
ensure that the appropriate engineering service is rates have failen by 86% and more generally a gperations team now meet regularly with sales
available when required. As a result, the time taken . conlinuous improvement culture is now becoming teams and customers out In the field, to better

to identify and malch the appropriate service embedded across the Bimba business, Bimba's understand their needs and collaborate on projects
enginger 1o each job has reduced by 62% and University Park site underwent an accelerated 0 address any customer ISsues or opportunities
service engineers, spares and tocls are more transformation and improved their assessment which might arise. One such project focussed
effectively utilised. . score from 20% to 44% in under 10 months. on improving our quality processes to drive

down average response times and has reduced
unresolved complaints by 85% in the final
quarter of 2018.

74% 75% 78%

Lean score up 50% Lean score up 42% Lean score up 41%
from first assessment - from first assessment




1 Individual valve quality check at Hydronic
Engineering's plant in Ljung, Sweden.

Z IMI Remosa's world-class Hydraulic Power
Contro| Units enable romoto monitorinn
10 ensure gptimised plant perdormance
for our customers.

3 Bimba's IntelliSense is an industry
4.0 product that integrates directly into
pheumatic systems, enabling predictive
intelligence.

4 Five Hydronic Enginecring sites now have
a Lean score above 70

5 IMI Remosa has produced leaner designs
enabling their praducts Lo deliver significant
reliability and operational mprovements.
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Value Engineering delivering

Industry 4.0 at the centre of ’
competitive advantage

- New Product Development

Value Engineering is a core component of the Digitisation is at the centre of IMI Pregision
division's New Product Development activities and. Engingering’s Mew Product Development
over the last two years, our enhanced skifls and * process where investment is being focused
capability in this area have significantly improved | on product control and data monitoring.
our competitiveness. Despite challenging market This in essence, allows our producls to be |
conditions, since 2016 IMI Critical Engineering has used as integrated components in 4 customers’
won nearly half a billion pounds of new contracts connected application,
through the application of Value Engineering tocls
and processes, On average, a 15% cost reduction
for our customers has been delivered. Inciuded in
the division's 2018 contract wins was an order for
IMI Remosa to provide a package of products for
installation in a Spanish oil refinery which was
heing refurbished. The product package inciudsd
control systems. actuators and slide valves, which
operate together in extreme temperatures of up lo
980°C. These products control and shut down the
flow of liquids and gases during the critical “crude }
|
|

+ During the year the division expanded its portfolio

* of tugh performance, platform and bespoke
products which offer enhanced digital capability
and connectivity. New connected products include
a range of electric actuators which are expacted
to faunch in Spring 2019 at Hannover Messe,

the world (eading technology trade fair.

Digitat technology is providing a competitive
dynamic in IMI Precision's commercial activities.
The division's IMI Norgren Express™ App, which
enables customers to find and huy products
quickly and easily using their smartphone,

is now available worldwide. This efficient and

. effective digitised custemer service, which
provides access to over half a million parts,

is enhancing our customer support offering.

oil to fiquid fuels” conversion process. Using Value
Engineering, IMI Remosa was able to re-develop
its products which significantly reduced welding
and other manufacturing costs and created

a compelling solution for the customer at a
tompetitive price.

Maintaining our position at

' the forefront of innovation

Ui the last five years IMI Hydronic £ngineering
i has launched numerous new products, many

of which incorporate software thal aliows them

~ 1o be digitally enabled and connected to other

components and systems, This software is
developed by the division's dedicated in-house

| Electronic Research & Development team which

focuses on creating solutions to satisfy customer

demand and mazintain IM| Hydronic Engineering's

leading position at the forefront of innovation.

During the year the division continued to expand

its digitai product portfolio. In December we

extended our existing marke! leading TA-Slider

actuator range to include 4 number of new

products suitable for smaller applications such i
as ceiling cooling. These new actuators, which
open and cloge valves to control the flow of
water in HVAC systems, connect to building
management systems and gather Jarge amounts
of data ultimately used to drive energy and
cost efficiencies.



1 Discipline in design with operator input
ensures successful competitive products.
2 |MI FAS launched the new Microsol MS-E
at the Mcdica 2018 fair in Dusseldorf.
3 IMI Critical's strong roputation means
custarmers work with cur businesses
2 40 gevelon products that improve
provesses.
extended TA-Slider digital actuator
was developed across four different
by Hydronic Engineering R&D teams,
Norgren's new electric actuator will be
d i 2019.
fmmch, TA-Sliders have been installed
Tindreds of buildings world-wide,

£ utl ll\ﬂNorg'nn Express app.
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Strategic growth pr|or|t|es

Expanding our ©
addressable markets
through targeted acq“iSiti°“S
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Our acquisition strategies for the divisions are:
| |
| :

|
| |

IMI Critical Engineering i IMI Precision Engineering | IMI Hydronic Engineering

Within I Crifical Engineering, focus remains on \ As IM's Jargest division, I Precision Engineeringis | For IMI Hydronic Engineering. we believe that

extending the division's rcach into new, adfacent . also the division that offers the greatest potertial for | an effective way to expand the business in
markets and applications 1o caplure a greater share ' a mare significant acquisition. A number of potertial | new geographies 15 to acquire businesses in

of customer spend. Such an expansion might partners in the market are of a larger size and © our desired locations that have similar strengths
include severe and semi-severg applications and match cur criteria of cultural fit and combination \ 10 those we enjoy N oUr own, Care regions.

Those target businesses tend o be smaller,
often privately-owned enterprises. The most likely
valug to be generated from such a combination
would be derived from the synergies available
by sharing complementary routes to market
and product ranges.

could also involve extending our geographical logic. Given the size of the market and IMUs strength
footprint. IMI Critical Engineering's capabilities in of process and market expertise, we are confitent
Value Engineering and New Product Development in our atulity to successfully deliver value from an
would support value creation in any completed acquisition in this industry. The advancement of
aequisition. Many of the potential acguisitions in the Bimba integration in 2018 provides further
this segment are small and mid-sized businesses confidence of the significant potential achievabie
with a specific market niche and would fit well into through consolidation in this market.

the i global network and culture,

This feedback from one of our customers attests
to the success of the acquisition and integration
of Bimba:

“The acquisition of Bimba by IMI plc brings
together fwo of the most recognised brands
in the industry. Bimba is very well knoun as ‘
a leader in aetuators with extensive product
options und a willingness to ereate unigue ]
solutions for even one customer. Combining
the Bimba and IMI brands solidifies IMI as ]
a market leader in the pnewmnatics industry \
|
1

as well as in electric and hydrautic. This
aequisition has put the industry on notice that |
IMT is serious about being a solution provider |
Sfor pneumatic and overall motion products

on a global level.”

Brendon Connelly
Air inc, US industrial distributor



1 The Bimba tirand holds strong prommence
among the North Amcrican market for
Industrial Automation

2 Parts ate checked Tor qualty o they pas
theguah production al Bunba s Unversaly
Park. lllimors taciity m the USA.

3 Manufactured components nndergo stoct
quality contrelmeosores ot Bimbii.

4 Bimb.a's PneuMoment '™ pneumti
actuater s designed Lo move hoavy loads,

A machini-t chocks pheamitic ictaator
rod gundes tor dimensional contormanae
at Bimb.a.

uensnpeaUl |

MIINIY BMNENS

[
<
o
<
w
o
o
9
=
3
(£
=]
w
5
]
@

SIUBWAIRIS eIoURUL -




28 ~ IMIplc

IMI

Critical Engineering

WA Chiticat Brncreerning s oo
‘-;ui; ‘Esv s thiat coabile vitod :73!(75§_§3f ad process

st h sty if-'h by anyed
iEsm uf cteann, es ared Boode iy hiareh onviroloenids and :
to vribadand fe rn; SOH

mbianive o conostve eycolisad operations.

1 Performance

In 2018 the division continued to experience a
mixed trading envirenment in some of its most
important markets. Value Engingering and New
Product Development programmas continugd
1o provide competitive levers which nave enabled
us to outpace the market. Our continuing high
order win-rate indicates that we have been
capturing more of the available projects than
our competitors

Full year order intake at £652m {2017 £658m)
was flat ¢n an organic basis and, as expected,
included a strong second half recovery. The
Value Engineering process, which is now fully
embedded within the division and used on all
New Construction quotes of scale, supported the
delivery of £180m or 60% of New Construction

~ orders in the year.

Key achievements

» Value Engineering secured £180m of
new orders and underpinned excellent

order win-rates

» Further sliccess in securing new
business in adjacent markets

» Profit growth supported by successiul
restructuring programme Strong order growth from Water contrasted with
softer market conditions elsewhere. HIPPS orders
were alse ahead of 2017, partially offsetting lower
Upstream and Midstream orders. Aftermarket
orders were 11% higher and reflected a 22%
incréase in upgrades and a 6% increase in parts,
. when compared to the prior vear. At the year-end,
\ the order book was £474m (2017 £510m) with
margins slightly higher, compared with 2017.

Revenues of £682m {2017 £648m) were 5%
higher on an adjusted basis and, after excluding

| £6m of adverse foreign exchange and £3m from
dlsposals were 7% higher on an crganic basis.
Segmental operating picfit of £88.3m (2017;
£84.0m} was 5% higher cn an adjusted pasis and
€% higher on an organic basis. Margins were flat
versus 2017, reflecting the division’s ongoing work
to counter softer markets with the benefits from
restructuring and Value Engineering.

» On-time and on-budget ERP
implementation across fourteen sites

» Increased average Lean score 10 74%

Lean scores improved significantly in the year
from 70% to 74% and our core customer
satisfaction metrics also showed continued
progress, The division progressed its long-term

r/@ Find cut more” www.iml-critical.com
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Operatronal review
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footpnm reorganisation which has resulted

in the closure or transter of thineen lower growih
* operations. These initiatives delivered £12m

| of benefit in 2018 and have strengthened the

\ division's competitive position by reaiigning its

| manufacturing footorint with customers in highet
* growth markets.

‘ In add:tion te the product and cperational

i investments, the division continued its programme
of ERP ioll-out. This system is now fully embeaded

1 in fourteen of IMI Critical Engineering’s sites.

Outlook

Based on current order bogk phasing and the

© comparatively large Petrochemical delveries in
garly 2018. we expect first half organic revenues
and profits to be lower when compared to 2018.
Results for the full year are expected to reflect

' a more favourable second half phasing and

the benefits from restructuring.




World-class engineering expertise,
innovative technologies and reliable
cost effective solutions are at the heart
of IMI Critical Engineering's customer
offering. During the year these key
attributes were key enablers to the
division’s success at winning a diverse
range of significant contracts,

In September, IMI Truflo [taly and IMI Critical
China won a new order 10 supply pneumatic
actuated ball valves for a petrechemicat plant
in Palian, China. The plant, which is owned
hy Hengli Petrochemical. processes purified
terephthalic acsdl " PTA ;. wiich 15 used

o produce a range of materids nelathng
lexliles ani toal and drnk prsckaging

Previously Hengli ifelrochemical had avearded
contracts to other businesses within the

IMI Critical Engingering division including

IMI Z&J and IMI Remosa. Prior knowlcdge

and experience of IMI's technical engineering
capabiiities, our producis and customer service,

helped IMI Truflo Italy secure the Dalian contract.

Working closely wilh Invista, the company that
licenses the PTA technology to the Dalian plant,
W Truflo ltaly developed customised ball valves
capable of pperating wilh extremely viscous and
corrosive fluids. The technicat specilication and
know-how associaled with 1he produdt’s design
were originated at IMI Trullo Rena's plant in
Belgium, and then transferred 1o IMI Truflo ltaly.

Hengli's plant ine Dalicn, China,
s one of e arorld s fargest
Petrochemical operations.

at the hear! )
new quotdiet tesign
procedures. Great new
products at lower costs

has increased our success
rates which protect product
margins.”

Roy Twite
Divisional Managing Director -
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Precision Engineering

Operational review

AL e aon Bngmeoning Cpcciabees o thie desdun i
Brraicbos bone Shin oty ana Bund conboot oo hinologios
webioie o cngan sheed and arcliabiliy e cesonbinod 1o
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Performance | world-class manufacturing and engingering

Adjusted revenuc

£916m

Adjusted operating profit

£153.2m

Key achievements

» On-time and on-budget completion
of world-class facility in India

» Commercial Vehicle contract wins
support growth

» Improved undertying margin despite
cost pressures

» Increased average Lean score
to 75%

» Bimba integration progressing to plan

/®] Find out more. www.imi-precision.com

IMI Precision Engineering had another year of good
progress and delivered solid growth across all
verticals and regions. Revenues of £916m (2017:
£797m) were 16% higher on an adjusted basis and.
atter excluding £10m of adverse foreign exchange
and £88m from the Bimba acquisiton, were 6%
higher cn an organic basis.

Strong Industrial Automation sales in the first half

of 2018 slowed in the third quarter and declined
slightly in the fourth, teaving the full year up 2%
when compared to 2017, Commercial Vehicle related
sales of £196m reflected stronger than anticipated
markets and were 8% higher in the year, despite
£8m of contract compietions, European Commercial
Vehicle revenues were slightly higher whilst North
America grew by 15%. Energy sales were 16%
higher than 2017 while Life Sciences and Rail

© were 12% and 14% higher, respectively,

Segmental operating profit of £153.2m (2017:
£133.5m) was 15% higher on an adjustad basis and.
* after excluding £2m of adverse foreign exchange and
£7m from the Bimba acquisition, was 11% higher on
an organic basis. Operating margins of 16.7% (2017
16.9%) reflect the impact of the Bimba acquisition

in the year. Excluding Bimba, underlying marging
compared favourably to last year at 17.7%.

Good progress has been made with the integration
of Bimba into Precision Engingering’s North American
operations, We have also accelerated some of our

i plans for Bimba to improve its operations and IT
infrastructure, in readiness for the opportunities

for growth and margin improvement.

Operationally, the division continued to make solid
progress and the combination of Lean, New Product
Development and cost-reduction initiatives all
contributed to a good performance in the year.
We also completed the relocation of our Indian
operation to a new and larger facility in New Delhi
which was officially opened in October, This new
plant expands Precision Engineering's low-cost,

capabilities and enhances the divisicn's ability
to serve our rapidly expanding market positions
across Asia.

The implementation of Lean throughout the division
Fas continued to make excellent progress. Al the
end of 2018 Precision Engineenng’s Lean score
increased fo 75% comparsd to 70% at the end

of 2017,

Cur focus on New Product Development to enhance
our market competitiveness gathered momentum.

+ The addition of integrated intelligence and

connectivity across our product range remains
an important element of that strategy. In 2018,
new products were introduced across the entire
range and represenied an increase in the vitality
index {sales from new praducts mtraduced in the
last three years) to 12%.

In-sourcing actions already completed combined i
with improved market conditions have helped |
increase utilisation in the year. Localisation and

low-cost manufacturing transfers continue to

reduce Izad times and improve customer service

and competitiveness.

In addition te product and operational investments,

the diision continues to implemant its new ERP
systern and now has a world-class, fully integrated
IT system which is now planned to be rolled-out

" in our Asian operations.

Outlook

The industrial cutlook has become more volatile
with leading indicators pointing to continued but

- slower growth in the Industrial Automation and

the Commercial Vehicle markets in 2019,

Based on current market conditions, we expect
first hall organic revenues to be sfightly higher,
with broadly flat margins, when compared to

the first haif of 2018, The benefits of new product
launches and operational improvements are
expected to support improved results for the full year.



The Rail industry is highly competitive.
Reliability, safety and cost control are vital =
and the need to maximise operational
efficiency is a key priority. IMI Precision
Engineering, with more than 30 years’
experience in the rail seclor, provides a
range of products and technologies which
enable rolling stock to operate effectively.

In particular the division's innovalive and
patented AMT air dryer system removes
moisture and impurittes from compressed air
ensuring that pneumatically operated systems,
such as doors. suspension and brakes operale
rgliably and safety, Tho AMT system offers
market-leading levels of perfermance

and reliability.

During 2018 demand for the AMT system
continued te grow and M1 Precision Engingering
won a number of new erders including a
contract to supply Melro Traing Melbourne Pty
Ltd in Australia wth 270 AMT air dry systems
and a major OEM ordnr covesing approximately
90 new Metro trains from Bianding in China,

A constantly improving produclion process
has been requircrd 1o hel the division meetl
increasing demant. citiciently, At the Legds
facility whore tha AMT <ysiem is manufactured,
a fudly engaged tearm and their passion for
continuous improvement @nd Lean have
detivered the required improvements.

Lead times have heen reduced. inventery
management improved and standardisation
of the build process has reduced the
production cycle time.

Adetro Trafns Melhourne Prg Lid in

Sstradiccienlf be supphied weith 276
AMT aiv ey sypsteins,

“2018 was a year of further
suceess for IMF Precision
Enginecering. Greal new
products. improved
operational performance and
the addition of Bimbawwere
all highlights in the year.”

Massimo Grassi
Ui st Waeaging T

mainoy mbBaeng uelanpoy|
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Hydronic Engineering

pDown 1%

Adjusted revenue

£309m

Adjusted operating profit

£52.0m

Key achievements

» Second half margins improved to
18.4% (2017: 15.9%)}

» Successfully re-established
foundations for sustainable and
profitable growth

» New product launches continue
to build sustainable competitive
advantage

» Maintained excellent Lean score
of 78%

» On-time on-budget implementation
of divisional ERP

/C] Find out more” www.imi-hydronic.com

Performance

{ IMI Hydronic Engineering's 2018 performance

was a fale of two halves with the first half
being focused on the actions necessary to
deliver significant impravements in the second

I half of the year. The actions taken successfully

recovered rmarging and consolidated the

- division's position as a market leader in

our core geographies and sectors,

Recovering substantially from the decling
experienced in the first half of the year, revenues
on an adjusted basis of £309m (2017, £312m)

- were 1% lower than 2017 and. after excluding

£3m of adverse foreign sxchange, were flat on
an organic basis. The result was affected by
the actions taken to return to satisfactory
margins, including the closure of a loss-making
service business and the decision to avoid
product and project sales that generated

" unaceceptable margins.

Segmental operating profit of £52.0m (2017
£48.7m) was 5% higher on an adjusted hasis and,
after excluding £1m of adverse foreign exchange,
6% higher on an organic basis. Margins improved
10 16.8% (2017 15.9%} for the full year, with

a significant improvement in the second half

to 18.4% (2017 15.9%).

I our core territories market shares have remained
strong. Qur key distributors, instaliers and specifiers
have responded positively to our refreshed prodict
offering, constantly Improving customer service
and ongeing commitment to customer support.

New product investment continued and contributed
£69m, or 22% of sales, in the year. The division aisc
maintained its excellent Lean score of 78%. with the
Potish plant once again achieving the highest Lean

score in the Group.
| The rob-out of the new JD Edwards ERP system

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Operational review

Outlook

Based on current market condstions organic revenue
is expected to grow in the first half of 2019 with
margins slightly improved when compared to the

- first half of last year. Results for the full year are

. expected to refiect the benefils of our 2018

+ reslructuring and eur normal second halt bias,

continued throughout 2018 with the system now live i

in thiree manufaCturing businesses and thirteen of the
divisicn's sales offices.




“Our in depth hydronic

expertence in many varied
. projects around the world
“and our ability to share}th

LoIONPOLY) |

IMI Hydronic Engineering has a long and
successiul track record of working closely
with designers and consultants to create
some of the most energy efficient and highly
successful commercial and residential
developments in the world.

malray oibayens

These credentials. ingluding the division's work
on the Maracana Stadium in Brazil. which
hosted the 2014 World Cup final. helped IM}
Hydronic Engineering wii conlracts o design
and install temperature control systeins in
four of the World Cup 2018 stadia. The systems
installed at each stadim, including the

St. Pefersburg Stadium which has a seating
capacily 0i 67.000, incorporated preducts from
IMI Poeumatex, 1M} TA and IMI Heimeier, three
ol the division's market leading brands. In
addition, through effective cross-divisional
collaboration with IMI Precision Engineering.
Norgen solengid valves werg alse incorporated
inte each femperature control syslem,

AOUBLIBNOL) 912100100

Four Ruedun zuis World Cup
staddimm s were fitted weithy Hydeonie

T e products (o provide
qreal femperature control.




Corporate
responsibility f

Our ambition is for IMI to become a world-class
business — a truly great company that leads its
marketplace, that thinks long-term, that delivers
sustainable value to all stakeholders and operates
all aspects of its business in a responsible way.

To help ensure we achieve this ambition we focus on:

Creating a positive Attracting the best
and collaborative people and developing
place to work and engaging with

our employees
We ore cormmitied to creating Oin performance is dependent
2 positive and collaborative on developing, retaining and
veorkplace where our culture is recruiting the best people with
underpinned by core values and the most relevant skills and
behaviours which promote fair experience who are aligned
and eihical working practices. with our values and behaviours

and who can contribute {o
delivering our strategic ambitions.

J (d
Turn o page 36 Turn to page 36




Prioritising health
and safety

The health and salety of ow
employees, contractors and
visitors is a primatry priority for
the Group. Qur combined L.ean
and Health and Safely audits
uncderpin Group-wide rigour
and conlinuous improvement
throughout our operations.

J
Turn to page 40

where IMIs fnvestmen! together
eeith talented employees s
created o world-cluss husiness,

L =

Ensuring that
we minimise our
environmental impact

We have a responsibility to
minimise the envircnmental
impact of out day-io-day
operations. Qur products help
our customers operate their
systems and processes safely,
cleanly and cost effectively.

(d
Turn to page 42
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Creating a positive and
collaborative workplace

We e conunitted to aroating o postive and collaborative workplace
vilbrere Hhie oo o s i piinined by cone vadtee oo o behavioo s which
prronnete ol and Cthicsbveorbing proctices Notb andy ane we convinoed
thid crenting this culture s the nohd hing to dol bot i alse ennbilos pg
pocg and relaiming great people
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Culture

We have a clear purpose and a well-sstablished
set of values and behaviours that help shape

our culiure and outline the standards and conduct
expected of everyone across the Group. Our valuss
and behaviours are embeddad in all our internal
processes and procedures, including our

Cede of Conduct, and they are integral 10 the

" “The IM}Way", which defings how we do business.

2\

“We deliver GREAT solutions for pur
We employ around 11,000 people around the world customers tackling the world’s wmost
demanding cngincering challenges.”

Qur mindset X}

Our purpose

Breakdown of employees by geography Breakdown of employees by division

Row r—— -
2ny v Weslern Eurupe Iy W, . . »
UK I IMI Criticat
e e i G Engincering GREAT togcther,
2970 B
Emrerang IMI Procizion
Frigmeenn:
Meriats e Our values

1% o |

. I BAl Hydrarue, !
N Enginesnng i
Amer ca 163 |
A7 i

Integrity Excellence innovation Colfaboration

UK Gender Pay Gap Summary for the year ending 5 April 2018*

Human rights, equality, diversity
UK Gender Pay Gap 2018 2017 and inclusion

Mean Gap 32.8% 36.5%

We are committed to creating a diverse and
Median Gap 21.7%  25.1% inclusive working environment where everyone

. ‘ ) . ) is treated fairly and with respect.
* As highlighted in the graphic above, we are a global business employing around 11,000

pecple arourd the world. The above summary only covers our 1,046 UK employees. We are a signatory to the UN Global Compact
Further IT‘IfDrmHlIOﬂ about cur UK gender pay gap, togetherywth an e;pl_exna1|0n of - which establishes standards for human rights.
how these figures were calculated, is provided on our website: www.imiplc.com. ) . .

labour practices and anti-corruption. We also

deploy our own policies and procedures, which
set out how people should be treated and how
we should conduct our busingss.



We believe il is essential that across all parts

of our business we employ people from gitterent
backgrounds and cultures to serve our global
footprint and our diverse gustomer base,

To ensure that our workplace is incluslve and
that all employees and workers are treated fairly
in an environment which is free from any form
of discrimination, we operate a Group-wide
Diversity and Inclusion Policy. We implement this
policy using a number of mechanisms including:

= the principies that underpin our Diversity and
Inclusion Policy are embedded in all our human
resource processes and procedures which
are regularly reviewed for both appropriateness
ant competitiveness;

» We run diversity awareness training
programmes, including an E-learning module
{translated into core languages} which
employees can access via our giohal intranet:

» when creating shortlists for mternal and external
vacancies, we insist that external recruiters
provide diverse shorthsts:

» as part of our internal management
performance process, each Divisional Managing
Director is set and further cascades obyectives
and local metrics aimed at improving diversity
and inctusion in their division;

» we are committed to employing and developing
{ocal employees in our geographies to align with
our customers and the communities in which
we work. As a result, we have a very small
and focused expatriate population, and

» we have pitoted workshops to promote diversity
of thought across key areas of our business
includmg in relation to product development
and innovation,

Gender mix across the Group™

~ of Conduct is provided reguiarly and is reinforced

37

Ethical behaviour ‘ Community activities

We recognise our responsibility to the communities
around the world in which we operate. We support
arange of local charities and contributz funding

to organisations who provide emergency support
incrisis situations. During our annual 'IMI Way Day'
our employees across the Group spend time
supporting a local cammunity charity or project.
These initiatives contribute to the local community.
help bulild trust and remforce our team building
and cellaborative approach.

It is essential that we run our business in an ethical
way with the highest standards of integrity.

As part of their indugtion, every empioyee who
joins the Group receives training in relation to
the IMI Way and our Code of Conduct which
covers, amongsl other things, ant-bribery and ‘
anti-corruption. Refresher training on our Code

through our annual IMI Way Day, as well as

face-to-face and on-lne traming sessions.

During the year. 7.000 employees undertook an
online training module in anti-bribery and around
4,000 participated in a similar programme
covering competition law. In addition, we have
a series of policies and procedures including
regular on-site legal and compliance reviews.

standards and regulatory compliance. These are
embedded in our risk assessment processes.

+ further details of which are provided on page 46.

. We encourage all employees to report to ther

© manager any incident that is not in keeping with our
' values and behaviours, We operate a confidential
" indapendant hotline in 12 languages, which allows

anonymous reporting. Hotline activity is reviewed
gach month by the Group's Ethics and Compliance
Committee. An overview was presented to the Audit
Committee in 2018 and will go tc the full Board in
2019, All reports are investigated thoroughly and,

~ where required, approprigte action is taken 10

Female Female % Male Male %
All 3281 28% 8,617 72
employees
Managers 237 20% 921 &0%
Senior 124 19% 518 &1vg
managers '
Board 3 33N 6 67

* Including agency and contractors,

" The WISE Campaign -
-Having a diverse warkforce is essential
to delivering our business goals, During

* the year the Group joined the WISE )

. Campaign, a UK initiative that is focused -
on increasing the participation, contribution -
and success of wamen in science,

" technelogy, engineering and mathematics

(‘STEM"). Beinp part of WISE helps

to demonstrate our commitment fo
encouraging gender diversity and we

aim to be a preferred employer for anyone
looking to build a career in engineering. .

resolve issues fully and guickly, During 2018, 49
cases were reported via the hotline which compared
to 52 in 2017 and 48 in 2016.

We conduct advanced due diligence on our
business partners including our agents and
distributors. We do this using a software tool
that covers a range of argas including imtial
and ongoing background checks, screening
against sanctions lists. a compliance certification
process and the signing of a formal agreement,
In addition, all our businesses carry out checks
{including sanctions screening) to understand
potential customers and 1c identify risks that
may be involvad in supplying to them.

Managing our supply chain

Our commitment to human nghts extends across
our supply chain, We conduct regutar audits to
make sure that chiki or forced labour is not used
in our supply chain and that suppliers” workplaces
are safe. If suppliers are unable to comply with
our strict responsible business requirements

we terminate our relationship with them.

We use a combination of general corporate
rasponsibility pelicies and specific supply chain
compliance actions to avoid any potential for
modern slavery in our supply chain. Our full
statement on the Modern Slavery Act and detail
about the steps we take {c ensure that slavery

- and human trafficking do not take place within
~our supply chain or any part of our busingss

is available on our website at; www.imiplc.com.

¢ which are designed t2 help instil the highest ethical

Some of our IM| Way Day
2018 activities

» Planting trees in SriCity, India to
coincide with World Envirohment day.

» Donating bloed in India / raising
funds for medical equipment for a
care home for the elderly.

» Donating bicycles to a charity which
supports neglected and disadvantaged
children, (Farmington, USA).

» Developing an outdoor space to
be used by school children and their
families (Birmingham, UK}.

Promoting science,
technology and engineering
excellence

Dwing 2018 we entered into partnerships
with three museums located near our
headguarters in the Midlands. They all
have links to our engineering heritage
and they are also actively prometing
Science, Technology, Engineering and
Manufacturing. In the year we supported:

-~ Tue Derby
Museum

The Derby Museum of Making's new
Migland Maker Challenge Prize which will
be launched in 2019, Schools and higher
education providers will compete te design
solutions to address environmental and
societal challenges;

The redevetopment of the Ironbridge Gorge
Museum Trust’s Enginuity centre which is
a national design and technology centre
and interactive museum; and

ThinkTank in Birmingham's restoration of
The Smethwick Engine, the world’s oldest
working steam engine.

Srmethwick
Engne n action
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Attracting, developing and
engaging the best people

Thi Grong s contmied Son ey s dependaent Upon odr peoplo. We
Poc outidse the heed Yo st oot aad p el aneal peonte, provide Haet
eeith opportunitiss Lo codtlterene e a postive work envir e

i : i
Bt cupproriing their pereonab and prodesaionsd dovelopanent

v

Recruitment ' Overview of our development and
training programmes

Our graduate programme

Qur performance and ability to exacute our Each year around 30 graduales, predominantly
strategy relies upon recruiting the best people with engineering backgrounds, iain our business.

with the most relevant skills and experience who Recruited from around the world. our graduates
share‘a passiqn for our valu.es anq pehaviours ang | GREAT” programme paﬁicipate ina two—year strugtured programme
are aligned with our strategic ambition. We operate which includes different rotations and involvemnent
a rabust process for selecting and integrating new | Delegates: our leadership group in live projects across the Graup.

employees. We follow the principles embedded Objective: to ensure we have leadership skills

in our Recruitment Policy which aims to ensure across the Group capable of supporting ou strategy Our apprenticeship schemes

our process is fair, transparent and consistent and growth

with our ambition to develop our own talent * Number of participants:
since launch in 2015 around 230

“Leading the Way to Engineering

We operate our apprenticeship schemes in many
of our Furopean based businesses including

and leaders for the future. . peapls including 70 in 2018, . in Germary, UK and Sweden. Around 50 new

] i Targetfor end of 2619 - 300. " apprentices join us each year and for each of them
Devel_opment and succession ‘ we create a career development plan which covers
planning I ) . L | onand off the job training across a range of relevant
At IM{ we have a strong talent pipeline and fraining “Being a GREAT IMI Manager” technical skills.

Here some of our apprentices explain
how their careers have developed

enhange their skills and progress their careers.
We operate a wide ranging platform of tramning
and development programmes designed to

Ohjective: to build a pipeline of management talent

and procedures which enable our employees lo Defegates: newly promoted and existing managers
capable of supporting our strategy and growth

Number of participants: since launch in 2015

increage employee skills across a numper of around 1,150 people including 400 in 2018, NAME AND CURRENT ROLE:
disciplines. During the year the internationally Target for end of 2019 — 1,450, Maria Collins
renownead Brandon Hall Group awarded our Apprentice, Junior
“Leading the Way to Engineering GREAT” \ - . . Applications Engineer,
programme & gold award for exceflence “|MI Learn" ~ our Group-wide [ MIPrecision Engineering
in leadership development. E-training platform Fradley.
In addition to our training and develgpmeant Delegates: all employees across IM| WHY | JOINED:
programmes, all employees are provided with ! QObjective: to provide accessible and effective on-line | wanted to gain workplace skills and experience
on-the-job training and where appropriate, Iraining to suprort training and development across . that! could put inte practice while studying and
personal mentoring. We also operate a IMi globaly - ‘ my inferests in science and problem soiving led
Parformance Management Process to ensure Number of participants: we have 8,000 registered me to chaose & career in engineering. | wanted
that all emiplovees are appraised in a fair and Users on our learaing management system to work at IMI for several reasans, including the
consistent way. This process provides employees continuous improvement culture which provides
with regular opportunities te discuss their e - - iots of opportunities for me to get involved in
objectives and personal development plans IMI Lean”- the key to operational really interesting projects.
during the year, excellence
k ‘ - o MY EXPERIENCE:

) ‘ . Delegates: senior organisalional leaders ' ) e | - .
In line with our amhition to develop our own talent Lo e ] t have gained so many skills including maching
for future leadership roles we set and achieved i I(;?neicn?;;;é% Zt:]ligp shle leaders lo accelerats their . operation, computer aided design, lean and
our targat of 40% for our 2018 leadership group o ergononics. | have also worked on & number of live
interna’ succession rate (32% in 2017). For 2019 m:m[n‘;fam'gig’:;fl 310 peoniz have completed assignments including several factory improvement
we are aiming to improve this further. " Targatfor end of 2019 - 480, 9 ‘ | programmes and a project to design a large-scale

i model for use at a trade fair in Germany. At the
same time, | have gained further qualifications and
have also been able to promote engineering fo
pupils at local schools and careers fairs.




Engagement

Given how important peopie are to our success,
maintaining an active dialogue with thern is
essential. We keep them informed about the
Group's performance and development as
well as specific matters that affect them as
employees. And we listen to their feedback

to identify the key issues that matter to them.

To facilitate this dialogue we operalte a number
of regular and ad hoc mechanisms, some of
which are detailed on this page. In acdition,

in November 2018 Birgit Nergaard, one of our
non-execulive directors, was designated as the
Lirector responsibie for undertaking Board |evel
workforce engagement, In this role Birgit will
participate in our Group management conference
and our European Communications Forum as
well as other events involving employees.

NAME AND CURRENT ROLE:
Nils Nesladek

Trainee Production
Designer, IMI 78,
Germany

WHY | JOINED:
IMI has a reputation for being a good employer
that offers an excellent training programme.
And because the Company recruits quite a
number of apprentices, | knew there would

be a good support network and lots of
oppertunities to share experiences.

MY EXPERIENCE:

| am currently a trainee production designer.
My role covers both product design and
production engineering. Every day we're
leoking to improve our customer offering which
means always evolving what we do and moving
forward. i am impressed by the future focus
of the company and the emphasis on
continuous improvement. | am pleased

fo feel part of a secure, yet constantly
improving work environment.

1 Graduisics from the
© September 2018 intake
attapd inducticn meetings

How we engage with our employees

Forum Engagement

UoIINPoIU| |

IMI Way Day All employees participate in this annual event. Senior management
provide a business update. and employees then have an opportunity
to ask questions and discuss a range of issues, During the day
employees complete an employee engagement survey which covers
thetr views on a number of important business subjects. Survey resulls
are recorded and the data 1s shared with employees, Action plans
are developed and used 10 measure and track progress. Further and
ongoing survey work is conducted where appropriate to maintain
positive momentum.

Group Conference 300 senior employees fram across the Group meet for an update
on strategy and initiatives for the coming year. The agenda includes
a Q&A session with the Executive Directors and Divisional Managing
Directors and the Chairman also addresses participants. Feedback
is gathered during and after the event with the conference’s key
messages and outputs then communicated to all employees.

European Employee representatives from around ten Eurcpean countries meet
Communications regularly with senior management 1o discuss strategic progress and
Forum {"ECF"} performance compared o our key performance objectives,

The discussions cover updates on key initiatives such as IT security,
New Product Development, Lean and Value Engineering. Following
the meeting, minutes and newsletters are produced and used by the
employee representatives to share information with their colleagues.

Town hall meetings  Our Divisional Managing Directors hold quarterly online town hail
meetings covering recent results and current initiatives. Employees
are invited 10 ask questions and provide feedback on their cwn
concerns and/or share best practice on current initiatives.

Pulse sunveys Where required we use quick and effective localised real-time surveys
to gather specific insights from employees. We use the findings o
inform our plans for improvement,

IMI Eye Our cross-divisional magazine is published twice a year and covers
news stories and best practice sharing from arcund the Group.

Group-wide ang Qur global and divisional intranets are used to communicate key
divisicnal intranet developments and share best practice across the Group guickly
and effectively.

In 2018 over 8,900 employees participated in our IMI Way Day
survey. Results were consistent with the encouraging feedback
from previous years. In particular, 71% would recommend IMI
as a good employer to family and friends and 87% are clear
about the key priorities their division is focused on.

MInay Jlalens
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Corporate responsibility

Prioritising health
& safety
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Our proactive approach

Health and safety is our key priority and monitoring and improving our performance is & core metric which
is ambedded in our reparting systems at multiple tevels across the whale of IML All areas of our business
continuously assess their cperations and twice yearly we undertake a formal Group-wide health and
salety audit at every major operation to maniter the progress against our formal improvement actions.
Details of this review process are outlined helow,

Our bi-annual review process

Tirmning Activities Objectives and outputs
November/ Lacal assessment of key » Audit current benchmark scores.
F)ecember ?p?(‘?t‘on?‘l ;nd s_afeiy_r . » idertify business-critical issues,
and areas, focused on business develon improvement actions 1o
May/June” periormance issues and rate pime

of improvement., Undertaken progress and track KP| trends.

by indepeandent IMI Group
or divisional specialst health
and safety experts.

» Agree further improvement activities
with local and divisional leadership.

» Monitor improverment activities.

Publication of Lean - HSE
benchmarking data on
Group intranet.

» Identify commonly recurring
Group-wide hazards.

January and July

» Develop remedial plans to address.

» Share best practice.

* Combined with semi-annual | ean benchmarking reviews,

In line with our established policies and procedures we strive to ensure that accidents are avoided and
that our operations are risk assessed to be as safe as possible All employees. as part of their induction,
receive health and safety training relevant to their role in hine with health, safety and environmental
compliance principles. Further on-site training in refation 1o hazard identification, risk assessment

and action planning is provided to employees engaged in manufacturing operations,

We report, record and investigate every incident requiring first aid. or medical intervention and in addition,
a full root cause investigaiion of every Lost Time Actident ("LTA" is presenied 1o the relevant Divisional
Managing Director. Following & formal review at divisional level, a remediation plan is agreed and
implemented, and safety aferts are issued to sharg lessons leamed and increase safety awareness
across the Group.
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| Progress during the year

During the year ws improved our health and
} safety perdormance in a number of areas:

" » Dunng the year the total number of LTAS reduced

. more than 20% to 18 against 23 in 2017.

| The 2018 figure includes 3 LTAs racorded by
Bimba, which was acguired in January 2018,
The Precision Engineering division is currently
executing a range of plans and nitiatives to
integrate fully Bimba intc their North American
operations and our key priority is to embed the

l IMI hiealth and safety culture and supporting

' procedures acress Bimba's entire business.

i » There has been a slight reduction in the number
of sites reporting zero LTAs {79% compared

with 83% in 2017}, This reflects the restructuring
of IMI Critical Engineering's manufacturing
footprint and the acquisition of Bimba.

. » The LTA frequency rate improved considerably
{26%) in 2018 and across IMI there was 0.8

I LTAs for every million hours worked compared

011102017,

» In 2017, we launched a Group-wide campaign
to prevent hand injuries which were the largest
volume of injuries reported in 2017, In 2018 IMI
Critical Engineering delivered a 65% reduction
in hand injuries and IMI Precision Engineering
and IMI Hydronic Engineering reported reductions
of 30% and 56% respectively.




2018 Health & Safety initiatives

Our passion to continue to improve our health
& safety performance resulted in the launch
¢f a number of new procedures and training
initiatives during the year ncluding "Learning
to See” and "Lock Qut Tag Qut”,

UONINPONL

“Learning to See”

In all our manufacturing operations
management routinely undertake “Gemba
Walks™ — a Lean term used to describe the
detailed observation and identification of
potential hazards and risks. During 2018
we launched our “Learning 1o See” training
programme which equips our operational
management with further knowledge and
skills to make their Gemba Walks even
more eftective. The two-day training
programme takes place on site and
provides practical instruction on taking
the process beyond completion of health
and safety checklists to a mose inferactive
discussion with employees. This process
allows questions to be asked, encourages
suggestions for improvement and creates
more effective and proactive engagement
on health and safety issues. During the
year over 600 employees based at our
manufacturing sites participated in

the Learning to See programme.
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‘‘Lock Out Tag Out”

Lock Qut Tag Out is a safety procadure
used to ensure that machines are propery
shut off and not able to operate during
maintenance and repair work. Prior to

2018 every IMI business operated its own
Lock Qut Tag Out procedure and as a result,
standards of protection varied across the
Group. In an effort to reduce the risk of
serious injury in the high-risk shutdown
procedure, we introduced a new and
more stringent Lock Qut Tag Qut procedure e 1w nning
which all our operations are required apprapre ifirant
to adopt. reduction in by . 5
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Corporate responsibility

Ensuring that we minimise
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our environmental impact
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We operate globally with manufacturing facilities
in more than 20 countries. We are committed to
operating these facilities in a sustainable way
and o minimise their impact on the environment.

We monitor and report our environmental

performance at the monthly Executive meetings \ :

with a view to delivering continuous improvement
and reducing our €O, emissions year-on-year.

Energy efficiency

Given the nature of our production processes.

our main focus 15 energy efficiency and our
Group-wide energy efficiency programme delivered
a number of improvements during the year. Detalls
of some of the key projects are set out below.

» IMI Critical Engineering installed a new
award-winning heating system in three of the
manufacturing halls at IMI Z8J's Tacility in Duren,
Germany. As a result, gas consumpticn in the
three halls has been reduced by 30%

» IMI Precision Engineering introduced a
rengwable power system in parts of its facility
in Alpen Germany. Following the installation
of solar panels and heat pumps the facility's
CQ, emissions and energy consumption
have reduced.

» IMJ Hydronic Engineering installad new LED
lighting throughout its Swedish plant in Ljung
which has helped reduce €O, emissions and
electricity consumption.

We support the Carbon Disclosure Project {*COP")
climate change initiative and submit annual CDP

reports which cover our risk management approach
to climate change and our emissions performance. |

Since 2015, on a like for like basis {excluding
Bimba), we have reduced our CO; emissions by
over 4%. In ling with our continuous improvement
cuiture and investment in our operations, we are
committed to further reducing cur emissions

in the fuiure.

' tonnes

2015 2016 2017 2018

Reduction in waste and scrap
As outlined on page 22, improving cperational

. performance is one of our key strategic pricrities.
i By running our business more efficiently we

enhance our compelitiveness, save costs and
reduce waste and scrap levels. Each of our divisions
has made significant progress in this area including

» IMI Critical Engineering: at IMI 7&J's facility
in Germany, Lean methodology problem solving
techniques were used 1o identity three main
areas for improvement, including welding errors. |
Processes in the plant have been adapted and
improved and as a result scrap levels have
reduced by 58% year on year.

IMI Precision Engineering: since 2017, M|
Precision Engineering Fradiey's scrap levels have
reduced by 67%, driven by the implementation
of Lean process design and the Fradley team
undertaking regular problem sclving and Kaizen
continuous improvement activities. Lead times
and inventory levels have shown radical
improvement as a result,

-

IMI Hydronic Engineering: the division's facility
at Enwitte, Germany has centinued to reduce its
scrap. Building on the 50% reduction achieved

in 2017, the plant reduced its scrap levels by

a further 10% in 2018. The applicatior: of Lean
methodology and problem solving to identify

the root cause and implementing improvement
actions underpinned the improvement.

v et moniimises the tnpact oo the cnvtonend,

Our p-ro.ducts

Our products and technologies help our customers
operate their processes safely, cleanly and
efficiently and heip address some of the biggest
global challenges facing the world teday including
climate change and rescurce scarcity. Below are
some of our products that help reduce emissions
and energy consumption.

» [MI Critical Engineering's EEEasy-Seal™:
this innovative sealing system for control valves
prevents the leakage of emissions in oil refineries
and petrochemical plants.

» Nl Precision Engineering’s PET
blowing blocks:
this market leading product reduces the amount
of air, and as a resuit energy, required 10
manufacture plastic bottles.

» IMI Hydronic Engineering’s Halo:
launched in 2018, this thermostatic radiator
head, which has a built-in sensor, controls the
temperature of individual rooms by automatically
adjusting flows. depending on ambient
ternperature. Compared with a manual radiator
head, it can reduce energy consumption by as
much as 28%.




- AT i

malnay o163 g

L e o A

o
[=]
Q
=
[=}
B
©
o)
Q
=
ferd
2
§
[x)
@«

SIUBURTELS [RIOURUI

P .
MR Pfeci§ion Engineering's new plant in
'\.‘ ++ Woida near New Delhi hax its own scwage
W A tremiment plant vhich converts sewage into
‘233 ' 7 Hipdegradable waste. The facility also i
*’; : ¥ -4 rgin water harvesting systom which colloots
15 '3 rain W feeds it back into the ground.
St JEqarther information about the new plant cim
e B P
’"; e bétmfmd ori page 20.
, 3 R
> 32 Hyﬁron!o Enginacring's nevs thermostatic
* ,. 1 hepdd Hato not ondy helps to achicve cnergy
Avings fer homeowners, it alse has o
<}
~stylish modern design.
*

3 flew encrgy efficient and cnvirsnmentally
friendly LED lighting ir Hydsonic
Engineering’s plant in Sweden.

% "4 1mi Woraren PET blowsing biock.
Fa =
5 PET botle manufacturing.
z
6 EEEasy-Secal™ willensure a signiliciant
reduciion in vabe leakagaes,
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Measurements and targets
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inteural to the deliveny of o straleay.

Organic revenue growth

o%
-5%

2018 2017 2018

Organic revenue growth excludes the impact

of acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange
movements. The revenues from acquisitions are
only included in the current year for the period
during which the revenues were also included in
the prior period. In 2018 the Group's continuing
businesses delivered 5% organic revenue growth.

. Segmental operating profit

£227.Tm £240.9m

‘16 2007 2013

In 2018, Group segmental operating profit was
£266m comparad to £241m representing an
increase of 11% cn an adjusted basis, On an
organic basis. after adjusting for the impact

of exchange rates, acquisitions and disposals,
segmental operating profit increased by 9%,




Health & Safety lost time
accident rate

Pur 100,000
hotira

Q.07 o.11 0.08

2016 207 2018

The health and safety of all our employees is
paramount. We measure our progress in this
area by tracking our =1 day lost time accident
frequency rate {'LTA rate’). In 2018 our LTA
rate reduced to 0.08, reflecting the Group's
continued focus on identifying and reducing
workplace hazards.

Lean assessment

66% %

Year-end
218 207 2018

During the year we continued to improve our
operational performance and Lean scores.

Our six monthly benchmarking process is now
fully embedded, and scores continue to reflect

the improvemant which is being achieved across

all Group operations. Qur highest score is now
95% and the average has increased from 31%
when we first benchmarked the business in
2014 to 75% at year-end 2018.

) Year-end " Year-end

Skifled wpgloyces help cnsure
world-class qucadity; 1ots
o our customers. ;

Return on capital employed

— 12,5% 12.4%

Return on capital employed ('ROCE') is defingd
as segmental operating profit after tax divided
by capital employed. Capital employed is defined
as net assets adjusted to remove net debt,
derivative assets/liabilities, deferred tax and

to reverse historical impairments of goodwill

. and amortisation of acquired intangible assets.

In 2018, ROCE was 12.8% which compares

to 12.4% in 2017 ang reflects the Group's ability
to deliver improved profitability despite mixed
market condiions.

2016 2017 2018
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How we manage risk
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Cur risk management framework
The Board has overall responstbility for ensuring that we manage our
risk exposure appropriately to achieve our strategic objectives and build
sustainable shareholder value.

The Board determines gur risk appetite and monitors and reviews the risk
management processes we operate, The Board delegates responsibility for
implementing and monitoring internal controls and other elements of risk
management to the Chief Executive and the Executive Committee, The Board

has also tasked its committees with responsibility for key areas of risk, as follows:

» gversight of financial reporting, internal financial controls and assurance
processes — the Audit Committee:

» succassion rigk - the Nominations Cemmitiee; and
» remuneration and incentive structure risk - the Remuneration Committee

Further information about the roles and responsibilities of the Board and each
Committee is set out on pages 52 1o 79.

How we approach risk management

Our risk appetite

In determining our risk appetite, the Board considers a number of factors
including our strategic oppertunities. the risks that could affect our business
and our ahility to mitigate their impagt. Qur risk appetite, the nature and lavel
of risk we are prepared to accept to achieve our strategic objectives, is divided
into three categories: prudent, balanced and receptive.

Risk appetite

Balanced ,

Strategic nsk

Prudant Receptive

Operational risk
Financial risk

‘ Compliance risk

Across the Group we operate a "top-down. bottom-Up approach™ 16 risk management which is illustrated in the graphic below. This approach allows the Board
and the senior leadership team to actively assess strategic risks and moniter the measures used to mitigate, transfer or aveid such risks. It alse ensures that
cperational risks are identified and managed at multiple levels and that key risk information is communicated effectively across the Group.

Our risk management process is embedded in all our businesses. t provides guidance on how 1o identify, evaluate and manage risks which could impact

our performance and our ahility to implement our strategy.

STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

= Datermings rsk appetite. Board = Reviews ci-annually a detalled analysis of the GroJp's risk profile Icludi~g supporting divisicnal
» Reviews srincinal risks. ata end the actiens undertaken to ensure compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code.
» Vonitors and raviews risk management processes. » Raviews annually the effect veness of the G oup's irternal controls.

» Responsible for ensuring risk management ¢Jlture is integrated Divisional » Develops bi-annually a detaled Group ana divisional risk profile which is Dased on information

across thelr division and alignad to the Group's objectives. and

uploaded to the Group intrangt by each manufacturing operation. This profile analyses each

» Determings principal risks and mitigation strategies. Executive division's mast significant risks and outiines mitigation strategies.
) ) ! Committee
= Monitars changes in the risk profile.
» Monitars quality and effectiveness of businegs level risk
managemeant rocesses.
» (perates and ~onitors an active and effective risk Operating » Maintzing an up-to-dats nisk profile which enlifies the key risks facing 1"e bosingss, ssesses
management orocess. companies mitigating processes and controls uperates key petformance incicatars ta validate the

» Updates operating compan-es on principal risks and
mitigat an strategies.

» Opsrates reporting systems that ncrease management N
ownership and accountability.

eftectivenzss of those controls and idenlifies areas for ‘mprovement.
» Publishes risk profiles far each manufacturing cperaton te the Greup intranet twice a year,

= Prowides monthly updates on key nsks mitigation and controls through incorporaticn of risk
profile data in monthly managerrent -eporting process.
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Our principal riﬁsﬂi(is

STRATEGIC Q Capitalising on significant organic
GROWTH [ growh opporturilies
The principal risks facing the Group are shown in order ol priority in the table below. PRIDRITIES
This analysis covers how each risk could impact our strategy and explaing what we KEY 9 gﬂgﬂ%g@era"ﬂ”a’
are doing 10 monitor and mitigate each risk area. ’
. : . : Inceeasing investment n
The Group is also exposed to broader financial market risks, In particular. currency @ Now p,:)guLtVDeve,w'nem
exchange rate volatility following the Brexit referengum. A description of these risks
and our centralised approach to managing them is described in Section 4.4 of the Expanding o.r addressadle markets
tinancia: statements. rougn targeted acauis ions
STRATEGIC GROWTH ,,
PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING T
— CHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED IS IMPORTANT THE RISK =
o
. =
GLOBAL ECONOMIC » The threat of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit is the rsk » Build Fexibility to resrond to markel condeions ano 2
OR POLITICAL INSTABILITY @ of bath By and UK ports not copieg with the potential impart asseciates with Broxit s
_ _ the ad tional valume of customs wark « Dwisional oget teams formed to ertry ne-geal
RISK MOVEMENT: ° which eould imaact our supply chain Brexit nisks znd huild mitgaten contingency cizns.
INCREASED and sales delivery, EL-UK 2ross-horder ransacton Hows have

» The Group ope-ates in diverse glegal markets
and demand for our products is dependent on
economic and sactor-spec fic environments,

» The possibility that the UK leaves the E.) with
neither z transition genod nor a free trade
agreement in place £ontines to pose a risk

to the supply thains ongoiry operatio~s and
profitabeity of the Group.

IMI Critical Engineering continued 1o face highty
competitive markets and an gngoing slow-down
i {ne New Construction Fessil Power sector,
The impact has been manzged through ongoing
restructunng actions including expancing the
divisio's Value Engineenng actwities and
antering rew less severe market areas.

Whilst remaming in a strang competitive
position, IMI Precision Enginzering has also
exnerienced volatitity in some geographies

and sectys,

M1 Hydronic Engineening markets remaingd

- A downturn in a alobai or regional econamy
or political mstakility could impast end market
demand, nenately impacting reverue and
our alilty o deliver our strateqy and achicys
market expectations.

©
o
©

N

=

B

mapped. and criical supply cham rigks wenn’ ed Ly

custamer and cart, with specific action plans cut @ place.

Our main cojective and t~e fonus of our contingency
planning 1s to minimisg interuptions ts our suppky chatn
and £nsure our customer calvery commitments are me:,

- [Aainta:n a balanced porttolio operating across a
anae of markats, saulons and 0eosraphies valh
e single depansiensy.

~ Manitor key customars and respond quickly 10 changes
in the r demands.

¥

Utilise care forecastng processes that ensure
opzrational output ca~ be nght-sized o market
derangd

~ lnfizrtake erhanced steess tasting anid senstuity
anzlysis of hasingss plans and reaularly reviee key
market and sector matnss,

Fozus on enhanc ng cOmpeitvensss by morgasing
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stable with steady growth in most markets. ano imwestment i New Product Jevelopment and Yalug o
+ight-sizing actions were undertaken to ensure Enginesring and impraving aperational psricrmance. 5
the busingss could respend to market changas. « Divelep robust <ontmg=ncy plans 1o ensure agihly g
10 r¢alygn he cosl Lase as reguired, %
<
=
@
2
FAILURE TO DELIVER MAJOR » The Group is continually evolving, bioth in » Operate rohust systams and procedures to manage §
TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJECTS response to external market pressures and and menudor busingss projacts, i~cluding clear angd
ON TIME AND ON BUDGET to achieve ou strategic goals. measurable Tileste-es. which are revigwed regularly
» {hange projects include businass by Divisicnal Managing Directars.
CF MUVE LT reorganisations and implementalions = Rewiew major project orogress at monthly Execative
ﬂld'r‘:,“.ﬂ\tr’:‘h;r'h ) @ of comglex new [T systems, Commitiee meet ngs. -
» Failure to deliver these change projecis on » {jontinug ta enharce risk assessmeant pricessss and 2
» Successiul ERP implementations across the time ana on budpet, and failure 10 respond 1¢ mitigation action plans. a
Group in 20718 continued to demanstrate the changing ma-ket conditions, could adverssly » Undertake spaciallst [T and 5roup ASSUTancs 18vIews %n
oraficiency of our system implementation teams impact our financial performance. i | =
: of major IT projects. =
and proven eftective control. o
. ’ ~ Develup detailed continyency plans. 3
» iMI Cribical Engingering has successlully . . . ]
managad a number of sgnificant restruclurng » Held monthly operational ang ERP steen~g committee =

grojects over (he course of 2018 — inclugng
several plant closures — on timg and to budgel.

maetings which rgo-ously review projzcl pragiess.

Post go-live audits to rev ew progress an
implerientation plans.

= Developing safe. innovative and techrically
aovanced produets 15 at the heart of what
we go.

» Failure to deliver the quality required

could result in negative financiat and
reputational damage.

QUALITY ISSUES LEADING TO
PRODUCT FAILURE, RECALL,

WARRANTY 1SSUES, INJURY,

DAMAGE OR DISRUPTION TO

CUSTOMERS' BUSINESS

RISY MOVERFNT:
[0 CHANGE

» Our operational pertormance continusd to
improve over the course of 2018. Details of key
developments can be found on page 22.

» During the year, we successfully launched a range
of new products, maintaining our high standards
for quality and customer satisfaction, The level of
risk has remained the same year-on-year dug (¢
the strength of the procedures and conlrols in the
New Product Development process.

Established Group-vade stanuard for Advanced
Product Gualty 2lanning precess (APQP) which
overy husingss repo-is or weekly and monthly.

This ”enbibcs improvements in the early phases

of the development procass,

Continued focus on Quality Management Systsms
ano audits.

Test frnished products and sacure customsar sgn-o'f
an the mos: critical procucts.

Deploy targeted Lean events to improve quakty,
including rmplementation of Obaya reviews.
Raviewed avery B-months with Group-wide

Lean assessmant programme,

= {ontnue to upgrade talent with a foc.s o g.alty
and proguct Sevelopment experiise and experience.

5

N

5
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Our principal risks

STRATEGIC GROWTH
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PRINCIPAL RESKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
— GHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED IS IMPORTANT THE RISK
FAILURE TQ INTEGRATE + Anintegral part of our strategic plan is to make » Undertake anrual review 10 dentify potenbal target

ACQUISITIONS SUCCESSFULLY AND
DELIVER THE REQUIRED SYNERGIES

<>

» Cur post acguisition ntegration process, wheh
aeploys a mix of divisional and Group resources
ensures that the right pecple acrcss all disciplines
are avaifable to successfully project manage
acquisition integration.

» Successivlly tepioved Ire misdiahon process o
monitor and manage Bunba Manufacturing post
acguisition. Progress has heen tracked usng a
struclured integration plan with key milestones
and respensitifities.

value enhancing acquisitions.

= Failure te aelver the post-zcauisiion stratagy
could reduce the value of acquired businesses.

acquisitions that align with our strategy

« Wdentify hard and soft synargies wthin targated
ACOUISITIZN SRR ILaNINgs,

» Adhers 1o *ormal a~ausitbon approval dug ditgs-ce
and post-acouIsmian megration pronesses,

» Deploy a rigerous 109-day process to effectively
menntor and manage POSt acquisiien INtegr2tion

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH
LEGISLATION OR A BREAGH OF OUR
OWN HIGH STANDARDS OF ETHICAL
BEHAVIOUR

» We do not engage with customers, suppliers
r any other third parties whao are not aligned
with our own £ode of conduct and strong
ethical standards.

» DLring the year we Int-oduced interral controls
and procedures to ensure compliance with the
EU General Dzta Protection Reguiation

» Prior o the November 2018 deadime, we closed
oown all trading activilies with Iran followang the
re-mpagiton of LS sanctions,

» The thallenging territories in wrich we operate
make the risk of regulaory oreach & continued
area of focus. As such, our risk prafile remains

» Tre global markets ang regulatory envirgnment
tamand the highest standards of conduct and
adherente to comphance rules and procedures.

» Failueg to comply with legislative requirements or
a breach of our Code of Conguct could result in
signifizant financial and raputational damage.

As e expand our cperalions o achievs growth it
s essential that we ma ntain ot high standards
of condiuct and compliance frocadures.

- Legisiative requirerents in relation to tax.
anti-bribery, fraud and compet tion faw includs
rigorous monttaring and training of naw anc
gxictmg employoas,

~Dommeted 1o fastering 8 pesdive cullure uedesprined
by corz values a~d bzhavinurs that promate fair and
eth ral viorkng practices.

- Continug a robust intemal conlrals declaration
rOCess,

» Estauisties detheated comphance resources al aroup
divisional and lecal levels Each dwision have specr'c
compl ance plans in place woich arg executed ovar
the Lourse of the year,

- Al employees are provided with easy access ta
pelic 88 manuals guidslines and standard —peratig
procecurss via our global intranet.

» Undertake repular employee training focuses on key
risk areas such as fraud. antibribery and corruption
and fiow 19 aoply the IMIWay in everyday s tuations.

« Orerate a co-hdential indepenaent hotl ne 1o
&R CONCErns,

« Lirderiake rigorous due diligence and appreval
procedures on third party agents Terminate all
non-compliant agents.

unchanged. » Upelate stongent procedures and provesses for
dealings with higher risk t2uilcnes, velutng foormal
Laining 1or relevant employees
- Actively manitor and manage tratle sanctions,
FAILURE TO MANAGE > We depend on a significant number of suppliers » AuthCrise e pu-chase end manu*actuie of long lead-
THE SUPPLY CHAIN @ who provide essential products and services. tima corrpo-ents to and from aur UKED supply base.

ehak RHIVER 1
Fr Py ASED

= The possiil ly that the UK Jeaves the EU with
neither a transition period nor a fiee trads
agreement in place continues to pose a nisk to
the supply chains, pnyong operations and
rroflakilty of the Group.

» Growth in our MI Prectsion Engingering markets
nas placed pressure on our suppliers, in some
cases impacting on our delivery performance
in 2018. In response. the dvision upgraded its
supplier management (rocesses and 18 exetuling
specific improvement plans for ¢ridical suppliers.

0o

~ Failure to manage our supply chan esgecially
in respect of quality or on-time delivery to our
custamers, could have a materizl impact on cur
fmancia) pe-formance and reptation.

» Fxgeute our contngency rans :n tha case of a ‘no-
deal’ Braxit and contin. to monitar the $ituation aned
raact accordingly.

» Monitor rigks an 3 regUiar basis and develop
contingency plans to mitgate the ‘mpact of supplier
falure, inzreased pricing or any othar supplier
associated risk

+ Assess spectc Supnbar Cote of Condul nsks accoss
divisiomat supphy chaims and audit high-r:sk suppliors for
all agpests of supply chain risk ncluding Mordern Slavery,

+ Operate preferred supplier lists for all major materials
and components. Where aporopriate. certain supplisrs
are opeiating under a framework agreament.

» Regular review meetings with key sugpl €rs and.
as required, depley escalation meetings.

= Mon tor key supplier pertormance using
supplier srocgcards,

» Carry adequate safety stock and/or maimtain
d.al supply scurcas for cntical components.




5 TEGIC Capitalising on significant organic
GROWTH growih apportunities
PRIORITIES
KEY Improving operational
performance
Increasing investment in
New Product Deveopment
@'7@' Expanding our addressatile markets
through targeted acquistions
STRATEGIC GROWTH
PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
— CHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED IS IMPORTART THE RISK
UNAUTHORISED ACCESS TO » While we have a well-developzd strategy 1 ~ Gentnug our 1T S20ur ty Impre vement programms
OUR IT SYSTEMS Kkeep abreast of new tnreats and cortin. ally across the Geoup, This neludss 24/7 netwerk

» "he aigital and security threat sivronment in
relation to our IT systems and infrastructyre is
constantly and guickly evolving. We continuad
w0 irvest in strengthening our T systems
and protecting our cata, alongside raising
awareness of cyber security acress all parss
of pur buginess,

During 2018 the Greup sig-ificantly upgraded
our anti-makware, Introder deleclion USB
device control and internet filteing Lapatnht.es,
In additior., we have deployedt laptop encrypiion
and completed a significant n.mber of firevall
replacemsents 1 reinforce our nfrastructure
aganst new and emerging threals.

A sgourity awarengss campaqgn, 'Be Cyber
Safe' commenced roll out during 2018 and

will contnue to run throughout 2019,

]

improve the Group's IT infrastructure, we
cEnnot guarantae that our actions are keeping
pace with the co~stantly evalving threat
anvirsnmert.

= Inappraved access ta ur 1T systems could
resytt in loss of intellectual property, fraudulent
actvity thef: and business ntamuphion,

MONIONNg vIz 2 sec.rty cpsrat ons cantre.

= Centralised sezurity sxftware in place Continueo
emphasis on upgrading £nd sirengthening cul
ax1sting hardware and software aganst naw znd
amerg ng threats

- Fonthly rausvis wih Dvsionat Manaaing Biractors,
10 as52ss prograss and rondor farur astions
and pricrities,

- Cortinug 1o ra s2 awareness of cyber securdy through
regular emplovee commuricatons.

= Inshzaled tisaster recove y plans on all esse i
IT agsets inuluding stingant system back g
proced.res at all of our businesses

INGREASINGLY COMPETITIVE
MARKETS

Rbs MOVE TN, o

A NFAIRN

» Market (ynamics continues to be a sigrficant
consideration for the Group and impacts ali
three dwisions. We have experenced ncreases
In material, labour and sther cosls which
impacted our business over the course of 2018,

» Valug Enginzering processes enabled IMI
Critical Engineering to win £180m of new
orders 1n 2018.

= Divigional restructuring activ ties conatinue to
sfficiently manage our “xed cost hase and
will remain an ongoing facus over the
course of 2019.

0o

» Invieased sompetilion could lead 1o loss
of cusiomers and/or pricing pressures
resulting inlost sales, reduced mofits and
margin deterioration.

» Curtnue 1o embed etective New Product Development
processes nuluting competitor fear down lesting
benchmarkag compettar products and Value Engnzering

» Active partizipation ninternational tizde fairs and shows,

» Uhlise cur metrics to track performance and identify
argas for improvement.

» ontnue tg raview sile capacity t ensure bast
utihisaton and improve protuctivity.

» Developed stardard costings to ensure thorough
unzerstandng of product cost and interal processes
to track and manage oost ncrsase approgriately,

» Co~tnug to erhiance opsrational performance gualry
delvery and szrve standards t-rough Lean implzmentation.

» Undertake ragular sustomer feedoack periormancs
s.rveys a~d implsment act on plans wheare
improvemerts are regured,

» Conrinue Value Engi-gering activities in afl thres
dwisions to delver better, more cost-effective procucts
1o the custamer.

« Operate market specific pricng strategiss lu
maintain marging and continually revizw sucaly chamn
performasice to rmibigate or doter input cost o liation,

NEW PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

RISK MOVEMENT:
NO GHANGE

» Our end o end Advanced Product Cuality
Planning {APQP) and New Product Development
processes have successtully delivered
competitively priced new preducts to market.

= Duning 2018, precesses covering design.
prolotyng, testing, cesting and launch
0 markefs, were embedded across all
three divisions,

= A New Product Development and Future
innovation strategy was put in place for
gach division in 2018.

» Further infermation about aur New Product
Development activities are detailed on page 24,

» Our sustainable long-term growth is reliant
on dedivering a pipeline of innovative
new products.

= Failure (0 deliver market lezding products
on time and on budget will impact our ability
o grow.

» Embed New Product Development into strategic
planning process with technology and product
reatimaps included in eack division's five-year plan.

= Contnue tonvest in research and development Lo
ensure we farget the most oiohiable cpporlunties,

» Established centres of design and
technological excellence.

» Track new product intioduction plans and actions
on both a weekly and monthly basis.

« Tratk key parformance metncs including sales
from new products and research ard development
spend anairst sales.

= Contnue competitor product tear gown and testing,
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oard of Directors

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman (74)

Nationality
British

Committee membership
Nominaticns Comimittee — Chair

Date of appointment
2015

Expertise
Sigriicant UK ar.d mternational
board experiece

Extersive krowledge of both
angineering and manufactunng

Strong track reccrd in private
equity. mergers and acquisitiens

Specialst capability in finance

Key external appointments

Non-executive Chairman of
Allance Trust ple
Non-executive Chairman of the
British Business Bank plc

' Roy Twite assumes Chief Executive role from Mark Selway on 9 May 2019.

Mark Selway
Chief Executive’' (59)

Austrahian

Executive Committee

2013

Experenced and proven
Chief Executive

Sold track recerd running
nternational engreenng
businessas

In-clep

knowiedge of relevant

end-matkets nol.ding ol & gas,

aenargy and automective

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Roy Twite
Execulive Direclor' {51)

Entish

Executive Committee

2007

Proven organisational and
engineet ing exoerise
Managemont capatilty Fauving
ron all of IMEs dvisicns
Cxtensive knowledge of
end-markels and

custormer base

. Norn-executrve director of

Halma ple

@ Find out more: www.imiplc.com/about-imifleadership-and-governance/board.aspx

Daniel Shook
Finance Director {(51)

Amencan gntish

Executve Cammittee

2016

Extensive financ al
ranagaTen! expetience

Extensive krowledge of complex
process manufactunng across
2 range of industnal sectors
Strong intesnational
oerspective, having worked in

a number of xey geographies
during hig time wilh twg icading
global buzinesses

Carl-Peter Forster
Senior iIndependent
non-executive drector {64)

© German

Audit Commitiee
Rerminations Sommittee
Remuneration Ccmmittes

2012

Experienced nterrational
business leader

In-depth knowledge of

the autormiotive secter

Expert In operaticnal excellence
and Lean manufacturing

Significant expernence in
technology management

Non-executive director of Geely
Automobile Hotdings, Hong Kong

Chairman of London
Taxi Camparty

Non-executive oirector of
Velvo Cars Corporation

Ghairman of Chemring Group pic

Member of the PWC
Agdvisory Board



Birgit Nergaard
Independent
non-executive directar {80)

Nationality
Danish

Committee membership

Remuneration Gomemitiee
- Charr

Audit Committee
Nominatzag Committee
Nen-executive direciorn for
employes engagemeant

Date of appointment
2012

Expertise

Expenenced non-executive
Held senior executive postiors
in enginee-irg consultancy
Wide ranging sectoral
experience Including energy,
water, infrastructure and
building industries

Expenence Iin strategy as well
as finance and accounting

Key external appointments

Non-executive director of
D8V A/'S and NCT AB
Non-executive director of
WSP Global Inc.

Isobel Sharp
Independent
non-executive director (63)

Bntish

Auclt Comimittes — Char
Nomations Commitice

2015

i Consiceracie accounting, audit,

governance anc transact ons
exper ence ncluding ime as the
Serior Technicat Partner at
Delortte In London, President

of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scolland

ard membership of the UK

i Accounting Standards Board

ard the Reporting Review Fanel

Nor-executive director and
Audt Committes Chair of The
Bankers Investment Trust PLC
Non-executive director and
Audt Committee Gharr of
Winton Group Limited
Hororary Professar at
Edinburgh University

Business School

Thomas Thune
Andersen

Independent
non-executive director (63)

Darvsh

Nominations Sommittee
Rermungration Comimdies

2018

Experienced nternational
business leader n sectors
ncluding oil, energy. marnne
and crtical irfrastructure
Broad experience as a non-
executive director of vanaus

! public companes

Chairrnan of Lioyds Register
Group. Non-executive director
of BW Offshore Limited and
Charrenan of Orsted A/S

Member of the Darmsh
Cormmittee for Good
Corporate Governance

Katie Jackson

Independent

non-execulive director (45)

British

toTinatons Comimittes
Rermuneraton Committee

2018

" Senwor executhe experence

w1 major of companes and
wveslment banking

Spemalst knowdedge of t-e ol
and gas sector ard excellent
carporate inance expanence

Executve Vice President
of Commercial and New
Business Developrment at
Royal Dutch Shell

53

Board
experience

International
business
responsibility

Engineering

Public
company
board

Finance

Regulatory &
legal

Mergers &
acquisitions
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Corporate Governance introduction

Chairman’s

Governance letter

Dear Shareholder

oo oo tao poc e v T Do e oo sy,
oot foo D00l A Choaminva, voe Toco v o Ol e
e b ol e s g et the e coa praociio s v canee
e cdership g coandoai the fophost s Lancaaas of
conpeiale yove L s ond ety an sl o B i
Capnate Govipno e Ploprent v o - P T
VU e S U QU GOV O T 0 S LI G P T
raachoot wiorbangs of the Board ciad de cormratifen ¢

Leadership

I am now in my fourth year as Chairman and very much enjoying my role.
During the year two new non-executive directors joined the Board bringing
considerable and relevant experience as well as fresh perspactive,

The Board is fully engaged, able to both support and challenge the executive
team, and has the skills and experience to oversee governance. financial
controls and risk management. The quality of debate al meetings is high
and we getl valuable input from all ¢f our non-executive directors. | benefit
from a strong working refationship with the Chisf Executive and we keep
in close contact on a weekly and more frequent basis as necessary.

Culture

The Board sets the tone at the top and has established clear leagership values
and behaviours which are underpinned by a comprehensive Code of Conduct and
governance framework, The IMI Code of Conduct is given to every employee
and features in induction and other training and the annual IMI Way Day.

Qur values and expected behaviours are built into our leadership development
programimes and performance assessment processes. Excellent leadership
behaviours are a pre-requisite for satisfactory performance and career
advancement in the Group. We have also embedded policies and processes

to set clear standards for compliance and doing business in the right way.

During 2019 the Board will commence an increasingly formal review of the
Group's culture by reference to a range of key indicaters including Group-wide
employee survey data and other stakeholder feedback.

Annual Report and ﬁgpqgnts 2(_)1 8

Governance highlights

» Following a rigorous seiection process supported by Russell Reynolds that
inctuded both internal and external candidates the Board agreed to appoint
Roy Twite as IMI's next Chief Executive.

» The new chairs of the Audit and Remuneration Committees were fully
inducted and have made an excellent start in their roles.

» Following wida ranging search processes led by the Nominations
Commitiee, Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson were appointed
1o the Beoard as non-executive directors.

» A review of the Directors' Remuneration Policy was completed by the
Remuneration Committee following stakeholder consuitaticn and the
resulting proposals were approved by the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

» We continued to refine the detailed plans behind the Group's strategy and lo
oversee progress in the implementation of the strategy at a business level.

» We completed the significant, complementary acquisition of Bimba
Manufacturing Company for £138m and following the Bimba acquisition,
the Board visited the principal manufacturing site near Chicago.

» An audit tender process was run by 1he Audit Commitiee which resulted
in & decisicn to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditor subject to
annual shareholdsr approval at the Annual General Meeting.

» We continued to maintain good investor relationships and the
directors met with major shareholders as part of our ongoing
investor relations programme.

| Compliance with the 2016 UK Corporate

Governance Code {the “2016 Code"}

I am pleased to report that IM! complied with the principles of the 2016 Code
throughout the year. We also complied with the 2016 Codg provisions save
for a period when pur Remuneration Commitize membership was Teduced

I to two while we brought other non-executives on board following the sad
" death of Bob Stack late in 2017,

i We acknowledge the introduction of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance

Code {the “2018 Code") and during the year we took appropriate steps to
prepare for compliance with the new requirements which came inte effect

: from 1 January 2019. In November 2018, we announced the appointment

of Birgit Nergaard as non-executive director with responsibility for workforce
engagement. We have also revised our corporate governance framework
and the business cycles for the Board and its committees to reflect the
2018 Code and appropriate training has been provided to the Beard.

Yours faithfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

28 February 2018
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ot out betow s the Boom e forinal report on corporaie
guvernancs and separate roporis fron the Audin
Monnations and PFoemuncotion Conwmnitttce,

2016 Code - Compliance statement . Nonh-executive / Gender Nationality
. . . . . i executive directors*
The Board is committed to maintaining good governance and confirms that ‘

throughout the year-ending 31 December 2018 the Company has applied |
the principles cortaingd in the 2016 Code ang complied with its bast ‘ B

practice provisions save for a temporary shortfall in the membership of the C R i < N o 4
Remuneration Committee. The 2016 Code provisions reguire a Remuneration ‘

Committee to have at least three members and there was a period of six

months when the membership was reduced to two following the sad death ‘ 5 :f:f;'f;'\':‘f;fmﬁ‘["’;;A AFerde 1 Brtiah

of Bob Stack in December 2017. Two new non-executives joinad us on Ly Exmw Jm;m; 6 Males 7 Other

1 July 2018 and hecame members of the Committee. |

* Uncer the 2018 Code, the Charman 18 excluded when cansidenng

Further details of how we have applied the 2016 Code appear below. in the the Independent non-execulive compositon of the Boaid,

Directors’ Report and other cross-referenced sections of this Annual Report

all of which are incorparated by reference into this report. A description of the

main features of the Company's internal cantrol system and disclosures on Dates of appointment for the Chairman and
other regulatory matters including statements on going concern and viability ~ neh-executive directors

can be found in the Directors' report on pages 139 to 142. A summary of our

risk management systems and information about the risks and uncertainties Length of tenure at 31 December
that relate to our business is getailed within the ‘How we manage risk’ ' ,
section on pages 46 to 49. Information on corporate responsibility can i Thomas Thune Andersen [l
be found in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 1o 43. | Carl-Pater Forstar |
Katie Jackson -
Board COmpOSition Birgit Nergaard r
Seven directors served on the Board throughout 2018: the Chairman; the tsobel Sharp
Chief Executive; three independent non-executive directars; the Finance Lord Robart Smith —
Director and one operational executive director, In addition, two new non- o 1 z 3 4 & § 7
executive directors were appointed with effect from 1 July 2018, The Board Years

now comprises nine directors. All centinuing directors stand fer re-election
at each Annual General Meeting.

Data of appeintment Date of current letter of
appointment

Independence of non-executive directors Thomas Thune Andersen  * Luly 2018 12 December 2018
The Board considers that all of the non-gxecutive directors are free from Garl-Peter Forster * Cotober 2012 12 Decembar 2018
any business or other refationship which could materially interfere with Katre Jackson T Luly 2018 12 Cecember 2018
the exercise of their independent judgement and all meet the criteria Birgit Nargaard 5 November 2012 12 Cecembar 2018
for independance under the Code. All of the non-executive directors are Isobel Sharp + Seplember 2075 12 December 2018
regarded by the Board as independent, The Chairman was also regarded Lord Robert Smith 7 May 2015 12 December 2018
as independent at the date of his appointment o the Board.
Board diversity Share ownership for the Chairman and
The non-executive directors are a diverse group from different backgrounds non-executive directors
and nationalities and bring with them a wide range of skills and experience The Chairman and non-executive directors are encouraged to hold
in commerce, finance and ndustry from around the world. More than half the some shares In IMI within a reasonable period after their appointment.
Board are non-British and therg are five different nationalities on the Board, " Ag at 31 December 2018, the Chairman and nan-executive directors
Three of the nine directors are female {.e. 33%). Our approach to diversity . all held IMI shares as set out in the table on page 77.

is set out in more detall in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages
34 to 43 and in the Neminations Committee Report on pages 64 and 65.
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Corporate Governance Report

Meetings and use of Board time
The Beard met on six occasions during the year including two resuits
reporting meetings, a day dedicated Lo strategy discussions and regular
review meetings at which updates are provided as appropriale covering health
and safety, operational and financial matters, invester relations. risk and legal
affairs. In addition, there were several days spent on Board site visits and
attendance at other events.

2018 Board cycle

In adition to the regular agenda items for operational matters, business
performance and corporate affairs, the following matters were dealt with
at Board meetings in the year:

February

Approval of the preliminary resulls announcement and Arnual Report
Approval of the final dividend recommendation

Approval of the notice of Annual General Meeting

Review of the first monthly phased forecast (the “Q1 Forecast”)
Review of a significant possible acquisition

May

Review of trading and other updates

Approval of the interim management statement
Preparation for the Annual General Meeting
Strategy update

Review of the Q2 Forecast

Bimba integrabon updae

Bopp & Reuther post-acquisition review

IT update

July

Approval of the half year results announcement
Approval of the imerim dividend

Interim risk review

Review of the Q3 Forecast

September
Strategy review
Five year business plan review

October

Site visit to US operations

Corporale Governance Update

Review of the Q4 Forecast

Approval of the interim managernent slatement

December

Budget for 2019
Annuzl risk review
Board evaluation
Siralegy update

Board evaluation report

Post-investment reviews

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Board attendance

Director Board % attended where

meetings eligible
Thomas Thune Andersen' 474 100
Cari-Peter Forster 6/6 100
Katie Jackson' 4/4 100
Birgit Nargaard 6/6 100
Isobel Sharp 6/6 100
Lord Smith 6/6 100
Mark Selway 8/6 100
Danief Shock 6/6 100
Roy Twite 6/6 100

' Joined the Board on T July 2018,

In 2019 to date the Board has met once with all members in attendance.

Board roles and reserved mattiers

A description of Board roles and reserved matters is included in the IMI
Corporate Governance Framework {(which can be found on the Company
websife} and is summarised in the Directors’ Report on pages 139 to 142.

Induction and continuing development programme

A formal induction process for niew non-executive directors is well estahlished
and is the responsibility of the Chairman with suppeort from the Chief Executive
and Company Secretary.

Business familiarisation s at the core of induction and continuing development
for non-executive directors at IMI and is centred around gaining an
understanding of the business and getting to know the wider management
team. The two new nen-execulive directors appeinted in July 2018 have had
induction megtings with all of the members of the Executive Committee and
the auditor. In addition, all new non-executive directors will attend a corporate
induction day for senior managers heald at head office. There is also

a committgs induction process designed to brisf new committee members

on the relevant committee and the issugs it faces.

Non-executive directors are required 1o visit business units around the Group
and 1o meet face-o-face with senior operating management and key corporate
staff. There is regular contact between management and non-executive
girectors during site visits, formal meglings and other company events.

During 2018 all of the non-executive directors made site visits and the whoie
Board visited US operations including IMI CCl in IMI Critical Enginesring and

| Bimba in IMI Precision Engineering. Feedback on Board and individual site

visits is discussed by the Board,

Appropriate training and other continuing professional developmesnt is avaflable
to &l non-executive directors and regular updates are given during the year
where relevant 1o the business arising at Board and committee meetings.
For example, appropriate hest practice updates were provided to the

- Remuneration Committee and to the Board during 2018 including training

on the 2018 Code. Non-executive directors are encouraged to undertake
additional training and several did attend external training during the year.



Board visit to US operations

Site visits are an important, regular feature of the Board calendar.

In October 2018 the Board visited M CCl in California and Bimba

in lingis where it held meetings and foured the marufacturing sites.
IMI's core processes were seen 1o be well embedded at IMI CCl and
the business has made excelignt progress with its Value Engineering
programme, Bimba is progressing well as a business and hag achieved
the integration milestones as planned.

IMI has a substantial presence in the USA which is home {¢ business units
in all three divisions. In particular, IMI Critical Engineering has four business
unfts in the country including, IMI CClin California, and IMI Precision
Engineering has 10 business units including Bimba in llinois. M CClhis

a powerful brand for IMI Critical Engineering and offers a range of valves
for power plants and other severe service applications. Bimba is a key player
in the US Precision Engineering Industrial Automation market which joined
the Group from January 2018.

During the factory tours, management and staff had the opportunity to
showcase a wide range of improvements and local management made
business presentaticns. Senior managers from US businesses joined
the Board for discussions over dinner. Each visit provided an excellent
opporturity for the Board to meet a wider group of employees and gain
a more in-tlepth understanding of the businesses,

Board evaluation

The Chairman arranged an internally facilitated evaluation process in 2018.
An externally faciiitated evaluation was last conducted in 2017 with Egon
Zehnder. Based on that review Egon Zehnder's overriding conclusion was
that the Board is run in an effective manner. Following discussion of the
report by Egon Zehnder the Board noted some areas for development
including routing feedback on site visits, continuing development of strong
relationships among Board members and regular strategic progress
updates for the Beard 10 be expanded. All of these development areas

have received appropriate attention during the year.

The 2018 internal evaluation exercise was carried oul through a questionnarre
process run by the Company Secretary and by the Chairman canvassing the
views of directors individually. While the findings of the inlernal evaluation
were gverwhelmingly positive, in keeping with the Group's commitment to
continuous improvement, the Board agreed that it will make it a priority to
allocate a generous proportion of time 1o strategy. In addition, external fraining
opportunities for directors wili be expanded and participation encouraged,

As senior independent director, Carl-Peter Forster conducted a review of
the Chairman with the other non-executive directors and shared the results
with the Chairman. During the year the Chairman aiso met with the non-
executive directors individually for performance review and feedback
sessions and as a grou to review the performance of the Chief Executive.
The Chairman passed on to the Chief Executive appropriate fesdback

from the review of his performance.

The Chairman is satisfied that the Board is fuffilling its responsibilities
appropriately and that the Board and its commitiees are effective and
that each director gemonstrates a valuable contribution and is committed
to their role.

57
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Bimba University Park, Illinois
IMI CCI RSM, California ty

IMI's Beard visit Bimba's University
Park site in October 2018,
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Corporate Governance Report

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Standing committees of the Board

The standing committees of the Board are the Audit Committes, the
Nominationg Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each of these
committees operates under written terms of reference which clearly set

out their respective delegated responsibilities and authorities. The full terms
of reference of these committees are part of the IMI Corporate Governance
Framewaork (which can be found on the Company's website). The committess
report to the Board on their wark. normally through their respective chalr
following each meeting.

Audit Committee

t.ord Smith of Kelvin
i Chanr

1sabel Sharp
Chair

Membership
Garl-Peler Forster

! Membership
Thomas Thune Andersen

Birgit Nergaard Carl-Peter Forster
Katie Jackson
Birgit Nergaard

lenabal Sharpr

Main responsibilities Main responsibilities

Fanoal reporting

- Oversight role in relation 1o financial statements

» Reviewing significant areas of judgemant and the Execulive Commitlee

accountng policies

- Reviewing the proposed statements on
gong concern and viability to appear n the
Anrual Report !

» Advising the Board on whether the draft Annual ‘

monitoring of progress
Report is fair, balanced and understandable

= Manitoring announcements in respect of
tinancial performance ‘

Financigl controt and sk

» Monitoring the effectiveness of internal
financial controls ‘

» Reviewing financial risks including fraud nsk

- Oversight of internal audit and cther key processes
for monitoring internal financial control \

~ Qverseeing the external audit process,
its ohbjectivily, effectiveness and cost with 1
responsibility for setting the audit fee \

» Making recommendations to the Board for the |
appointment of the auditor including oversight
cf the audit tender process \

- Reviewing the system for confidential !
whistleblowing and the treatment of repons
received (this became a Board responsibiity
from 2019)

| Nominations Committee ‘

» Board and committee composition
» Qversight of succession plans for the Board and

» Search for and recommendation of candidates
for appointment as non-executive directors, Chief
Executve and other executive director positions

» Diversity policy, promotion of diversity and

Separate reports from the committees appear in this Annual Regort as follows:
Audil Committee Report on pages 60 tc 63; Nominations Committee Report
on pages 64 and 65 and Remuneration Commitiee Report on pages 66 to 79.

Remuneration Committee

Birgit Norgaard
Chan

‘ Membership

. Themas Thune Andersen
Carl-Peter Forster

i Katie Jackson

Main responsibilities

- Define and reconimend the rernuneration policy
for the Chairman and members of the Executive
Commitiee

for the Charrman and members of the Executive
Cormmittee within the policy g proved by
sharchalders

i Determine the individual remuneration packages

Set annual and long-term incentive metrics |
and awards and determine the outcomes for
the members of the Executive Commitiee

\ : Report on remuneration matters and constructively
cngage with shareholders

-~ Assess risk In respect of remuneration
\ and incentive siructures in particular




Executive Committee
The Executive Committee is chaired by the Chief Executive and the other
members are shown on page 15. The Commitiee meets monthly and more
often as may be required. Regular attendees at its meetings include the

Group Financial Gontrolier, Director of Risk and Compliance, and the
Head of Investor Relations.

The Executive Committee is the senior management body and as part

of the broad remit set by the Chiet Executive it monitors and manages
business perlormance, reviews progress against strategic objectives and
formulates budgets and proposais on strategy and resource allocation for
consideration by the Board, The Executive Commitiee is a management
committee which takes its authority from the Chief Executive and is not
a committee of the Board.

The Executive Commitiee plays a key part in risk assessment, risk
management and moniloring processes and receives regular reports

on investor relations, human resources, health and safety, internal audit,
compliance. legal and other carporate affairs.

Investor relations

The Board oversees sharehcider engagement and mamntains a balanced
understanding of the issues and concerns of major shargholders. The Chief
Executive and Finance Director have primary responsibility at Board level
for investor relations and they, and the Head of Investor Relations, report
to the Board on shareheider issues at every Board meeting during the
year, Financial analysts’ notes are circulated 1o the directors and the Board
receives regular feedback reports from the Company's brokers and public
relations advisers as well as from management. Dialogue is maintained
with the principal sharehciders and the executive directors meet regularly
with institutional investors. During 2018 there were over 130 such meetings
with institutional sharehelders. The Chairman and the senior independent
director also are available to shareholders as needed and hoth have had
contact with investors during the year.

The 2018 Annual General Meeting was presided over by the Ghairman
and atlenced by all of the serving directors, The Chairman and the cther
directors met shareholders informally afterwards. Fach substantively
separate issue was put to the Annual General Meeting as an individual
motion. Notice of the Annual General Meeting was issued more than twenty
working days in advance of the meeting and the leve! of votes lodged for
and against each resclution. together with details of abstentions, are shown
on the (M| website. The Board values the support of shareholders and the
poll results for all resolutions proposed at the Annual General Meeting
were well above 80% in favour in each case.

In addition to the Annual Report, the Cempany issues preliminary
resutts and half year results anncuncements, as well as two interim
management statements between results announcements. The M|
website includes recordings of results presentations made by senior
management, recent annual and half year reports, interim management
statements, other corporate anncuncements and links tc the wehsites
of the Group's businesses.
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‘ The Company has arranged a dealing service for the convenience of

! shareholders with Equiniti {detaits are shown on page 164). A sponsored

‘ Level 1 Amencan Depositary Peceipt programme has been established for
which Citibank, N.A. acts as depositary (details can be found on page 164,

By order of the Board

John O’Shea
Group Legal Director and Company Secretary

28 February 2019
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Audit Committee

Report

Dear Shareholder
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Annual Report anq Agtioynts 2018

Composition of the Audit Committee

Birgit Nergaard, Carl-Peter Forster and | were members of the Audit

~ Committee throughout the year. All of the Committee members are regarded
" by the Board as independent non-execuitive directors. | have chaired the Audit

Committee since 1 Oclober 2017 and became a member on 1 September
2015. | spent my eariier career in the accouniing and audit profession

and the Committee is satisfied that | have significant recent and relevant
financial experience. | also currently chair the audit committee at The Bankers
Investrment Trust PLC and Winton Group Limited. In my role as Chair | have
had significant interactions with key Senior éxecutives and reviewed in
advance selected papers and agendas for meetngs of the Committee.

| also have met with our external auditor prior to Committee meetings.

My colieagues on the Committee also have experience at audit committee
level and collectively the Committee has the skills, experiance and objectivity
to be an effective Audit Committee and to challenge constructively. During the

I vear, Committes members received updates covering changes in accounting

standards. best practice guidance and other key topics. Furthermore, we each
attend as appropriate external training sessions to update our knowledge.

The Committee asks the following to join all or part of its meetings: the
Chairman, the Chief Executive, the Finance Director, the Group Financial
Controller, the Director of Risk and Compliance, the Group Assurance Director
and the external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP {'EY"). In addition, cther non-
exacutive directors are welcome to attend.

The Committee holds at least part of several meetings each year alone
with the axternal auditor and with the Direclor of Risk and Compliance and
the Group Assurance Director. The Committee has the power to call on
any employee to attend. The Secretary to the Committes is the Company
Secretary, who is also the Group Legal Director.

Main areas of activity

The Audit Committee met four times in 2078. For twe meetings the focus was
o the forthcoming resulls reporting and for the other two the fotus was on
planning and review matters.

The effectiveness of internal financial controls continues to be a key area for
the Commitiee which welcomes management's continuing commitment to
improve the Group's internal financial controls. Based on its review of selected
key controts, £Y agreed with management's assessment that the level of



control effectiveness at the locations assessed as full or specific in the audit
remaing high at 95%. Nonetheless. the Committee continues to assess with
management opportunities for improvement, which has resulted in a number
of further controt initiatives being identified for 2019. The IT investment and
infrastructure programme 15 continuing and its implementation facilitates
improvements in the audit efficiency as well as in internal controls.

The Committee has reviewed reports on the six-maonthly Internal Contral
Declarations which are submitted by each business unit and cover internal
controls on financial affairs, IT. human resources and other key areas. The
process is managed by Group Assurance, which follows up declarations with
on-site visits to review scores and track appropriate improvement actions.
Duning the year, the Committee has sought information on the accounting
gystems and internal controls at Bimba and has been pleased 1o note the
progress achieved to date and the way in which its staft have responded 1o
the additional financial reporting requirements which come with being part
of & public company.

A presentation on tax policy and compliance from the Head of Group Tax
was received by the Committee. Treasury matters were discussed with the
Group Treasurer.

The Committee approved the proposed external audit appreach and

its scope based on the size and leve! of risk of the entities concerned.
The Group and EY take a risk based approach to audit and other assurance
activity. The key audit matters identified by EY are set out in its report on
pages 145 o 147 and were reviewed by the Committee in approving the
audit scope and plan.

The Committee reviewed and approved for submission to the Board the
statements on going concern and viability. which are in the Directors’
Report on pages 139 to 142.

The Committee advises the Board on the fair, halanced and understandable
requirements for the Annual Report and half year results statement, The Commities
has made positive reports to the Board against these criteria. The Committee's
review included consideration by the Committee of alternative performance
measures and the presentation of adjusting items in accordance with the
Group accounting policy. In respect of the Annual Report, the fair, halanced
and understandable criteria are alsa a review area for the external auditer,

in relation to which it did not report any exceptions. The statement of
Directors’ responsibilities on page 143 includes confirmation by the

Board that it considers the Annual Report, taken as & whole, to be fair,
balanced and understandable.

Oversight of financial reporting

The Committee acts in an oversight role in respect of the Annual Report
and other anncuncements with financial content, ali of which are prepared
by management. The Committee received reports on the annual and half
year statements from managament and the external auditor.

Significant judgements related to the

financial statements

In preparing the accounts, there are @ number of areas requiring the
exercise by management of judgement and estimation, These matters were
the subject of apprepriate detailed analysis and commentary In papers and
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reports to the Committee by management and the external auditor.
The Committge reviewed the most significant accounting areas invelving
such judgements and estimates and these are described beiow,

Acquisition accounting for Bimba

Bimba was acquired on 31 January 2016 for a cash consideration of £128m.
The Group had a 12-month measurement period after the acquisition date to
finalise the accounting for the acquisition of Bimba, Managamen? exarcises
judgement on the types of intangible assets acquired and estimates were
made of the fair value of all assets and liabilities. The provisional fair value
amounts recognised at the halt-year in respect of the identitiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed were included in the notes to the half-

year financial statements. As set out in note 3.4 to the financial statements
on page 108, one change in these provisicnal values was made at the

year end totalling £1.9m. The external auditor provided confirmation that

the judgements made in this connection, including the assumptions used

to valus the acquired customer relatienships and the Bimba brand, were
considared 1o be acceptable.

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles arising

from acquisitions

The Commitiee considered the level of geodwill and intangible assets held
on the Group's halance sheet in respect of a number of past acquisitions
and whether, given the future prospects of these businesses, the carrying
valug in each material case remained appropriate.

The year end balance sheet includes goodwill of £437m and intangible assets
arising on acquisitions of £79m. The Committee reviewed the assumptions
and calculations used by management in the assessment of any impairment
of goodwill and intangible assets and agreed that an impairment of the £2m
goodwill held relating to the IMI Bydronic Engineering service companies CGU
was required. Impairment was also a key audit matter for EY which reported
its findings to the Committee. Section 3.2 to the financial statements on page
105 proviges details regarding the Group's intangible assets and goodwill.

Revenue and profit recognition

The Committee discussed the timing of revenue and profit recognition on
some of the Group's larger contracts. In addition, this is a key audit matter
on which EY reported to the Commities.

Having reviewed management's process and £Y's report, the Committee
concluded that revenues and profits were approgriately reflected in the
financial statements. Section 5.4 note C 1o the financial statements on
page 135 provides further informatien.

The Committee also reviewed management's assessment of the impact of
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers' which came into effect
from January 2018 and is discussed further in Section 1 on page 92,

Inventory valuation

The year end balance sheet includes inventories of £273m after £33m of
provisions, The Committee reviewed the judgements applied to standard
costing valuations and provisions against excess and obsolete inventory and
concurred with management's assessment. This was a key audit matter for
EY. in respect of which it reported to the Committee that inventory valuation
across the Group is considered appropriate. Section 3.1.1 to the financial

| statements on page 104 provides details of inventory valuation.
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Audit Committee Report

Other judgement areas
The Committes reviewed the appropriateness of the accounting freatment in
respect of pension scheme liabilities, including the actuarial assumptions used
and the impact of one-off special pensicn events. The Committee also reviewed
reporting from the external auditor. which concurred with the accounting for
pensions proposed by management. The Committee supported management's
on-going efforts to de-risk the Group’s pension obligations which in 2018
included the buy-out by an insurance company of £409m of UK defined benefit
obligations. Further details can be found in Section 4.9 on page 122,

In addition the Committee reviewed the appropriateness of restructuring costs
disclosed as adjusting items. leasing arrangements and the impact of IFRS
changes. property sales and the adequacy of taxation provisions. Further details
on these matters can be found in Sections 2.2 and 2.4 respectively, on pages
98 and 100.

Internal audit

The Committse received reports from and monitored the work of the Group's
internal audit function, known as Group Assurance. Group Assurance reports
through the Director of Risk and Compliance to the Chief Executive. Group
Assurance also has a direct reporting ling to the Committee. Group Assurance
work is primarily directed towards financsal control audits but also covers
other selected areas including project planning and implementation for major
business changes and internal control declarations. The principal projects
reviewed in 2018 were major computer systems implementations in each

of the three divisions and a review of the Bimbia integration process.

During the year 46 internal audit reviews were completed with 42 of these
supported by divisional finance managers. Centrally the Group Assurance
team is led by experienced, senior internal audit professionals and across
the Group there are over 70 staff trained 1o conduct internal financial control
audits. Locations ¢ be reviewed each year are selected on a risk assessed
basis, discussed with the Audit Commiltee and co-ordinated with the external
auditor. The completion of actions arising from internal audits and reviews

is monitored hy the Committee and the track record is excellent.

Group Assurance works closely with the divisions to implement monitoring
and review processes to complement the internal and external audit coverage.
The annual plan and resourcing for internal audit were approved by the
Committee and take account of the enhanced manitoring and review activity
within the divisions. From 2017 the scope of internal audits has been
exiended to cover certain other operational and commercial risks.

To achieve this a co-~sourcing modei has heen adopted, where experienced
financial managers from the divisions work with the Group Assurance team
on cembined audits covering financial, operational and cornmercial matters.
Group Assurance has also trained divisional finance managers in financial
conirol auditing skills and previded a toolkil to enable them to carry out
financial control audits at selected sites in the mtemal audit plan. Financial
control evidence binders have been introduced across the Group in 2018,
These binders help internal audits bacome more efficient and support
transition and continuity in the event of the changes in finance staff,

The Committee welcomed management's decision to introduce the

hinders as a further step to ensure robust financial controls.

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of Group Assurance with

" management and received input from the external auditor. The Committes

was pfeased with the further developmant of the co-seurcing madel with the
Group Assurance Team and experienced financial managers from the divisions
working together to enhance the effectiveness of assurance processes.

An area for improvement which was identified is for Group Assurance

to do more to share best practice around the Group.

External audit independence and
performance review

The Committes approved the proposed external audit approach and its scope.

. The Committee considered the independence and objectivity of the external

auditor to be satistactory. In assessing audilor independence the Committee
had regard 1o the Financiat Reporting Council's best practice guidance for
audit committees. In addition, the external auditor confirmed that its ethics
and independance pelicies complied with the requirements ot the Institule
of Chartered Accountants in England and Walss.

The policy on the uss of the auditor for non-audit work was reviewed and
updated by the Commuttee in 2016 to take account of developments in
regulatory requirements and ethical guidelines for the audit profession.

The policy requires approval by the Committee Chair for any non-audit
engagement which is more than trivial. The Finance Director monitors any
preposed non-audit engagements of EY and refers to the Committee Chair
for approval as appropriate. The policy does not allow work to be placed with
the auditor if it could compromise auditor independence, such as functioning
in the tole of managenent or auditing its own work, Non-audit fees paid to
the auditor were £0.1m (2017- £0.1m), which reprasents 3% of the audit
fee and demonstrates the tight control which is maintained in this area.

i One non-audit engagement involved fees above £30,000 and the main areas

of activity were the interim results review and an cperating risk assessment,
The Committes considers the leve! and nature of non-audit work to be
modest and not to comgromise the independence of the external auditor.
We are satisfied that EY 1s fully independent from the management and
free of conflicts of interest,

Benchmarking of the audit fee was conducted in the context of the full audit
tender process described below and the fee is considered by the Committee
to be appropriate. The Committee reviewed and approved the proposed audit

| fee payable to EY.

To maintain the objectivity of the audit process, the external audit partner
responsible for the Group is rotated within the audit firm at least every five
years and the current Senior Statutory Auditor, Simon O'Neill, was appointed
fallowing completion of the 2017 audit.

We formally reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit process.

Asin other years. a questionnalre was used to review the external auditor's
performance. In 2018 the Committee also recaived feedback on EY through the
audit tender process (discussed further below), As a result of the questionnaire
and audit fender feedback, the Committee believes the external auditor's

I performanca has been goott and affective. To enhance further the external audit

process. certain improvement actions were idantified and plans have been put
in place by EY to address these. These included action 1o improve continuity of
junior level staff on the audit and more rigorous structure in the audit process,
especially in relation 1o audit deliverable requests and progress meetings.



The audit tender process

Pursuant to the statutory requirement for audit tendering after ten years

{i.e. in time for the 31 December 2019 audit) and as signalled in the 2017
Annual Reporl, the Committee led an audit tender process during the year,
the result of which was our recommendation 1o the Board to select EY as
auditer for the 2019 year. The Board approved the recommendation and is
seeking shareholders' approval 1o re-appoint EY as the external auditor at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The term of appointment is annual
and there are no contractual restrictions on the Committee’s choice of
external auditor.

The audit tender process involved the following main steps:

Considering how the tender should be conducted and
agreeing how the firms should be assessed

The Committes agreed that three firms should be invited to tender. This
decision was reached after considering the needs of the Group, the existing
substantial relationship with one firm which currently provides tax services
to the Group and initial soundings taken from other first and second tier
international audit firms,

To support the Committee. the day-to-day running of the tendar process was
managed by a panel which consisted of the Augdit Committeg Chair, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Group Finance Director, the Group Financial Controller
the Chief Financial Accountant and the Glebal Head of Procurement.

To assist in evaluating overall audit quality, the key assessment criteria were
the capability and competence of the audit team: the approach to, and
management of, the audit; relationships and cultural fit with the Group;

and quality of the proposal and management of fees, Throughout the process,
all relevant staff were provided with the detailed assessment criteria and
asked to provide their feedback to the tender panel.

Running the process

The tender panel issued the Reguest for Proposal to the three firms and
made available. in & data room, information on the Group and its divisions
to assist the firms. After receipt of the proposals, meetings were held with
Group representatives in our major geographies and the firms' staff. This
was followed by individual meetings with divisional heads and with Group
representatives, including the Chief Executive, Finance Director and Audit
Committee Chair. The results were then cellated and made available to
the Committee,

[n May 2018, the three firms were invited to meet with representatives of
the Audit Committee and the Group Executive to present their proposals
for the audit.

Selecting the firm

At its meeting in June 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed the process and
the information and views gathered therein and agréeed to recommend to
the Board ihat, subject to shareholders' approval, EY should be appointed
auditors for the year to 31 December 2019, The Committee believes that

a robust audit tender process was executed and that EY has the skill ang
gxperience to ensure that a rigorous and challenging audn, fed by EY's Simen
0'Neill who has just completed his first year as Senior Statutary Auditor,

is carried out.

Compliance hotline

During 2018 the Committee reviewed the operation of the independent
comphance hotline for reporting concemns, reviewed the mare significant
reports received and considered how these are investigated and followed
up. The Committee believes that the hotline process and investigations are
effective and that proportionate action 1s taken by management in response.
In line with the 2018 Code. this résponsitility has been transferred 1o the
Board from the start ot 2019

Commitiee attendance and evaluation

Director Audit Committee % attended where

meetings eligible
Cad-Peter Forster 4/4 100
Birgit Norgaard 4/4 100
isobel Sharp 474 100

The Committee reviewed its own performance and terms of reference
and received positive feedback from the evaluation exercise carried out
in refation to the Board and each of its standing committees. As a result
of the evaluation. the meeting cycle for futlire years been adjusted to
improve efficiency.

The Committee approved this report on its work.

Yours faithfully

Isobel Sharp
Chair of the Audit Committes

28 February 2019
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Nominations
Committee Report
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Compaosition

Carl-Peter Forster, Birgit Nergaard, Isobei Sharp and | were members of the
Committee throughout the year, Thomas Thune Andersen and Katle Jackson
Joined the Committes on 1 July 2818, For the purposes of the 2018 Code,
all of the non-gxecutive directors on the Committee are regarded as
independent non-executive directors.

Attendance
Director Nominations % attended
Committee where eligible }
meetings :
Thomas Thune Andersen’ 3/8 100
Carl-Peter Forster 4/4 100
Katie Jackson' 2/3 &7 '
Birgit Nargaard 4/4 100
Isobel Sharp /4 100
Lord Smith 4/4 100

' Joined the Comumitiee on 1 July 2018, Katre Jackson had a prior commitment on !
appaintment which prevented her attendance at gne of the three meetings held since
her appointment.

Main areas of activity

Chief Executive succession i
Fallewing a rigorous selection process supported by Russell Reynolds that

included both infernal and external candidates, the Board agreed to appoint

Roy Twite as IMI's next Chief Execudive. He s a strong and experienced

successor who has been pivelal to the Group's centinued success. He has

extensive operational experience, deep knowledge of our core markets and

outstanding leadership qualities.

The Committee is also reviewing the succession choices for a new Divisional
Managing Director in the IMI Critical Engingering division. An announcement
¢n that appointment will be made in due course.



Board changes and recommendations for election and
re-election

The Committee commissioned Zygos Parinership 1o undertake a full search
process to racrut two new non-executive directors and recommended to the
Board the appointment of Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson. The
Committee atso recommended the appointment of Birgit Nergaard as non-
executive director with responsibility for employee engagement. All of the
directors standing are recommended for re-election at the Annual General
Mesting. The Board approved all of the recommendations mads by the
Committee for the renewals of appointment for continuing directors,

Succession planning
The Committee reviews Board composition and has formulated a structured,
medium-term plan for Board successian,

As already highlighted, during the year Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie
Jackson joined the Board. Originally it was envisaged that they would join
all three Board committees, but in the interests of better halance of overall
committee memberships. it was decided that they weuld serve on two.
the Nominations and Remuneration Committees.

During the year we reviewed talent development and successien planning
for the top 220 roles in the Group with the support of the Chief Executive
ang Group Human Resources Director. We were encouraged fo see that
significant progress continues 1o be made in terms of cultivating a strenger
pipeling of high-calibre talent as demonstrated by the internal appeintment
of the new Chief Executive and the strong list of internal candidates for the
Critical Engingering, Divisional Managing Director role. Further details of our
leadership development and succession planning processes are set out in
the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 to 43

Review of time commitments and contributions

The appointments of the Chairman and nan-executive directors are made
on the basis of a formal letter of appointment including a stated minimum
time commitment judged appropriate by the Committee. The Committee
considers that the time given to IMI by each non-executive director is
sufficient. The Board is satisfied that | have the necessary time to devote
to my role as Chairman.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits a diverse pool of talent can bring to a
hoardroom and remains committed 1o increasing diversity across IMI by
voluntary measures. We will continug to review the composition of our
management teams and the Board ta ensure that we have the right

mix of skills and experience while maintaining our effectiveness and
execution capabilities,

Al Board level, more than half the Board are non-British and there are five
nationalities, Three of the non-executive directors are female, representing
33% of the Board, and there is a broad mix of backgrounds and experisnce.
We are supportive of the need to Improve gender giverse representation

at Board and senior executive levels and are working hard te this end.
Further information on workforce diversity matters is given in the

Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 1o 43,

. The Committee welcomes its responsibility under the 2018 Code for
* promoting broader diversity at Board and senior management level.

Committee evaluation
The Nominations Committee reviewed its own performance and terms
of reference and received positive feedback from the evaluaticn exercise

. carried out in respect of the Board and each of its committees.

" The Committee approved this report on its work,

Yours faithfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair of the Nominations Commitiee

28 February 2019
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Repoﬂ and Accounts gOJE
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Pay for performance in 2018

Our focus this ysar has been twofold: to ensure consistent application of
our Policy and to ensure our remuneration arrangements remain appropriate

| in the context of the challenging eccnomic and market conditions we are

continuing to face in a number of our key markets.

At the heart of our Policy is pay for performance and a high proportion of

The Committee select performance measures that align to strategy and

I when setting stretching performance targets take into account a number

of factals, inuludiny he stalegic plan, annual budget, analysts’ torecasts

| and economic conditions. Our objective is always to set stretching targets

while at the same time ensuring that strong underlying performance, which
can sometimes be ohscured by external macro-economic conditiens, is
recognised. When assessing the fevel of performance achieved the Committee
takes into account wider circumstances t¢ ensure incentive outtomes are a
fair reflection of actual performance. Further information about the pracess we
follows when selting targets and assessing performance is set out on page 71,

2018 has been a year of good progress for IMI ¢espite continued mixed
economic and market conditions. Group adjusted profit before tax has
increased by 12% to £251.2m while organic revenue growth increased
5% to £1.907m on a constant currency basis. Cash conversion was 83%
in 2018. Subject to their approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
shareholders will recewe a total dividend of 40.6p — an increase of 3%
from last year.

Our various strategic initiatives, which are aimed at harnessing the Group's
full potential. are pregressing wel. In particular we remain focused on building
both competitive advantage and sharehelder value by continuing to invest

in new product development and improving our operational performance.

Qur cost reduchion initiatives have been successfully implemented and our
integration pfan for Bimba, the business we acquired in January 2018,

i8 now being executed.
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How were pay outcomes linked to performance i Finally, the Committee welcomes the changes introduced by the 2018 UK g
in 2018? I Corporate Governance Code and updated remunzration reporting regulations g
Anrual incentves paid o executive directors in respect of performance ! published in the Summer of 2018, Supporting our sirategy. promoting 3
in 2018 were based on strong financial performance and achievement long-lerm sustainable success, transparency and independent judgment
of stretehing largets relating to Group adjusted profit beforg 1ax, organic are already at the core of our remuneration policy but alongside the Board
revenue growlh, cash conversion and strategic and personal objsctives. led review of the new Code requirements. the Commities has discussed
Further information agout these incentive arrangements is set out on at lenglh the mpl»cahons for remuneraticn and taken steps in readmess
page 71. The Committee is confident that the annual ingentive cutcomes. ‘ for their application from 1 January 2019, | look forwart 1o reporting next
which range between 56.8% and 75.0% of maximum, fairy reflect  year on how the Committee has complied with the new Code obligations.
business and individual performance in the context of our ongoing ‘ @
challenging operating environment. Birgit Nergaard 2
i Chair of the Remuneration Committee on s
2019 marks only the secend year of vesting under the IMI Incentive ‘ hehalf of the Board e
Plan ('lIP'}. Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Danigl Shook were granted a ED
z

performance share award under the 1P in 2016 and the awards will 28 February 2019
vest at 29.2% in March 2019.

What decisions were made during the year?

The Committee reviewed the base salary levels for executive directors
taking into account a number of factors including individual perfermance,
2018 business performance, prevailing economic conditions and wider
circumstances, the Group's financial perfermance, and salary increases
for other employees. The Commitiee concluded that an increase of 2.2%
for Roy Twite and Daniel Shock effective 1 January 2019 was appropriate
and in ling with the wider employee workforce. The Committee concluded
that Mark Selway would not receive a base salary ingrease for 2019,
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The Chairman and non-executive director fees were also reviewed and
were increased by 2.2%, with effect from 1 January 2019.

Looking forward

Chief Executive, Mark Selway, has given notice to the Board of his wish to
retire, Mark will step down as Chief Executive at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting before retiring from the Board on 31 July 2019. Remuneration
arrangements relating to his retirement will be in fine with his sarvice
contract and the shareholder approved remuneraticn policy. In respect of
2019, Mark will be eligitle for & pro-rated bonus for time served paid wholly
in cash in accordance with the IIP rules. Full retrespective disclosure of
performance against targets set will be made in the 2019 Annual Report. —
ALIP deferred bonus share awards will vest in accordance with policy.
Mark will not be eligible for a base salary increase or an IIP performance
share award in 2019, Taking into account Mark’s performance in the five
years he has been Chief Executive, and his departure being for reason of
retirement, the Committee have agreed that all cutstanding IIP performance
share awards shall continue to their ordinary vesting date when performance
will be assessed against the targets set and any vesting will be pro-rated.

SUALBIRIG [RIOUBUIZ

Roy Twite will succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive at the 2019 Annual
General Meating. Roy will be appointed on a base safary of £720,000.
Addinienally, the pension oppartunity for foy will reduce from the current
level of 35% of base salary to 11%", Roy Twite will participate in the annual
incentive bonus and IIP on the same terms as the previous Chief Executive.

'in order to align with the pensien contributions of the majority of the global workforce,
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The Committee

Composition

The members of the Commiltes throughout the year were Birgit Ngrgaard
{Chair} Carl-Peter Forster, and from 1 July 20718 Thomas Thune Andersen
and Katle Jacksen. In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code.
all of the non-executive directors are regarded by the Board as independent.

Responsibility
The Committee determines the remuneration policy and rewards for the
exacutive directors and other members of the Executive Committee and the

Chairman. The Committee also caonsiders the levels of pay and benefits across

the Group. A copy of the Committee's terms of reference, which has been
updated to reflect the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, is included
in the IMI Corporate Governance Framework and avaitahle on the IMI website.

internal advisers to the Committee

During the year, the Committee consulted the Chief Executive, regarding
the packages of the other executive directors and senior managers. It also
received support from the Finance Diragtor, the Group Human Resources
Directer. the Head of Group Reward and the Company Secretary, wha is
also secretary 1o the Committes. None of these ingividuals were involved
in determining their own remuneration.

External advisers to the Committee

independent remuneration consutiant, Willis Towers Watson, is formally
appointed by the Commitlee and provided advice on executive remuneration
to the Committee in 2018. The Committee noted that the firm are actuaries
and administrators for the IMI Pensian Fund. The Committee is comfortable
that these activities do not represent a conflict of interest and that abjective
and independent advice continues to be received by the Committee from
the dedicated team servicing it at Willis Towers Watson.

During 2018, Willis Towers Watson has also supported management on some
broader reward and human resource matters. The fees charged by Willis
Towers Watson in respect of advice and services 1o the Committee totalled
£79,594 in 2018, Willis Towers Watson are signatories o the Remuneration
Consultants’ Cade of Conduct in the UK.
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A summary of the Committee’s activities

i during 2018

! The Committee had three formal meetings during the year; attendance can
be viewed in the table below. The principal agenda items were &s follows

» consideration of shareholder feedback and engagement with major shareholders

In relation to the propesed remuneration policy

» final approval of the new Directors’ Remuneration Policy {'the Policy’) for
submission to the Annual General Meeting in May 2018

» a review of total compensation packages of the executive directors and the most
senior management of the Group as well as a raview of workforce remuneration
and related policies to ensure alignment with IMI's strategic growth plan;

~ approval of achievements and ocutcomes under the incentive plans;
| = consideration of the fees for the Chairman:

: » setting the framework and target levels for the 2018 incentive cycle;
i »approval of the granting of 2018 share awards 1 executive directors and gertain

other levels of management fncluding a review of the Total Shareholder Return
comparator group lo ensure it remains appropriate;
» review of the performance targets in 1espect of the 2019 Iong term incentive
plan awards;
» review of IMI's gender pay gap results for the year ended 5 April 2018
and ensured compliance with legislation {see page 36):
» rgview of the UK corporate governance and regulatory enviranment
follewing issuance of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
updated reporting reguiations;
» 1eview of the engagement of the independent remureration consuftants
to the Committee; and
» revisw of the Committee’s own performance, constitution and terms of reference.

Attendance
Director Remuneration % attended where
Committee meetings eligible
! Birgit Nergaard 3 100
Carl-Peter Forster 3 100
Thomas Thune Andersen’ 2 100
Katie Jacksan'? 1 50

' Joined the Committee on 1 July 2018.
¢ Katie Jackson had a prior commitment on appointment which prevented her from attending
one of the two meelings held since her appsintment.
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Voting gutcome Votes for Votes against Votes withheld
The following table summarises the details of votes cast for and -
. ) s . A '+ Directors 29.1% 10.9% 0.1%
against the 2018 directers’ remungration pelicy, and the 2017 | Remuneration
annual remuneration report resolutions along with the number of Policy 2018
votes withheld. The Committee will continue to cansider the views of, i Annual 94.6% 5.4%, Q7%
and feedback from, shareholders when determining and reporting ¢ Remuncration
of remuneralion arrangements. | Report 2017
Executive single figure table {audited)
Annual Long-term QOther items in the nature
Fixed pay variable pay variable pay of remuneration
(£000) {£000) (£000) (£O00)
All- Dividend
Taxabie Annual incentive IMI Incentive employee share equivalent Total
Director Base salary Pension benefits bonus Plan {lIP} plans payments {£000}
See page Page 70 Page 70 Page 70 Pages 71to 73 Page 74 Page 75
2018 822 247 67 1,202 673 1 2 3,047
Mark Selway
2017 801 240 63 1525 138 5 1 2,773
208 475 166 30 405 312 4 - 1,382
Roy Twite
2017 463 162 27 541 54 4 - 1,261
2018 439 88 40 409 214 3 - 1,190
Caniel Shook
2017 418 a4 39 5086 43 3 - 1,003

Roy Twite served on the Board of Halma plo dunng the year and received fees of £55,750 10 respect of this appontiment which he retained.

These figures have been calculated as follows:

Base salary’
Pension
Taxable benefits:

Annual incentive bonus:

IMI Incentive Plan (IIP):

Share price assumptions:

All-employee share

the actual salary recevable for the year.
the cash allowance pad In lieu of pension.

the gross value of all taxable benefits {or bernefits
that would be taxable for a person tax resident in

the UK} received in the year. Dividend prayments:

the value of the annual incentive payable for
performance in respect of the relevant financial year
thaff of this is automatically delivered in the form of
deferred bonus share awards when the executive
dnes not meet the share ownership reguircment).

the value on vesting of the nil cost options that were
subject 1o performance conditions over the three-
year period ending on 31 December in the relevant
financial year (see share price assumptions below}.

for shares vesting in 2018, that related to
perfarmance in the three years lc 31 December
2018, the average sharg price over the final three
months of 2018 {971.20 pence) is used to estimate
the value of shares on vesting.

plans: the value of free shares at award and dividends under
the Employee Share Ownership Plan in the relevant
financial year and the intrinsic value of Save Az You
Earn share options on the date of grant in the relevant
financial year (applying a 10% discount as permitted
under the Save As You Earn Share Plan}).

For the lIP an additiongl number of shares
proportional to the dividends paid between the date
of the award and the date of vesting are delivered on
the vesting date {no further dividends are accrued
after the vesting datel. This applies 1o both the
performance share awards and deferred bonus share
awards under the (IF, Dividend equivalent payments
arise from unexercised awards under the legacy PSP,
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Executive remuneration received in respect of 2018

Base salary

Salaries effective 1 January 2018 were agreed taking into account a

range of factors including the prevailing economic conditions, the financial
performance of the Group and comparative salary increases awarded from
cther reievant empioyee benchmarks. The average increase for employees in
2018 was 3.0%, compared to 2.6% for the executive directors, Mark Setway’s
and Roy Twite's salaries were increased by 2.6% to £822,000 and £475,000
respectively. As noted in last year’s réport, taking into account the progress
made during his three year tenure and taking into account refevant finangial
director benchmarks Daniel Shook's salary was increased by 5.0% effective
1 January 2018 to £438,000.

Pension

The ‘Policy’ reduced the current maximum pension related allowance for new
hires from 30% to 25% of base salary for a Chief Executive and 20% for any
other executive director. The Committee considers this to be mare closely
aligned with the wider emplcyee pension provision at senicr management
level within the Group and comparatle with norms.

Under existing service agreements. executive directors received a taxable
cash allowance instead of pension benefits, Mark Selway receives a cash
allowance of 30% of salary and Daniel Shook receives a cash allowance
of 20% of salary. Roy Twite receves a cash allowance of 35% of salary
as a legacy obligation from his appointment as an executive director in
2007 which continues 1o fie honoured.

Pension benefits for past service

Roy Twite was previgusly an active member of the defined benefit IMI Pension
Fund. He opted out with effect from 1 February 2007, before he became an
executive director and as a result, he retaing past pensionable service up 1o
that date in the IM) 2014 Deferred Fund {'the Fund’}.

The key elements of the benefits in the Fund are summarised below:

» the normal retirement age under the Fund is 62 and Roy Twite may retire
from employment with IMI any time after age 60 without actuarial discount.

» on death after retirement, a dependant’s pension is providad equal to 50%
of the member's pension.

» should he die within the first five years of retirement, the dependant’s
pension is increased to 100% of the member's pension for the remainder
of the five year period.

» DENSIONS in payment, in excess of any guaranieed minimum pension, are
increased each year In line with price inflation up to a maximum of 5% in
respect of pension built up before 1 January 2006, and 2.5% in respect
of pension built up after 1 January 2006.

' Benefits

Accrued pension
in the Fund as at
31 December 2018

£000pa

Accrued pension
in the Fund as at
31 December 2017

£000pa

Roy Twite

74
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- During the year the executive directors received a number of benefits. These
i are summarised below and amounts less than £10,000 p.a. are combingd.

Mark Selway Roy Twite Daniel Shook
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Nen-cash 22 14 13 10 26 21
benefits (£000)
Company 20 20 17 17 14 14
car and fuel
allowance (£000)
Allowances and 25 29 - - - 4
. reimbursement
| (£000)
| Total &7 63 30 27 40 39

: In addition to the above benetits and allowances that are included in the

‘ single figure table (refer to table on page 639), the executive directors are

! aiso beneficiaries of company policies that have no laxable value. including
direciors' and officers’ insurance, death in service cover, travel insurance
and personal accident cover,




Annual Incentive Bonus
In setting largets and assessing performance the foliowing process is adopted by the Commitiee;

1. Set performance
measures aligned
with strategy and

4, Take account
of wider
circumstances

3. Assess
performance

2, Set stretching
performance
targets

5. Apply discretion
if required

budget

As per the Policy, the Committee reviews and selects performance measures,
largets and ranges annually. which take account of the economic conditions,
strategy and the priorities of IMI at the time,

3. Assess performance

2018 has been a year of good progress for IMl despite continued mixed
econcmic and market conditions:

1. Set performance measures aligned with strategy » Group adjusted profit before tax increased t0 £251.2min 2018 from

7

and budget

The Committee reviewed and selected performance measures that were
fully aligned to the business slrategy and the annual budget. These
remain unchanged from prior year. The 2018 annual incentive bonus
focused on a number of financial metrics and non-financial metrics
considered central to strategy. These included:

» Group adjusted profit before tax (40%).
» (rganic revenue growth {20%).

» Gash conversion (20%;).

» Strategic and personal ohjectives (20%).

There was a health and safety underpin to allow bonuses to be paid
only when minimum standards were achieved.

. Set stretching performance targets

At the time of setting stretching performance targets the Committee
censidered a range of intluencing factors that included the strategic
plan, the annual budget, analysts’ forecasts, economic conditians,
individuals” areas of respensibilities and the Committee's expectations
cver the relsvant period.

The perfermance target range was established based on the annual
budget. which reguired true outperiormance for Executive Directors

to achteve the maximum. The Remuneration Committee has a histery
of setting challenging targets, evidenced by the average Annual Incentive
Plan pay-out over the previous five years of 59% of the established
target maximum.

£224.1m in 2017, representing 2 12% increase:
= Group revenue increased to £1,907min 2018 from £1.,7517m i 2017,
» Gash conversion was 83% in 2018. compared with 92% in 2017,
» Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12% from 65.3p to 73.2p;

» The total dividend for the year increased by 3% compared to 2017;
and

» Good health and safety performance and delivery of measurable
benefits from Lean and other health. safety and environmental
inftiatives.

. Take account of wider circumstances

The Commitiee beligves that the range of measures used to assess
performance of the annual incentive bonus ensures that performance
1s assessed using a balanced appreach. without due focus on a single
metric which could be achieved at the expense of wider initiatives.
Given the performance noted above and wider operational achigvements
noted the Committee is comfortable that the annual incentive bonus
outcomes represent a fair reward for performance delivered.

. Discretion to override formulaic outcomes and to

apply malus and clawback

Depending on the nature of the measure e.g. health and safety. the
Committee may exercise judgement in assessing performance and
determining the level of achievement. The Committee has full discretion
to override formulaic outcomes, As per the Policy. the Commitiee also
has the power to operate malus and/or clawback provisiens in the event
that the Company misstated financial results, The Committee also has
the authority to give such permission for recovery of awards in cases of
serious reputational damage, corporate failure and other circumstances.
No such discretion has been applied in respect of the financial metric
outcomes to the 2018 annual bonus plan awards.
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Summarised in the table below is the achievement agamnst Group targets for Mark Selway and Daniel Shook and a combination of Group adjusted profit
hefore tax and Divisional targets for Roy Twite.

Director Measure Maximum Performance Targets Actual Actual
opportunity (% of performance’ performance

salary) Threshold Target Maximum (as % of salary}

Mark Selway Group adjusied profit before tax” B0% £211.0m £248.2m £273.0m £257.7m 55.3%
Group organic revenue growth: 40% £1,713.9m £1,778.5m £1.843.6m £1,844.4m 40.0%

Group cash conversion? 40% 7075 83.2% S1.6% 84% 18.7%

Strategic personal chjectives 40% See table on page 73 #7% 34.8%

200% 148.9%

Daniel Shook  Group profit before tax® 50% £211,0m £248.2m £2r3.0mr £257.7m 34.6%
Group organic revenue grawth” 25Y% £1.713.9m £1.778.5m £1,843.5m £1.844.4m 25.0%

Group cash conversion® 25% 70.7%% 83.2% 91.6% 84% 12.3%

Strategic persenal objectives 25% See table on page 73 85% 21.3%

125% 83.2%

Roy Twite Group profit before tax’ 52.5% £211.0m £248.2m £273.0m £257.7m 36.3%
Divisional operating profit 22 5% B4 1m £99.0m £108.9m £88.7m 3.5%

Divisional arganic revenue® 22.5% £645.8m £672.3m £698.5m '689.6m 18.7%

Divisional cash conversion’ 22.5% 81,2 95.5% 106.15% 849% 1.4%

Strategic personal objectives 30.0% See table on page 73 84% 25.34%

150% H0.2%

" Actual performance is stated at the exchange rates used in the targets.
* Adwisted Group profi before tax, as set out in Section 2.1.1 page 94, adusted for the impact of foreign exchange and acquisivens,
Growth of crganic revenue, as set out it Secton 2.1.1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of forgign exchangs.,
*This is calculated as management operating cash flow divided by management operating profit at the stated exchange rates used in the targets.
'Management divisicnal opgrating profit adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange
' This is as set out in Section 2,1.1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foregn exchange,



Strategic personal objectives
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Ag part of the strategic growth plan, the Committee sets each executive director 2 number of slrategic personal objectives each year. Performance against these
objectives is assessed using a combination of quantifative and qualitative reference paoints 1o ensure a robust assessment process. Mid-way through the vear the
executive is reviewed against their progress towards achieving tha strategic personal ahjectives with a full ieview undertaken by the Committee at the end of the
performance period, As well as performance against strategic personal objectives the Committee considers the wider performance of the Group. A summary of
the strategic personal objectives set for 2018 and the performance against them is provided in the table below.

Director Strategic personal objectives Commentary

Mark Selway  Strengthen organisation: Transition of IMI Hydronic Engineenny Secured the appomtment of Phil Clitton as Managing Director of
leadership and strengthen organisational structure; continue to I} Hydronic Engineering and strengthened the management team.
mprove operational performance through Lean with addition of Poliey Lean improvements continue to positively impact the performance
Ceployment across the Group; and actively sponsor and suppeort the of all areas of the Group, and Folicy Deployment now embedded
Group's diversity agenda. throughout the erganisation. Group and Divisions actively engaged

with Diversity plans.
Strategic growth: refine acquisition targets aganst clearly defined Acquisition target st is fully developed and relahonships with key
and discipined criteria and buld strong relationships with acquisition targets continue to develop. Significant progress made to continue
targets; continug 1o build strong relatienships with investors; and to build strong investor relationships with some notable successes.
ensure successful execution of 2018 growlh strategies.
Deliver projects: strengthen IMI capabilities through enhanced IT Continued successful rollout of enhanced IT systems in all three
improvement plans; revised go-to-market strategies, new product divisions. and a sgnificant upgrade of the Group's firewall,
portfolios and compelling customer solutions. authentication and third party providers completed on time and on
budget. Supply chain improvement plans in Precision Engineering
now fully developed with additional resources embedded across
the regions. All three divisions have now estabiished strong sales
and marketing plans to support go-lo-markel strategies,

Danigl Shook  Strengthen finance organisation; execute strong succession Strong succession planning in place at senior levels, with robust
planning, robust transition arrangements with clear visibility of transition plans establisned across the organisation. Divisional audit
resources and capabilities around the Group; support the teams' controls processes further enhanced through best practice
achievernent of best practice documentation for the divisional audit documentation processes. Inventory and fixed assets controls
teams; and deliver agreed outcomes for Group Finance Control, processes further enhanced. Strong performance from treasury
Treasury and Tax. and tax functions,

Deliver projects: strengthen Ml capabilties through enhanced Successful delivery of IT projects including ERP. Security

IT improvement plans e.g. ERP; IT loT advancements, deskiop Enhancement Programme and loT advancement, ensunng that

collaboration standards; and the security enhancement programime, divisions continue 1o effectively develop focused initiatives ta
acdvance IMl's connected products.

Roy Twite Strengthen division: deliver rationalisation projects in line with the Rauonalisation projects delivered on time and on bunget in ine with

approved business cases, further enhance team diversity when
apportunities arise; improve {ean scores by the end of the year;
collabarate with other Divisional Managing Directors to drive
growth and technolegy agenda; and bulld strong relationships
with acquisition targets,

Dediver projects: develop plan to support continued margin
growth in 2019; deliver 2018 ERF milestones; and develop
artificial inteligence strategy.

anproved business cases. Al divsional dversty targets (including
recrutment ta-gets) met. Lean scores acroes the Cotical Engineerng
divsion have Increased significantly 1o an average 74% from 70%
in 2017, Strong relationships have beer developed with key
acquisitior targets.

Scenario plans bave been developed to support budgeted margn
growth in 2019, New ERP installations dehvered on time and on
budget. New artificial intelligence strategy now fully developed to
support growth agenda.

Based on the performance described above, the annual incentive bonus outcomes for 2018 are set out below:

Total bonus
awarded

Total bonus
awarded (£000)

2018 maximum
bonus opportunity

Achievement of share
ownership guidelines

Bonus delivered
in form of cash

Benus delivered
in form of share

(% of satary) (% of salary) at 31 Dec 2018’ {£000) awards {£000}
Mark Selway 200% 1,232 149.9% 114% 616 G186
Roy Twite 150% 405 85.2% 253% 405
Daniel Shook 125% 408 93.2% 65% 204.5 2045

" Detalls of the share ownership guidefines for Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook can be found on page 74,
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in March 2016, performance share awards were mads to the executive directors under the iP, The vesting of the awards was subject to the achievement of
three independent performance conditions as described below, measured over the three-years ending 31 December 2018, The 2016 {IP award will vest in

WMarch 2019 &t 29.2% of rnaxirnum,

Initial award Value on date of Number of initial Additional dividend Total shares  Vaiue of shares on

award® {£000) shares vesting equivalent shares vesting vesting? (€000}

Mark Selway 213.007 1,962 52,198 7152 59360 673
Roy Twite 98,553 03 28,777 3,309 32.086 312
Daniel Shook 66,751 616 19,491 2,241 21,732 211

* The three day average mid-market prics on the date of award was 921.33 penge.

The price on vesting is unknown at this time and so the total numizer of shares vesting 1s valued at the average price over the last quarter of 2018 (971.20 pence).

Return on capital employed {ROCE) [
25% of the award was subject to the achigvement of ROCE. This measure is defined ‘
as segmenlal operating profit as a percentage of the capital employed during the
financial year ended 31 December 2018, Capital employed being IMangible Assels |
{exciuding Acouired intangibles and Goodwily, Property Plant and Equiprient and
Working capital, It compares the earnings of the Company with the capital invested.
ROCE was chosen as a measure as it represents how well the Company has used
ils investment made by shareholilers and capital from creditors 1o generate a profit.

The portion of the share award that will vest ratated to ROCE depends on ROCE in the
final yoar of the performance period. For ROCE of less than 40% no award under this
element will vest, 25% of the award will vest for ROCE of 40%. rising on a straight-line
basis lo full vesting for ROCE employed of 50%. Al the end of the performance penod
return on capital employed was 38.4% resulling in this element vesting at nit.

Total Shareholder Return (TSR}

25% of the award was subject Lo the achievernent of a relative TSH performance
measure against a defined group ol companies adjusted during the performance petiod

to take account of merger and acquisition activity during the performance period in ling ‘
with the Committee’s established guidelines. TSR is defined as the mevernent in share
price during the performance period, measured in local currency, with adjustment to \

take account of changes in capital structure and dividends, which are assumed to be
reinvested in shares on the ex-dividend date. TSR was chosen as a measure as it is
an external, relative benchmark for performance that aligns executives' rewards with
the creatien of shareholder value.

The portion of the award that will vest related to TSR depends on where IMI ranks

in the comparator group. For a 1SR rank that is below median, no award under this
element will vesl. 25% of the award will vest for median TSR, rising on a straight-line
hasis to full vesting for upger quartile TSR. At the end of the three-year performance
period, the Company ranked in the lower quartile of the peer group. The resultant
vesting outceme for this slement of the award is nil.

Qver the three year performante period ending 31 December 2018 W defiver ed
a cormpound annual growth rate of 4.7%. The resultant vesting cutcome for this

* element of the award is 29.2%.

Deferred bonus share awards

In March 20186, defenred bonus share awards were also made under the [IP which

vest in March 2019. These are the form of share award used for mandatory honus

deferral into shares of up to 50% of annual bonus payable where the executive I
director i yel to raach thelr shareholding guideline, ‘

Discretion to override formulaic outcomes and to
apply malus and clawback

The Committee has the discration to override formulaic cutcomes and may
apply discretion te adjust the number of shares which would otherwise vest to
sffect recovery in circumstances whers it sees fit, and it has the authority to
give parmission for recovery of awards in cases of serious reputational damage,
corporate failure and other circumstances. No such giscretion has been applied
to the 2016 IP award outcome for executive direclors.

Share ownership guideline

Itis a requirement of remuneration policy that executive directors are subject 10

guidelings which require them to build a sharghalding in Ml worth at least 250%

of salary for Mark Selway, 150% of salary for Daniel Shook and 200% of salary

for Roy Twile, The Palicy permits the Commitlee discretion lo determine that 50%

of any annual bonus earned s delerred into shares until the share ownership

guideling is achfeved 1ogether with 50% of any vested share awards. Each

executive is then required to maintain this share ownership guideling (subject to

alipwances for share price fluctuations and changes in base salary lhereafter).

When assessing compliance with this guideline the Committee reviews both the .
level of beneficial share pwnership and vested but unexercised share incentive |

| awards on 8 post-tax basis. Although Mark Selway and Daniel Shoek continue

Group adjusted profit hefore tax growth

50% of the award was subject to the achievement of the Group adjusted profit before
tax growth measure. This measure is definad as the profit before tax before adjusted
items as shown in the audited accounts of the Group, adjusted to reflect changes

in the Company's capital structure and any adjusted items, at the Remuneration
Committee’s discretion.

. payable to Mark Selway and Daniel Shook as outlined on page 73 will be delivered

lo make progress towards this guideling, and have a material interest in the
Company's shares, the Committee has determined that half of the annual honus

in the form of deferred bonus share awards which must be held for a period of at
least three years and until the share ownership guideline has been met. Further,
the Committee has determined that half of the performance share awards made to

. Mark Selway and Daniel Sheok in March 2016 and due to vest in March 2019 must

Adjusted profit before tax growth is a key measure for IMI as it gives an indication of
the strength of the Company's financial perfermance and shows the amount available
1o reinvest inte the business, and pay a retumn 1o shareholders through dividends.

For growth of less than 2.5% per annum, no award under this element will vest.
25% of the award will vest for growth of 2.5% pear annum rising ¢n a straight-fine
basis to full vesting for growth of 7.5% per annum.

also be retained until such time as the share ownership requirement is met. At the
end of the year Roy Twite significantly exceedad the share ownership guideling.



Share interests granted to executive directors during 2018 (audited)

Grants made under the IIP . The following performance share award grants were approved and made

Performance share award grants under the IIP were made on 12 March 2018 in ‘ in 2018:

the farm of nil-cost options. Awards are due to vest on 12 March 2021, subject |

i PO IIP shares Value on date Award as a
to performance in t.hree core areas aligned to ogr Ionger—term strategic priorities. awarded of award" percentage of
ROCE {25%j, relative TSR {25%) and Group adjusted profit before tax (50%). (£000) salary
The performarice targets and vesting scale that apply to the 2018 IP awards . Mark Selway 181,644 2,055 250%
are as follows . Roy Twite 83,971 950 200%

| Daniel Shook 58.205 658 150%
ROCE Relative TSR Group Level of |
adjusted vesting " The three day average mid-market price on the date of avard was 1.131.33 pence.
profit befare j
tax growth' " The IIP is also used to grant deferred bonus awards exercisable after
Threshold 40% Median 2.5% 25% three years to satisfy honuses delivered in the form of shares. Details of
Maximum 50%  Upper quartile 7.5% 100% these additional IP awards made in 2018 are shown in the table on page
Welghting 259 258, 500 , 77 under the 'without performance conditions' column. No performance

+ gonditions apply to these awards.
vannualised Compound Annual Growah Rate over 3 years. \

Further details of the above performance targets can be found in the awards
vesting under the IP section on pags 74.

For share awards granted in 2018 the TSR group included 17 companies to ensure complete alignment with our peers and comparisen to companigs with
similar products, customers and global spread. The 2018 peer group includes the following companies and these have been adjusted to take into account
merger and acquisition activity during the performance period in line with the Committee’s guidelines.

TSR comparator group companies

1. AIrTAC 7. Ingersoll-Rand 13. SMC

2, Belimo 8. 1T 14. Smiths Group
3, Curtiss-Wright 9. Morgan Advanced Materials 15, Spectris

4. Eaten 10. Parker-Hannifin 16. SPX

5. Emerson Electric 11, Rockwell Automation 17. Wenr

&. Flowserve 12 Rotork

GKN has been removed from the TSR compasalor group following its acquisttion by Mefrose Industries PLC in May 2018.

All-employee share plans
Executive directors are eligible 1o participate in the all-employee share plans on the same terms as other eligible emplovees at IMI. In 2018, Mark Selway,
Roy Twite and Danigl Shook received free share awards under the Employee Share Cwnership Plan,

All Employee Share Ownership Plan SAYE
Number of shares Value of free Number of opticns Value of SAYE Total value under the
awarded share award’ awarded options Dividends ali-employee share
(£000) (E000) (E000) plans (£000)
2018 336 4 - - - 4
Mark Selway
2017 278 4 813 1 5
! 2018 336 4 - - - 4
Roy Twite
2017 278 4 - - - 4
) 2018 304 3 - - - 3
Daniel Shook
2017 235 3 - - - 3

'In 2018 free shares were awarded at 2 share price of 1,071.00 pence {1,292.00 pence in 2017).
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Payments to past directors (audited)
It is the Committee's intention 1o disclose any payments to past directors. including the vesting of share-based awards post departure on a basis consistent
with the continuing executive directors. There were no payments to past directors during the year

Chairman’s and non-executive directors’ single figure table (audited)

The following table summarises the total fees and benefits paid to the Chairman and non-executive directors in respect of the financial years ending
31 December 2018 and 31 December 20117,

Director 2018 (£000) 2017 (£000)
Base fees Additional Taxable Total Base fees Additional Taxable Total
fees benefits’ fees benefits™
Lord Smith of Kelvin aza 5 325 3z - 5] 317
Carl-Peter Forster* 64 11 8 83 62 1 3 (3]
Birgit Nergaard® 64 16 8 88 52 1 8 71
Robert Stack’ - - - - 62 26 3 9
Ross Mclnnes? - - - - a7 12 5 64
Isobel Sharp? 64 16 5 85 [543 4 2 68
Thomas Thune Andersen® 32 - 5 37 - - - -
Katie Jackson® 32 - 1 33 - - - -

' Includes fees for being Char of the Remuneration Committee and Senior Independent Director until 7 December 2017,
incldzs fee for being Chair of the Audit Commitice.
Resigned as Director effective 30 September 2017,

* Ingludes fee for Sentor Independent Director effective fiom 11 Dacember 2017.
Inchides fee for being Chair of the Remuneration Corrnitlee effective fram 11 December 201/,

° Pro-rata fae from date of appointment on 1 July 2018.

" Taxable benefits includes travel and hotel expenses plus tax costs associated with Board meetings held at IM{ HO.
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Directors’ shareholdings and share interests {audited) z
The following tabie summarises the share interests of any directer who served during the year as at 31 December 2018 or at the date of leaving the Board. g
During the period 31 December 2018 to 28 February 2019 there were no changes in the interests of any current director from those shown save for 8
purchases withir: the IMIAll Employee Share Ownership Plan on 8 January 2019 of 13 shares each on behalf of Mark Selway, Roy Twile and Daniel Shock at
965.00 pence per share, and 12 February 2019 of 13 shares on behalf of each of Mark Selway. Roy Twite and Danie! Shook at 963.50 pence per share,
Director Total Beneficial Scheme interests
interests interests Nil-cost options All-employee .
With perdformance conditions Without performance conditions share plans g
Unvesied’ Vested but Unvested Vested but %
unexercised unexercised -
Mark Selway 784,787 9.900 503,573 15,271 133,581 24,334 2,128 s%
Roy Twite 406,316 123,107 274.514 - - - 7 695 )
Daniel Shook 241,524 7507 187,205 - 45,424 - 1,208
Lord Smith of Kelvin 14,3010 14,300 . - - - -
Carl-Peter Forster 2,625 2,625 - - - - -
Birgit Nergaard 2,625 2,625 - - - - -
Isobel Sharp 3,000 3,000 . - - - -
Thomas Thune Andersen 2,625 2,625 - - - - -
Katie Jackson 2618 2,618 . - - -

"'Yeshing dates of share awards are shown i Section 4.11 on page 130.
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The following information Is intendad to provide additional context regarding
the total remunetation for executive diractors,

2018 2017 Change
(£m) {£m)
Dividends 107.9 165.5 2% ‘
Total employment costs for Group 615.8 5TRT 5% ‘

(see Section 2.1.3.1 on page 97}

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

| Historical performance and remuneration
" In addition fo considering executive remuneration in the context of internal

comparisons, the Committes reviews tustaricat outcomes under the variable
pay plans,

The graph below compares IMP's total shareholder return (TSR} to the

FTSE100 over the last ten vears. We compare performance te the FTSE100
as IMI has been included in the index in the past and it is a position where IMI
aspires to be. TSR measures the returns that a company has provided for its
shareholders, reflecting share price movements and assuming reinvestment

. of dividends {source: DiataStream). with data averaged over the final 30 days

In 2018, the total dividend for the year of 40.6 pance reprasentad an increase
of 3% over last year's 39.4 pence.

Relative percentage change in remuneration for
Chief Executive

The Committee actively considers any increases in base pay for the Chief
Executive refative 1o the broader IMi employee population. Benefis and bonus
payments are not typically comparable given they are driven by a broad
range of factors such as gecgraphical persuasion, local practices, eligibility.
individuat circumstances and role.

Chief Executive Employees’
Base salary 2.6% 3%
Benefits 6% 4% ‘
Annual bonus -19% -24%, ;

T Al UK head office employees. This compansen excludes our international workforce which
we believe would not provide a true comparison geven differing local market factors.

of each financiat year. As the graph below illustrates. IMI's absclute and
relatve TSR performance has been strang over the last ten years.

Value of a hypothetical £100 investment

a1
mibi whIEILG s FSF/AD

bt

nt.

The following table summarises the tetal remunération for the Chief Executive over the last ten years, and the outcomes of short and long-term incentive plans as

a percentage of maximum.

Financial year-ended 31 December 2009' 2010 2011 202! 2013 20142 20152 M6l 20172 20182
Total remuneration (single figure, £000} 2,547 4,438 12,289 7,854 6.688 1,867 1.667 1.901" 2773 3.047
Annual variable pay (% of maximum) 919, 95% 5% 47% 62% 36% 40% 50% 95% 75%
Long-term variable pay (% of maximurm) 64°% 7% 95% 100% 100% - - - -

- Share Matching Plan

Long-term variable pay (% of maximum} 45% 100% 100% 100% 82.6" - - 3.5% -

- Performance Share Plan

Long-term variable pay (% of maximum) - - - - - - - 6.55% 29.2%

- IMI Incentive Plan

' Represents remuneration for Martin Lamb who was Chief Executive from before 2009 untit 31 Dec
* Represcnts remuneration for Mark Sehvay who was appointed Chief Pxecutive on 1 January 2014,

ember 2013,



Application of the Policy in 2019

Executive director fixed pay

Mark Sehway wili retire from the Board effective 31 July 2019 and will not
receive a base salary ingrease for 2019. Mark will receive a payment in

lieu of natice, representing two months' basic salary. Roy Twite is appointed
Chief Executive from the conclusion of the 201% Annual General Megting.
from which date his salary will increase to £720,000.

The base salary tor the Finance Director was increased by 2.2% consistent
with the average increase for 2019 awarded to employees.

To align with the pension contributions ot the majority of the global
workforce. the pension opportunity for Roy Twite will be raduced from the
current level of 35% of salary to 11% from the date of his appaintment
as Chief Executive,

Incentive pay

Annual bonus
In accordance with the Policy, the annuai bonus plan will be cperated
as follows in 2019

» Ag in 2018, the 2019 maximum bonus opportunity is set at 200% of
salary for Mark Selway and will be pro-rated for time served and paid
wholly in cash.

» Roy Twite will be eligible for a maximum bonus opportunity of 200%
as Chief Executive and pro-rated in respect of 2019. The maximum
bonus opportunity for Daniel Shook is 125%.

» Target bonys 1s set at 50% of maximum bonus opportunity,

» As in 2018, the annual bonus for Mark Selway and Daniel Shook will
be subject to performance in Group adjusted profit before tax (40%),
organic revenue {20%j, cash conversion (20%) and strategic and personal
abjectives {20%}. Health and safety will serve as an underpin to ensure
bonuses are only paid out when minimum standards are achisved.

»As in 2018, the annual bonus for the Chief Executive (hoth outgoing
and incoming) and Finance Director will be subjact to performance in
Group adjusted profit before tax (35%), IMI Critical Engineering cperating
profit (15%). IMI Critical Engineering crganic revenue (15%j. IMI Critical
Engineering cash conversion (15%) and strategic and personal
objectives {20%).

» The Committee has determined that the targets associated with the
performance measures will be disclosed retrospectively on the same
basis and to the same extent as for 2018 targets (see annual bonus
metrics table on page 72),

79

Performance share awards under the P
In accordance with the new remuneration policy, the IP wili be operated
as follows in 2019:

» No award o be made o Mark Selway in 2019

» As Chief Executive, Roy Twite wili be eligible for a maximum opportunity
of 250% of salary. The maximum opportunity for Daniel Shook will be
set at 150%.

- » Awards will vest subject to performance in three core areas aligned 1o

our longer-term strategic priorities: ROCE (25%), relative TSR (25%)
and Group adjusted profit before tax growth (50%).

» Awards will be subject {0 a two year post-vesting holding period, extending
the total time horizon to five years. As per the Policy vested awards which
are subject to a holding period will not normally be forfeited on termination
and the holding period will continug to apply to such awards (although
the Committee may release awards early from the holding period in
appropriate cases).

» The performance targets that will apply to the 2019 1P awards are as follows:

ROCE Relative Group Level of
TSR adjusted vesting
profit before
tax growth'
Threshold 40% Median 2.5% 25%
Maxirnum 50% Upper 7.5% 100%
quarlie
Weighting 25% 25% 50%

' Annualised Compound Annual Growth Rate over 3 years

Service contracts
The unexpired terms of the non-executive directors’ service cenlracts can
be reviewed in the Board's Corporate Governance Report on page 55.

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

The Chairman and non-executive directors' remuneration increased by
2.2%. with effect from 1 January 2019, This is in fine with the executive
directors and compares with an 3.0% increase across the wider workforce.

Birgit Nergaard
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
for and on behalf of the Board

28 February 2018
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Financial Statemehts
Finance Director’s Introduction

Introduction from Daniel Shook

Dear Shareholder,

Welcome {o the financial statements section of cur Annual Beport.

My financial review commentary is set cut in this section alongside the primary statements. These financial statements are
presented with the primary statements first, followed by five sections: 'Basis of preparation’, 'Results for the year', ‘Operating
assels and labilities’, 'Capital structure and financing costs' and ‘Cther notes'.

Despite mixed market conditions, IMI delivered solid results for the year, with revenue, profits and operating cash flow all
growing in 2018,

The company has further mitigated the risks asscciated with the defined benefit pension schemes through the buy-out of
£409m of liabilities during the year. iMI continues to improve its overall control environment and risk management procedures
in 2018 through the implomentation of a co-sourcing model for internal audits between Group Assurance and the divisions.

In 2018 IMI completed the acquisition of Bimba Manufacturing Company, which is contributing in line with expectations.

Daniel Shook
Finance Director |

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information required by statute, accounting standards or the Listing Rules
1o explain a particular feature of the financial statements. The notes that follow will also provide explanations and additional
disclosure to assist readers’ understanding and interpretation of the Annual Report and the financial statements,
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated income statement
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 ! Y
Protit for the year
Items that may be reclassified 1o profit and loss
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Consolidated balance sheet
Al 31 December 2018
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated balance sheet
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated statement of cash flows

Meowaiment innet ol £m

Adjusted EBITDA” from continuing cperations

P R I E N R P 1505
Catrtaban i oy e soe L8410

R L R VI L R O A T TR T 2.3 1
i TH 1
Adjusted operating cash flow™ 221.5 217.9
Aerren Tra e 8.9 RTINS

Operating cash fiow
Py 11z

A {184 [RATRAN
ool

Cash generation

Gt e e e e eelag {1().1}? (R

Free cash flow before corporate activity 130.1

[I ‘”w::w}. e Lo el (1&"-7.9)% e
S il (122 6,

Plamenth e oanmilo g e - e
Poot Pt Tt ol re gl 5.3 T
Net cash flow {excluding debt movements) Iyl 05.7j§ 2.3
Cpennngnet ot (265.2)1 et

(15,04, .
{1 8.6}3 1h 1
(404.5) {2656.2)

Fhoudehs oo
braemgn e yoeboe e tenmletion

Closing net debl

A ted et e e T T b nderee 1 T e L T e
[ L LTI Y M S B S I T T TR RN AR I A B

CRACCCICIUE oyt and gl e b e s an e e matemicnrd
loa bthy

RTINS RS TR

R (AT TR [N T O R R ST T P AT R U (D IR N A

At o i g e e genenated o e s el o -

sl the bt of oo ol s by

Vol el e fnd e A goned e

ashr e ierd e e nee it pa paety

Shicessarnerd L esd by e cosbreapr Lo aapecieg dee s Thee e e e
st ertien s e aperalawy o Bl of v e
CCashoangra

Sfarge fmeptenng,

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to movement in net debt
Tho Grosipe e ol oated starcmen i af e b Howrs e

ot recoencdes the oprer e gy proft ol oovear o the ctinege

sl on fhie opgee s

aldogerdiefte dnthe bada s e oot e reaonseb e dnare sl oneting n.oape

At e Fonps debt St nong ol ooechcdes orher interee -
bosaatinngg e ities 1o Al vendecstansdingg, Ao andlyses of the etfent o 1he
Wearmac o 1 e e 60 it debi nas boe  peondeo, Avcodingly,
creadjucted EENTDA and nesdeld & shaown o

RS T e FTFRREN

H L aeveer 4

Aser ancliehion b

e teabsbes caton 1) arvpeovidas comurer lary

Operating cash flow
=R R O I o

Fles oo rmay gt

CorE el

At N T R P R NG 1 A UIE S AN A K
fE T Wpamens by s bagl o der e a0 o

e Lnl AN

e BT T DO Ty hat T U S T e
FohegbAee 1 e sfal e e 107 RN TR ERY I I TR
e H0CT B bt N it e vl e

EARER VAL BNV

Pozfiem b O seatd oot O 5 et

AN | T IN CR N A LTS T A S Tt
Pray ot on e ikl ot
bt Tobontien e e 1 g

T e i e andtioe o e s e

vttt wy et atre- etk rag he buleoo e - oat

At o Lot rrero b ar T on bt s P T e 0

free cash flow betfore corporate activity

orn of hdmeal e oo

Fersaulolts, 0 ekl tA0 g
roddad a cne-Gipay et ST S Tmnde to s d v b VKPR e
Tordee par G b teserer cocorgp ooy DOt s B ot dho ae o o

FREE AR B R

Codiiatr af HHy e S TG e

Net cash outflow {excluding debt movements)

Acanhe ot B B R N R TR N S N T TS R ¥ O I AR S RO T

AU L e e cpa it 0t B

[ R R A DU I TRVSTRIE RN IRY SRS

o e b e e

IR [T C RS S IR o 11 S TR P

Arnchcotnieg o P ST Pl et e sy

or iy e Lbare option:

e fobs] et o boa st AL LIS WA B ) R E RS TR AP

AR I

Closing net debt

The cpserngg e et D, § 200

BT T Ca TR T NI TE L

prte losnn of e 0 S e iy b gl o S ol cedd Bea
oot barnowniyn, Aler e
2y U2 ndlewe andd e 10 accnarrad o

VIl O LI o N e NP o SR DR AR T
peel of the Bk acowe 1l

E2G

o S ol sy ne badebt s P (20



92 IMi ple Annual Repont and Accounts 2018

Section 1 - basis of preparation
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Section 2 - results for the year

What you will find in this section

93

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the following pages you will find disclosures
explaining the Group’s results for the year, including segmental information, adjusting items, taxation and earnings per
share. You will also find a summary of the Group's alternative performance measures, including the definition of each

and the rationale for their use.

2.1
Segmental information and alternative
performance measures
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Orgaric revenue growlh and operating profit are the two shon-term key
pertormance indicators or measures that reflect the way the performance
of the Graup is managed and monitoresd by the Executive Commities.

In this sechion the key constituents of these two KPI's, being the Group's
adjusted revenues and segmental operatng profts, are analysed by
reference to the parformance and activities of the Group’s segments

and thel opalaling costs.
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I O O I T | I L L O PO B T { R TR B I LR A T PO | I B Y SR TP SRR B SN ERNE FI L P SO
Revenue Operating profit Operating margin
2018 ; 217 2018 O 2018 . e
e Emb e _im i %o ;
Continuing operations
(L IS R RS 682 Lty 88.3 S 12.9% e
L TP RO 916 S 153.2 16.7% T
L R T T R IR VY| 309 Al 52.0 165.8% oYy
CRorps e n e (27.2} [P o
Tolal adjusted revenue/segmentat operating profit und margin 1.907 1-00 266.3 ot 14.0%
U AR I R TR S (0.8) 1
Tolal adjusted revenue/operating profit and margin 1,907 175 265.5 e 13.9% T
Ak bBeoge e tent e 1.9 e
{12.4) L
6.8 RS
et Che e et g {28.8) I
i 0.6
[ bl 3.2 '
[N TR AP O 2.0} i
s e e e 2t 3.2}
Statutory revenuc/operating profit 1,807 O 231.6 1
S P (18.7) e
Statutory profit before tax from continuing operations 2129 TRGC

L P T N TSR T N R

B S I T T T o B T I RN = L LA R T

Yol ancdon 51 Desenhor 20

[DAEE T

R O R o P RS O R E LT INTUCS RTINS

Year ended 31 December 2018

[P RSTER Y
A e e As Adjusted QOrganic
o e ackLoted onchuros [ pee iy f_)rgﬁ-miw_ adjusted Acquisitions OCrganic growth (%) growth (%)
Adjusted revenue
A e alens v fee X fr 37 682 - 682 5% 7%
AL Sres o kot oy T iy 916 (88} 828 16% 6%
HAL oo g ornng B2 RS 309 - 309 1% 0%
Total A 1.0, 1,907 (88) 1,819 9% 5%
Segmental operating profit
Al el B enns EREY Y Sl [ 88.3 - 88.3 5% B%
I e e s b g g LIEXES) [T 1.3 153.2 (6.7) 146.5 15% 1%
AL o Brag cctng T LR I 52.0 - 52.0 5% £%
Carpe alt L6 [T [HEISRST! {27.2) - (27.2)
Total gEIR 3 i R 266.3 6.7) 259.6 1% 9%
Seagmental operating prefit margin (%) 13 e 14.0% 14.3%
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[T {3 3.7 .
RN R PTRRPE 132.2
P Tencaira gned L (e 18.5

Telal assets and liabilities in Group balance sheet 1,802.8 . i
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£m | °m
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2018
Revenue

T I N P I S ) 392 RSN
Western Europe 681 Cng
VG 427 e
St 24 ot
North America 451 s}
Emerging Markets 608
Rest of World 77 i

Total statutory revenue 1,807 Cool
Adjusted revenue by destination (2018) S I I L N T NI S TR L T PR R
Fustodei ‘ T ' i
i o g 4
H
5
P T SR
A Tl
Tt ©oreng B I R RS [ TP IR B [N CRCRR P e PO L T IR IR L I D S R R ) Wt A TR L TR T L Lo S P o SN T FRPTE U (PR
Do Taary e
2018 ity
Revenue Flovenan
Seotor fm | m

Mes Corrsdon £ 361 e
Atk 321 RaR|
Critcal Engimeering 682 ¢
[t e tned Aotearioarion 525

ez Ve 1 196 “GE
77 [Eh

. 77 Ll
MRalt 41 5
Precision Engineering 916 s

14 151 s
Hosiricior o8 01
Froamiadex 43 11
Ohict 17 ‘ A
Hydronic Engineering 309 ‘ s
Total revenue 1,907 i
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Operaling costs by funciion

The following table 1= included to show how much of the operaiing costs
deducted from roveniie to arrive at the Group's statutory operating profit,
ralalc to cost of sales, seling and distrbution costs, adminstrative
cxpernses and acpesting tems.

2018 . Jusd
£m . i
Adjusted revenue 1,907 o

i {1,089.4) .
Segmental gross profit

Selie samevee b o e

{242.2}
{309.1}
©8
265.5 Jae N
(33.9)
231.6 HREAN

B TR D O L (N A R
et I R A
Adjusted operaling profit
I EY AR U TL AT WS

Statutory operating profit

Tec e b rer s s b ot tail e Bon g 10
The =Moo L de <o epruntapbiead anody e or ae focation of the Cesop

prspacety ple et acsapnne it e dbinlaggo e o el

\
2018 | i
£m 1 (Al

LIk 76.6 FE I
251.1 S
2197 4o
263.5 e

60.4 15

19.8 s
8911

Sotmy

Bt ol Froope
ey

A P e
Fastaol Vil
Total

2.1.3
Specitic elements of operating costs

Certain specific iterns of operating expenses are disclosed 1o provide the
reader of inancial statements with more information regarding these costs.
This section provides this analysis,

2.1.3.1 Employee information

T crrage ctanbes of pesple ermpheced b the Croup conney the enr v,

|
2018 |

AL THE ] Engin erieeg

M e 5,933
IR == e B eeseting 1,790
Cppir e ) 109!
1,406 0670

3,274

s on B eeing

Totat Group

Thue it ¢ 018 v = e Rty s auilon o1 Bwibe nePeecr on B o cotingg.

97

Total 615.8 G
[ (S A T T FOE S PN I TGN i LY o R O TH 8 R S Y] R
el v AN N FEEAS BT PR T [ S

2.1.3.2 Operating lease charges and operaling lease comnuiiments

The Group enters into leases for property, plant and equipment assets
when doing so reprasents a maore cost-effective or lower risk option than
purchas ng thern. This leads to an income statemeant charge for the year
and future commitments for the Group in respect of these leases.

[ AT BRIt [ OB RTINS NN

T L R LA TS S W TS TR [ ARSI
crpdant ond o ae e The ey sl wlot st el
ey hooe et g mee e D e e el ptable by e e enesds

2018 1 2007
Land and b Lard A
buitdings Others|  hilah {Hhers
£m £m | £
Wit e 216 13_63 e 10t

ffer tee e

snrcard ey 54.2 24.3 -
12.3 - R

88,1 37.9 2k 190

2.1.3.3 Research and development expenditure

Thivcer ity ey o= afe couctand oeeeb g rnens caen st e oheanee Lot ot e

WG Al e e SEE D 0200 T i inclaled et e s e bs e

ot capal et gk vk
Al dc Gk ctalbect £ 0Thm 20T P00 s ¢

ety e nteds Lo b S5, 33 i

IR VS FRO AR

2.1.3.4 Exchange on operating activities net of hedging arrangements
PR frArswen Ul o= cecer g e e Grooeeese £2.20

AT T T B R RN

2.1.3.5 Audit fees

The: Girowss engagesse 10

cndtor, Y brepeion oiler ast irance asnige nents
coacdilios o T e bt Aoy Guddit dudier sebiere i onerting, ey e eoandd
kel ge o e Groap chould enable therm T perfom. theag o agenes 1
miore Gl g, thae el

Sl Serl e posiden

A YA [N ST R R FTH I SR S e R

sates g thee e e et ot bedowe

[l st iy ey r st gennen

pann Y Foos comca b BY aned e ass

208 PUNT
£m: £m
Mooy cvermdd b 1o Tompoany” oion for thie kit
el s Cornpony s an dal dg e oants 0.2 1.2
Thio aued Do e Connpans s cubsi funie,
DU S nudtion 2.6 AR
CHNET ansliral G s B it e 0.1 o

Total 2.9 2.0
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2.2
Adjusting items

The adjusting tems category in the: ncome stalement ncludes those iterrs
which are removed from stalutory measures to provide insight as to the
performance of the Group, Accordingly. acius'ing tems are inchided In a
separate column on the face of the ncome statement.

They include restructuring costs, special pension even's, gans/iosses on
disposals of subsidiaries and propertios, imparment losses, the reversal of
gans/osses O BCONGMIC hedges, acquistion £os8s, the release of inventory
uplifts recogrised on acquisition and ace.aired intangible amortisation.

2.2
Restructuring costs
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Gains on special pension events
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2.2.3
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries
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2.2.4
Reversal of net economic hedyes contract
losses/gains
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2.25
Acquired intangikle amortisaton and other
acquisition tems
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2.2.6
Gain on disposal of properties
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2.2.8
Indirect taxes arising on reorganisation |
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2.2.9

Taxation
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2.3
Earnings per ordinary share

99

Eainngs per share (EPS™ is the amaount of post-tax proiit attnbotabile to each share (exciuding those bald n the Employee Benefit Trust or by the Company).
Basic EPS measures are caloulated as the Group profit for the year attriutable 1o equity shareholders divided by the waighted averags number of shares in

issue during the year, Diluteg akes into account the atutive effect of all outstanding share options priced helow the market price, in arriving al
sue churing the year, Diluted EFS tak ! the ail fiect of all oLtst g sh nt priced helow iset | t the

numbe of snares used inite calculation,

Both of these measures are also presented on an adpusted basis, to azsist the reader of the financial statements 1o get a better urderstanding of the
performance of the Group. The note below demongtrates how this calculat on has been performed,

2018

- i Axy million
AR L e e e e b e 0 T h [N IR iy 271.0
[ B B P S S e R A S LY 0.3 N
PP TS5 RO B o Y T NTINANT AR A P RPET SR O I (R SN PO SR B0 (1R F Y I LT RS S ST ] 2 271.3 Tl

ey £m
Statutory profit for the year 169.4 i
R IR | FOPE I O ST - VAN
Statutory profit fo: the year attributable to owners of the parent 169.4
Sl sact e ameor o4 = ettt lox -
Continuing statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 169.4
Totalanns trw e g i bade s oot o fon b 38.3
Tolal gt o s orec sl e o sl (93)
Eamings for adjusted EPS i 188.4

e, 2018 | 2017
Statutory EPS measures
Shabdor s pare EPS A 62.5p mED
Sl sothatoa B s 62.4p T
STdor, T conte 1y Eeel Lo iy 62.5p AR
Sttnlos, o lulecd o s © )5 62.4p AR
Adjusted EPS measures
bl e ban e L A 73.2p iy, g
Al citharend ERS EB 73.1p (B

Discontinued earnings per share

Statrdea ;o et d s ued o per shee e vt nilet!

6 7 Bl b, b e ot o i et g

core et el (20100 Fe
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2.4
Taxation

I operates throwegh subsidiary companies all aiound the waorld that pay many
different taxes such as corporate income taxes. VAT, payroll withholdings, social
securlly contrbutions. customs import and excise duties. This ~ote aggregates
anly thnse corpotate income taxes thal are o will b2 levied on the individusl
profits of IMF plc and its subeidiary companies for perniods leading up to and
inCluthing the balante sheet date. The pofits of each eompanry @me subectto
certan aduistments as specified by applicable tax laws in each country to arrive
at the tax liabiity that ks expectod 1o result or ther tax returns, Where these
adjustments have fulue tax impact then defen eu taxes may also be ecorded.

2,41
Tax governance, risk and shatey
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UK corporation tax
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7.4.3
Tax payments
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Yt I B AN IR HET S BN N RSN
L Slerren s
2018 M
£m: B

Current tax charge

244 Lo g g g = - T

Recodgnised in the income statement )
Deferred tax charge

e b e el e L G 1.7 e

T LT O L S P L N | KIS S A A P H ST

2018 2017
£m i

Total incente tax charge
Ut g e 43.5

N EEETES R P I -

Cuirent tax charge

Wty e b g 46.1 A0

P I T I R PN R N TR TR (4.3} LA
41.8 AV

Deferred taxution
Clnegio st e canab s Dlerrses o, e v 1.7 b
Tolal income tax charge 43.5 Foan

2.4.5
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

AR e o o e are st e thnnohad stk /b Gaoe nelee ot e Tt b e vl o e Lo ospoe shior e neder dheas ol aanall e of
te e i

ST A N N T e Ul Tl e e folfosr o T o e cned glioe cppies oo e aponatiortor o 3o sl thoba b a s
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(continued)

246
FRecognised culside of the income stataiment
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2.4.7
Recoutised deferred tax assels and liabilities
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inthe  gutside the

income income Balance at
staternent statement Exchange 31 Dec 18
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2.5
Discontinued operations

When Ihe Groug has assets and lizbillies that have been sold in the year or are fikely to be sold rather than being held for continuing use, these assels and liabllities
are included in curent assets and liabllities and denated ‘held for sale’ rather than in therr usual categories. They are recognised at the lower of canrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on the intial classification of assets as held for sale are included in the 'ncome Statement, even for assets measured at fair
value, as are imparment losses on subsequent remeasurerment and any reversal thereof. Once classified as held for sale, assets are no longer depreciated or amortised.

If they represent a sigrificant enough proportion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued operations, A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group's business that represents a separale major line of business that has been disposed of, is held for sake or 1 a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view 1o re-sale. This means that their trading performance, i.e. their revenues, costs and other items of income and expense, are no longer reported within the
headline figures in the Income Statement and are instead reported in a separate ine, net of tax, called ‘discontinued operations'. These amounts no longer form
part of continuing earnings per share. Comparative figures are restated to be shown on the same basis.

This enables the Income Statement for the current and prior year to be presented on a consistent basis and to convey a more forward-looking version of the
results for the year.
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

What you will find in this section

This section shows the assets used to generale the Group's trading performance and the liabilities incurred as a resuli.
Liabilities relating to the Group’s financing activities are addressed in Section 4, Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are shown in Section 2.4.7. On the following pages there are sections covering working capital, non-current assets,
acquisitions, other payables due after more than one year, provisions and pensions.

3.1
Working capital

Worling captal represents (he assets and habiliies the Groun gencrates
though its trading activites. The Group theretore definas working capital as
lrascie o other recewables, pventory and trade ana olher payables. Woding
capital is managed vory carefully 1o ensure that the Group can meet its tradng
and financing obligations within its ardinary operating cycle.

To provide the Executive Committes with naght into the management

of working capiial, an important measure monitered is cash conversion
Cash conversion is detined as the operating cash flow {as defined in the
commentary on the cash flow statement divided by the segmental operating
profit which therefore represents the proportion of segmental cperatirig profit
gererated during the year that has bheen converted imto cash,

3.1.1
nventories
2018
. . . Em.
LN R UEREUR TP 101.6
104.6 il
66.3
272.5
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3.1.2
Trade and other receivables

2018 KR
o £m |
Current
370.2 e
58.1
L 1 vint 220 di
450.3 R
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Trade and other payables

o _ £m L
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ab e 8.2
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390.9
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3.2
Intangible assets

The follovdng section shows the non-physcal assets used by the Group to ganerete revenues and profits. These assets inchide goodwill, custome relatensmps,
ordat books, patents. development costs and software developrnent costs. The cost of thesa assets 1s 1he amount that the Group has paid for them o when
they have arisen due to a busingss combinarion. tha far value of tre specific intangible assets that could be sold separately or which arise from legal rights.

In the case of goodwiill, 15 cost is the amount the Group has pak n acquinng a busieess over and above the tar value of the indwiduial assets net of the liabilities
acguired, The value of the goodwill can arise from & number of scurces, but i relation to our more recent acquisitions, it has been represented by post-acquisition
synergies and the skils and knowledge of the workforce. The value of the Groups's intangitle assels, wih the excephon of goodwill. reduces over the number of
years over which the Group expects to use the asser, the useful Ife, wia an annual amortisation charge to the ncome statement,

The Group spits s erangible a0 scts betwoon 1hose anisng on acauisiions and hose which do not, because 1he amortsaton of acolred intabgibicy is recognised
au ah adisting tem s Ihe income statermerit,

Where there are :ndications that the value of intangible assels is no fonger representative of their vaiue Lo the Group, for example where there is a custorner
relationship recognised but revenues from that cusiomer are reducing, or where goodwill was recognised on an acquisition but the performance of the buginess
acqurred 1s below sxpectations, the directors review the value of the sssets 10 ensure they have not fallen below their amortised values, [If this has hanpened,
a one-off impa-mment charge is recognised. This section explains the overall carmying values of the intangible assets within the Group and the specific judgements
and cstimates made by the directors in arriving at these values.

3.2
Analysis of intangihie assols

MNon-aog.Jred

Acguared Oiber Tutal Oiber ngr- intangitde.,
£ utormer SleFee) GGred G et Lngiga
Guodwll  refulierotups nitar gikes 1l gibles ntnngibiles consusion iotal
m Lin 'm Il i il i
Cost
Aeat t oy 1T 7341 e DY SRR B Sl
L ivar o ot At 20 il vih NS i [
Mool of sk o) - - it 11 Lo - LS
Sddotion- - - - S G S
Troziesters frans e b e con o oo e - - - - T o
v posebs - - - [, T i h
s b G0 Lok o0t deti BRI it i 11 ol B2
Exchange adjustments 16.0 7.0 4.6 27.6 2.5 {0.1) 301
Acquisitions 39.1 34.2 20.0 93.3 3.4 - 96.7
Additions - - - - 6.7 13.7 20.4
Transfers from assets in the course of construction - - - - 21.4 (21.4)
Disposals - - {2.2} (2.2) (1.9} - (4.1}
As at 31 December 2018 475.5 236.6 122.3 8344 143.6 17.3 9895.3
Amaortisation
Al T dary 1017 R te ur A 1A - RREARS
Exehunne sdpostmen 11 0.4 .3 A 0.3 - 2.
01 pocale of b e e A ol ISl i1 2
i opaoral, - - - - 151 TR
P TR TR T IR P SR - T s b L - 2
Aanul 3 Louestindin 2017 A RS Bl PX T el MR
Exchange adjustments 0.2 3.3 2.8 6.3 3.0 - 9.3
Disposals - - 2.2) (2.2) {1.8) - 4.0)
Impatrment 2.0 - - 2.0 1.2 - 3.2
Amortisatien for year - 16.2 8.9 251 11.8 - 36.9
As at 31 December 2018 38.3 180.5 99.4 382 704 - 388.6
Mot brok salue ot 31 Doeeacher 2017 L83 344 R Az 52 2o 509 0

Net book value at 31 December 2018 4372 56.1 229 516.2 73.2 17.3 606.7




106 IMI pic

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

{continued)

3.2.2
Goodwill Impairment testing

Goodwill 1s ot sulect 1o an annual amaortisation Gharge. Instead, #s carying value s assessedd annually by companson to the future cash flows of the busness
to which it relates (the cash generating unit. or "“CGU'). These cash flows are discounted to reflect the time value of rmongy and this discount rate, togetrer with
the growih 1ates assumed in the cash flow forecasts, are the key assumptions in this imparment testing process.
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3.3
Property, plant and equipment

The following section concerns the physical assets used by the Group to generate tevenues and profits. These assels include manufactuning, distribution anu
office sites, as well as equipment usedd in the manutacture of the Group's products. The cost of these assets represents the amount nitially raid for them.

wiith the exception of the Group's land and assets under censtruction which have not yet been brought Into uae, a depreciation expense is charged 1o the

necome stalement to reflect the annual wear ang ear and the reduction i the value of the asset over tirme. For detalls o the perods over which assets are
ceprociated, see Section 5. Depreciaton 1s calculated by reference 16 The assets” usefd lives. by estimating the number of years over which the Group expodcts
ine asset to e used. At we do for our intangible assets (see Section 3.2), if there has been a technological change or declie in business performance the
directors revipw the value ot the assets 1o ensure they have 1ot lallen below thoir depreciated value If an asset's value falls helow its depreciates value,

a one-off inparment charge 1 made against profit.

PN DA L

Flant & o H
[Na{ET plAR ] Firs
— e e B o
Cost
Aot e 1l s [ B et
Eowe broatyp 15 1 vl 1.0
I bl i ! el Vot
St I YT T
Pt S e g Tt lhr .
i i h Tl
L inbr 2000 £l 11 £
Exchange adjustments 14.4 34.7 (1.7} 47.4
Acquisitions 7.4 11.0 0.4 18.8
Additions 0.7 16.3 21.1 381
Transfers from asscts in the course of construclion 1.6 20.0 (21.6} -
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Depreciation
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities
(continued)

3.4 3.5
Acquisitions Disposals

The foliowing section discusses businesses acquired by the Group, which Prere s reinpaeal O sdhane ey o 1
have given Mise to the addifions o the acguired intangiole assets (ncluding .
goodwil) reported in Section 3.2 and which cordributed 0 the Group’s profits.
working capital and other balance sneet asset and liabilties,
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3.6
Provisions

A provision 1s recorded instead of a payabie ses Section 3.1.3) when here is less certamnty over how much cash wilk e pad and when the payrent rmight be made.
Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present logal or conswuctive abligation as a result of past events: 1S protable that an outfliow of resources will be
reduired to settle the obligation. and the amount can be relably eslimated. Prowisions are valued at managerne-1's best estimate of the amount requited 1o setlle the
fresent olligation al the balance shect date.

A provision lor restructiring is recognised when the Group has aprroved a cetaled and formal restructunng plan. and the restructunng has either cormmencead or
has been announceo publicly.

The recognition of a provis ot requires estimation, The princpat estimales made 0 respect Gf he Group's provisions concern the taarg ard amount of payments
regured to.

= cover the costs of known restructunng projects;

* reimburse customers for poisntial product warranty claims;

* ensure that current and former manufactunng sites mect relevant environmental standards;

« reflect the estmated outcerne of ongong legal dispites: and

* provice against indemnities following the disposal o subadiaries.

Analysis of lhe Group's provisions:

Frerommental
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Exchange adjustment 01 0.2 - 0.3
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

What you will find in this section

This section outlines how the Group manages its capital and related financing costs. The directors determine the
appropriate capital structure for the Group, specifically, how much cash is raised from shareholders (equity} and how
much is borrowed from financial institutions {debt) in order to finance the Group’s activities both now and in the future.
The directors consider the Group’s capital structure and dividend pelicy at least twice a year ahead of announcing results
in the context of its ability to continue as a going concern and deliver its business plan.

The Board is mindfut that equity capital cannot be easily flexed and in particular raising new equity would normally be
likely only in the context of an acquisition. Debt can be issued and repurchased more easily but frequent changes lead
to high transaction costs and debt holders are under no obligation to accept repurchase offers.

4.1
Net debt

Net debt 1s the Group’s key measure used to gvaluale total autstanding debst, net of the current cash resources. Sonie of the Group's borrowings (End cash)

are held in foreign currencies. Mavernents in foreign exchange rates affect the stering value of the net deht. Cash and cash equivalerts comprise cash balane os
and calt deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an wlegral part of the Group's cash management are ricluded as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpase of the statement of cash flows.

al Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

2018

£m .
P S NP [ L TR TR A 132.2 L i
et corre Do e (82.6) T
Cash and cash equivalents 49.6 GG

b} Reconciliation of net cash to movement in net borrowings

2018 e
o £m .

<we A ash e TRt el nag 1oy e b e [19.7
MO Cl Gt g TG b D e D GG a0 el B g L ace (86.0} o1
{Increase)/decrease in net deft before acquisitions. dispesals and foreign exchange {105.7) £

Nt bl G e (15.0}
Crarenicy g shabon e e ey (1B.6} 191
Movement in tiet borrowings in 1he year (139.3} 173
Nt remdiag b e slart of e e (265.2). =20
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c} Analysis of net debt
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4.2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group borrows money from financial institutions in the torm of bonds and other financal nstumaonts. These generally nave fixed interest rates and are for
a fixed term or are draym fram committed borrowing facilities that generally have foating interest rates.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.3
Net financing costs

This section detalls the Income generated on the Group's financial assets and the expense incurred on borrowings and other financial agsets and abiies.
The fingnce rmcome and expense laken inte account in amving at adiusted camings only includes the ncome and expense arising on cash balances,
borrowings and relirerment benefit obligaulions. The fingnce incorme o oxpense on mark to-market moverments on interest and foreign exchange derivatves
and other tnancing costs are excluded from adjusted earnings.

Recognised in the income statement

2018 ! ok
Financial Font 4
Interest  instruments Inere.t [LEUNT
. o - I — _Em _Em L
B L TR ST ST L DR 5.8 Oh v
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Recognised in other comprehensive income

2018 , 207
£m | 'm |
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Total items rocognised in other comprehensive income {net of 1ax) (2.7)
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4.4
Financiai risk management

The Group's aclivities expose it 1o a vanety of Iinancial ne<s: interest rate,
foreign exchange and base metal price movements in addition 1o funding
and hiquid ty paks, The financial instruments used 1o manage these risks
themselves intraduce expos.are to credi risk, market nsk and guidity Hsk.

Tnis section presents information about the Group's exposure to each of
trese risks, the Group's ohjectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing nsks, ncluding each of the above nsks: and the Group's
management of captal.

4.4 1
Overview
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or
courterparty to a financial ingtrument fails to meet 113 contractual obligations,
and arises princpally from the Group's raceivabiles from customers, cash
and cash eguivalents held by the Group's banks and other financiat assets.
At the end of 2018 these totalied £503.4m (2017: £442.5m).

4.4.2.1
Managing credit risk arising from customers
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Exposure to credit risk in respeact
assets

of financia

113

4,423
Exposure 1o credit risk in respect
of trade receivables
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(continued)

4.4.2.4
Impairment provisions for trade receivables
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Managing credit risk ansing
from counterpariies
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4.4.3
Market risk

Market nisk is the risk thal changes in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices will aflect the Group's
inceme and cash flows or the value of its financial instruments, The objective
of market risk managerment is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters,

Under the management of the central treasury function, the Group enters
into derivalives in the ordinary course of business and also manages financial
liabifities in order to mitigate market risks. All such transactions are carried
out within the guidelines set by the Board and are undertaken only if they
relate to underlying exposures.

4.4.31
Foreign exchange risk

The Group publishes consolidated accounts in sterling but conducts much
of its global business In other Lurrencias. As a result it 15 subject 1o the neks
associated with foregn exchange movomaents affecting transaction costs
{'hansactional nsk’), travstation of foreign profits (proft translahon nskc;
and translation of the underbying riet assets of loreign operations

(‘asset translation nak'),

a) Management of transactional risk
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k) Management of profit translation risk
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c) Management of asset translation risk
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d} Currency profile ot assets and liabilities
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Asseis
subject
Exchange to interest Other Total
Cash® Debt contracts rate risk net assets net assets FET &
2018 2ma 2018 2018 2018 2018
£m fm £m 77@ £m £m
s 41 - 485 526 {11) 515 o
e i - {248) (11} (299) 318 &9
Ly {11) {207) {2186) {434) 520 86 [
b 20 - {258) {238) 244 8 K
Total 50 {455) - {405) 1,071 666 =
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4.4.32
Interest rate 1isk
The Group is exposed 1o a number of global interest rates through assets and liabilities denominated in jurisdictions to which these rates are applied, most
nolably US, Eurozone and UK rates. The Group is exposed to these because market movements in these rates will increase or decrease the interest charge
recogrisac in the Grotip ncome statement.
a) Management of interesl rate risk
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

b} tnterest rate risk profile
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The commodity inputs to the Group's production process typically consist
of base metals, Commodity risk for the Groun is the risk that the prices of
these inputs could rse, thus reducing Group profite.
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Management of commodity risk
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4.4.4 Capital management concerns the decision as to how the Group's activities

. . . are financed and specifically, how much of the Group capitat is provided by
Liquidity risk borrowings {or deby and hew much of it is financed with equity raised from
the issue of share capital.

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Group will not be abla to moet its financiat The Board's policy is 1o maintain a balance sheet with a broad capital
obligations as they fall due. base and the strength 1o sustain the future development of the business
including acguisitions. This section discusses how the Beard views the
o capital base of the Group and the impact on leverage. distribution policy
a) Management of liquidity risk and investment palicy.
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4.5
Overview
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4.5.4
Dividlend policy and share buy-backs
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4.6
Debt and credit facilities

This section provides details regarding the specific borrowings that the Group
has in place to satisfy the debt elements of the capital management policy
discussed above.

4.6.1
Undrawn committed facilities
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.6.2
Terms and debt repayviment schedule
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4.7
Fair value

Financial instruments included in the financ-al staterments are measured at ether fair value or amorlised cost. The measuremeant of this fair value can in some
cases be subjective, and can depend on tre inputs used in the calculations. The Group generally calculates is own fair values Lsrg comparable observed
market proes and a saluation model using the respective and elevant market data for the instrument being valued.
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Tedal financial assels and liabilities
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)
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As al 31 December 2015

Financial assets measured at fair value
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4.7.3
Fair value hierarchy

4.8
Market risk sensitivity analysis on financial instruments

Thus seclion shows how the far value of financial instruments presented can charge for a gven changa inomarket ralas,
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The values shown i the table below are estimates of the impact on finanaial mstruments only. The nsks that these financal instruments have been acquired

10 hedge will move in an opposite direction.

4.8.1
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.9
Retirement Benefits

IMI offers a number of defined benctit arrangements 1o employees that wili not be paid until more than a year after the pariod in which they are earned, for
axampte pension benefils, wiblee plans, post-employment and other long-term employes benefit arrangements.

Therc is a significant degree of estimation involved in predicting the ullimate benelits payatile under these defined benelit arrangements in respect of which
the Group holds net fiabilties on ts balance sheet This section explains how the value of these benefits payable and any asserts funding the arrangements
are accourted for n the Group financial stalements and gives detalls of the key assumptions upen which the esttmations are based

Asscts and habilities for defined contribution arrangements are minimal as they relate solely to short-term timing differences between the ponoo during which
benelis have accrued and whon contnbubions dre paid into schomes.,

Defined contribution (LG’ Arrangements where the employer pays fixed contributions into an external fund on behalf of the employee {(who 1s responsible for
making the investment decigion and therefore assumes the risks and rewards of fund performance). Contsiputiors to these arrangements are recognised in the
income statement as incurred.

Detined benefit {DBR'): A defined benefit persion plan is a pension arrangemert in which ine employer promises a specified arnual benelit on retirernent that
is predetormined by a forrnula based on the employee’s earnings history, tenure of service and age. rather than depending directly on individual nvestment
returnis, [ same cases. this bonetitis paid a8 8 urmp swim on leaving the Company of while In the sorvico of the Company rather than as & pension. The Group
underwrites ore of more risks in meeting these obligations and theretore any net liability o1 surplus 1 these arrangements is shown on the Group halance sheet.
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Summary information

Net pension deficit: £52.3m (2017: deficit of £77,9m)
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Asset profile of schemes

TreaGhles g vl b e o o] Py e e

[ IIRERVERIIE KPR TS R N e e A
B L R S LT S R RS - b=
Sl et e i ST L AU AR -

2018 YN
£m

Lo s 21.0 R
29849.2 RV
320.2 oy ia

[T CES RV I

oo ab gty

VLt 113.9 N
R TS O P 17.9 IRARY
IR R (W 0.8 108
IETIN 17.8
74.1 “un
2245 ARy

[ULRCE

Todad trwgaatesd ar et

foar calat et e 544.7 17
{0.2}

{532.8) !
(64.0)

(52.3)

Peoficheevoma bl i

e i el ey

N
e undnme el oo

Mot ool s o=roey on RO

Se i - el pessact tone

(80.1) WA
27.8

Sl crom el e n st

Thas Colones o vgrosd oothae e et

e TR vl an

arbty b gregandd o e el

cotd o ptte dbar e 185 e ool i ¢

et Dade Tt e s WAl

Cepan Lo S T

o b s e e e L b ey B e
b et e bt tho gt ale ot mdcc: U ortianon oepnts el

Coarerey s anpe bt B W ob e e et el L

Thi Geerneas o0 eby ol §71 Dt

C ST TR Dhoordie of
GEET Are il 3 el o

RO PRI P R

AT, L

1=

o Glh

Sl

attw rw v edier et ploene ot

Funded: 1t ity
vohl A nsrcnte

TH g de o

gecnmoety sl beemie e s ey e Tnked oot e

ot hen e beos eerenated o b o Ponnedet e,

Unfunded: Flaw b4 - mna

ES IRTERN

st o ot b hed 1 )afeed

i peensen pl

attar gormerts 1o b s erelm ob oo erople
are crnpbsyed by e Giowp b eang Fon
15 Fenaen e Act el g et ks

et the rooe e tder ot i

al o b of othior g -tor
vt P il adale ey
ANt fter the ielade
st ferg-ten 1 anangomcn it e

e e d st b b ans

ey

Average duration by geography
Tre follo «nig teabde P e veeighlea o Ceane e ol oo e tiraniog
o e b per bt e pet ot 1o bie

17.4 5.3
s 6.5 SRl

Eurezon o 15.5 V0d




124 IMI plc

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(continued)

48972

The UK and overseas pension funds
4921

The UK Funds
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Overseas pension funds

4.9.3
Specitic effect on financial statemenis
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Cash flow impgacts
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)
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[
jare

Cuinerr easde s -

tervisls prer, i 2

s
<

Fotaree onile

P2y M
i~
w

ot
28

g oo e

e R R e S L S S D U S B S BTN AOR) B P TR S

e o e el ol kel teen el et

[ E ]

T ekl ardon

et e

TRy bl bl e e e

[E PO IR N

Al Lot il

Lt et b delles e s oy [ |

[T S SU R

FERER RS

UK Non-UK

BT T SR ] G R N LR PP [ SR UA [ PR Corton
I T I R L S N TS AT Yaran ol om0 gty E0 T
oone cear o e e e b d T e DR IS ISR Pt g e 0 0 e et e et ey ot fge 8 Uihn
1 s ed-b e raet Y11 En
Prial s alioboe e s T f e luey
| P T O O I PO TR E T IV RO B I 1
M T R RF IR IR ERE AT N R S [ T B TS I Nt RS

RN (K O [ B A S SR PR TS | S R W

4933
Income statement

RO [N R AT TR

it

o el e
trbile bedo

s crhees

At b o e

Irco o b 20T IBS T e e
I

ey SN e | b e bl noes

LT

sl Obl gt et e

sheess ee Wl e v g Ll e

2018

Orerses Overtens

post non-post
UK ermploynrent erplovimont Totad
e frrr

Overseas Overseas

post non-post
UK  employment employment Total
£m £m £m £m

B - 4.3 0.8 5.1 -
potoen oot 0.4 (1.0 - (0.6} {1
Sattlornersce il e Lot gein (4.2} (2.0} - (6.2} i .
Faecognilion of [o,es - - 0.8 0.8 . . 02 it
1IC Enypbon e oo tatadion - - - - - - -

P2 SIOP OO B pers & - Opdaald g (ot (3.8} 1.3 1.6 (0.9) HENEn SRE] 1.3 [

Crrent ervie

€31

Inferent on SO 20.4 1.9 .2 22.5 S Pa
0.5 ©8& - @211 e
= hEane g Last 0.1} 1.3 0.2 1.4 A e




127

4.9.4
Overalleconciliation of changes in the net surplus/liability} for defined benefit obligations

2018 2017
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.10
Share capital

The ordinary shareholders of tne Group own the Company. This section shows how the total number of ordinary shares I 1ssue has changed dunng the
vear and how many of thess ordinary shares are held as treasury shares or in Employee Bencfit Tnusts. to be used {o satisty share options and awards to
direclors and employees of the Company, as parl of employee share ownershg programmes. This section also sets out the dividends paid o proposed

to be paid to shaicholdets,

4101
Number and value of shaies
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.11
Share-based payments

The Group uses share option schemes to revard and rotain its employees. The estmated cost of awarding these share options is charged 1o the ircome
staternent over the period that the Group benefits from tha employees’ services, This cost ks then added back to retained earnings. to reflect that there is
no overal impact on tne Groups balance sheet until the shares are issued to the employeeas when the oplions are execised.

The incividual share option scherres. the number ot options cutstanding under each of tham, the estimated cost of these oplions recoygnised i the Incorme
statarr ent and the assumptions usad n arving at thig estimated cost are described in this secticn

4.11.1
Outstanding share options
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4.11.2 4.11.3
Schameas under which options Other share-basad payment arrangernents
are cuistancing
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(continued)

4.11.4
Options granted during the year
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4.11.8
Other share-based paymen: disclosures

4.11.6
Shate-based payiment charge for the vear
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Section 5 - other notes

5.1
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liatifity is a fiability ihat is not sufficiently certain 1o guaby for
recognition as a provision because significant subjectivity exists regarding
its outcome,

e grin o

5.2
Related party transactions

Related parties are solely the key management personnel. The Board is
conswdered to be the key management personnel of the Group,
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5.3
Subsequent events

Events that occur in the period between 31 December and the datfe of
approval of the annual report can be categornsed as adusting or non-adjusting
depending on whether the condition existed at 31 December. If the event 1s an
adiusting event, then an adwstment to the results is made. If a non-adjusing
evenl after the year end s malerial, non-disclosure ceuld influence decisions
that readers of the financial slalements make. Accordingly, for each material
non-adusting event atler the reporting period we disclose the nature of the
event and an estimate of its tnancial effect, or a stalement (hat such an
estimale cannot be made.
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Section 5 - other notes
{continued)
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I. Financial instruments and fair value hedging
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Section 5 - other notes
(continued)
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The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Qualifying indemnity provisions and liability insurance
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Change of control
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financiat statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMI plc
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Overview of our audit approach
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{(continued)

Risk Our response 1o the risk
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Risk

Carrying value of goodwill and V=
acquired inlangible assets
(£517m. PY comparative £429m)
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(continued)

An overview cf the scope of our audit Group Adjusted profit before tax

Tailoring the scope
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of IMI plc

(continued)
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Company balance sheet

at 31 December 2018

Fixed assets
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2018
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Retained profit for the year 237.5 237.5
Dividends paid on ordinary shares” (107.9) {107.9)
Shares issued in the yoar - 0.6 0.8
Shate-based payments 7.0 7.0
Shares acquired for™:

employee share scheme irust {6.0) 6.0}
At 31 December 2018 81.8 13.3 174.4 320.0 589.5
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1i. Sigtificant accounting policies
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4. Dividends
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Company notes to the financial statements

(continued)

C8. Other creditors falling due within one year
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Subsidiary undertakings
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Subsidiary undertakings

(continued)
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Subsidiary undertakings

(continued)

Parprge nhoeboe T fatibeiiey e D Lo 0wy T 2002 s e e

R L = T A [l aot e L Tl e sl o lor A
e | 1540 e Do Lo wlered TDLT Saea 2 Ll

Nreree o Lot Ehordaer oy S p b b VDT AR e

B e R B S A |

Plooge 0P [ P '
Piogeqre B Lo B I T B RS I SR
SRS [T v DT AT S N E IR E B TR | I L TR N S TR

LU L e et Doen T R oy

W

DO bl ar 1,

Fregres RERPAt [5 ¢ 1 R IR P PP S B

Paeate e Tl r L e RIS B TN PRCINEY U TR B PR

et s

LN =l
| ha IR I T T S I [ TR R IEF I Cleble 1o i Bl
Shoch B e U o aevss g xcatban e ol Jhotn gy et s whr ey Sh
NEPRY T RN T T S | P T N TS B PRt TN DR B B R AR TR A RS T N BT
SIS EL 1 LIRES conte B Ll
A et St e Ll sgrr v D o S e
[ P TR AP Y SUUF] DURN BT E PN TH b e B b caserd Sonh gl t Ty,
T e o] gy Mt = [ Slrsd, b Geranr
R PR S NN R =TT SN R SR [ B & R o A I R R e i
TR Mend e targg 2eg: e U Nee e et R oo B Iy s L eed St
Tt Reorr 22 R UL RENT N XS N APPEY O S T T TR L R T -orec ol Belgom
Yacs on Coimpe e aleesnditan Frned M S T A | T IO
Zonc gl Tempee e Ly Sroanedbed i 1 mOSEY L chi e N B Lot Bhoae o 2010
Tl rstr A e i SECE Ry Caate e D i Qo TROT Sy e 5 e
TR S S S R N I T ST PR O
Subsidiary audit exemptions
AL 1 VT Ottt St e D e e s I wng it e 03T Diicenines 20 i e LI ST TS T SR AN WU T I Y

il e e evernpd o e rea e cri on e A obatuag o e sd s ol a e i sbaecon s Doart e e e on b GA G he S

Company hame " Company numbor Company hame Company number

Fioltord Bntares Lonated IS otlar cif et SO IHR2Y

AL oot chilaedd Limedd IME S ceazen e e e d

IALE e b aancar D et NN s ks IARFAREIY

AL F o d Controls thraroe it Wl Sre i s L BRITISIH
RS Gime y L] DTHIARTG Frafle teroetie il _nested mindnzy

Do R RN

Wil b or

ARG Ty Lol

1
H

AL Redrers Lnnded (3198305



Geographic distribution of employees
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Five year summary

Adjusted revenue £m

Adjusted profit before tax® £m

Annuaf Report and Accounts 2018

Adjusted Group revenue by geography 2018
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Shareholder and general information

Announcement of trading results
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